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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF EFBECURITIES
X EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 207:
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or dpOF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 193«
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number
0-24620

DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

36-
Delaware 2495346
(LR.S.
(State or other jurisdictio Employer
Identification
of incorporation or organizatio! Number)
251 O'Connor Ridge Blvd., Suite 30(
Irving, Texas 75038
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)
Registrant's telephone number, including area cg¢@@é2) 717-0300
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(bhefAct:
Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on Which
Registere(
Common Stock $0.01 par val New York Stock Exchang
per share (“NYSE")

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct: None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by SeetiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordoch shorter period that the registrant was redquiefile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastiags. Yes X No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ig nontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowéedg definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Ill of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdiled” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingppmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantdbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgle Act). Yes No X

As of the last day of the Registrant’'s most regeatimpleted second fiscal quarter, the aggregatéehsalue of the shares of common
stock held by nonaffiliates of the Registrant wppraximately $720,979,000 based upon the closifgemf the common stock as reported on
the American Stock Exchange (“AMEX”) on that dajn @etermining the market value of the Registramtenmon stock held by non-
affiliates, shares of common stock beneficially edrby directors, officers and holders of more th@f6 of the Registrant’s common stock
have been excluded. This determination of affilistatus is not necessarily a conclusive deteriomé&dr other purposes.)

There were 81,377,100 shares of common stock, $@ab%alue, outstanding at February 15, 2008.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Selected designated portions of the Registranfimitiee Proxy Statement in connection with the RBtgnt's 2008 Annual Meeting of
stockholders are incorporated by reference intd IRasf this Annual Report.
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PART |

ITEM BUSINESS
1.

GENERAL

Founded by the Swift meat packing interests andding family in 1882, Darling International In¢'Darling”) was incorporated
Delaware in 1962 under the name “Darling-Delawam@any, Inc.” On December 28, 1993, Darling change name from “Darling-
Delaware Company, Inc.” to “Darling Internationatl” The address of Darling’s principal executoféice is 251 OConnor Ridge Boulevar
Suite 300, Irving, Texas, 75038, and its telephamaber at this address is (972) 717-0300.

Darling is a leading provider of rendering, recggliand recovery solutions to the nat®ifdod industry. Darling collects and recy:
animal byproducts and used cooking oil from food servicaldghments and provides grease trap cleaningcgento many of the sal
establishments. On May 15, 2006, Darling, throiigtwholly-owned subsidiary Darling National LLC, a Delawairaifed liability compan
(“Darling National”), completed the acquisition sfibstantially all of the assets (the “Transactiooi”National ByProducts, LLC, an low
limited liability company (“NBP”). Darling and its subsidiaries, including Darling Matl, are collectively referred to herein as
“Company”). The Company processes raw materials at 39 fasilitieated throughout the United States into findsheducts such as prot
(primarily meat and bone meal, “MBM?”), tallow (prarily bleachable fancy tallow, “BFT"), yellow greag‘YG”) and hides. The Compa
sells these products nationally and internationgtiymarily to producers of oleo-chemicals, Wimls, soaps, pet foods, leather goods
livestock feed for use as ingredients in their jpicid or for further processing. The Companlyusiness and operations in fiscal 2007 incluc
weeks of contribution from the assets acquiredth@Transaction, as compared to 33 weeks of cotiibérom these assets in fiscal 2006.

Commencing in 1998, as part of an overall stratedyetter commit financial resources, the Compsimgerations were organized i
two segments. These are: 1) Rendering, the cesgndss of turning inedible food Ipreducts from meat and poultry processors into
quality feed ingredients and fats for other indas@pplications; and 2) Restaurant Services, afocused on growing the grease collec
business and grease collection equipment sale® weljpanding the line of services, which includesage trap servicing, and the Natic
Service Center (“NSC"pffered to food service establishments and foodgssors. The NSC schedules services such asdfétoae and us:
cooking oil collection as well as trap cleaning éontracted customers using the Compamgsources or third party providers. For therfoia
results of the Company’s business segments, see180df Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s net external sales from continuingrafions by operating segment were as followsh@usands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2007 2006 2005
Continuing operations
Renderin¢ $464,46¢ 72.(% $279,01: 68.6% $192,34( 62.5%
180, 127, 116,
Restaurant Services 84t 28.0 97¢ 314 527 37.7
645, 406, 308,
Total $ 312 100.(% $ 99C 100.(% $ 867 100.(%

PROCESSING OPERATIONS

The Company creates finished products primarilyoulgh the drying, grinding, separating and blenduofgits various ra
materials. The process starts with the collectibanimal processing bgroducts (fat, bones, feathers and offal) from npestkers, groce
stores, butcher shops, meat markets and food seegiablishments, as well as used cooking oil fileod service establishments and gro
stores.

The animal processing lproducts are ground and heated to extract watesapdrate oils from animal tissue as well as toartht
material suitable as an ingredient for animal feBdotein is separated from the cooked materiapf@gsing the material, then grinding
sifting it through screens. The separated tallswceéntrifuged and/or refined for purity. The prisndinished products derived from 1
processing of animal by-products are tallow andgino Other byproducts include feather meal and blood meal. Wsedking oil from foo
service establishments is processed under a segatedure that involves heat processing andregttls well as refining, resulting in deri
yellow grease, fee-grade animal fat or oleo-chemical feedstocks.
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PURCHASE AND COLLECTION OF RAW MATERIALS

The Company operates a fleet of approximately 9d6ks and tractotrailers to collect raw materials from approximgtétl5,00(
food service establishments, butcher shops, grostmes and independent meat and poultry proces3tws raw materials collected
manufactured into the finished products sold by @wmmpany. The Company replaces or upgrades itgleefieet as needed to maint
efficient operations.

Rendering materials are collected in one of twomeas Certain large suppliers, such as large preaessors and poultry process
are furnished with bulk trailers in which the rawaterial is loaded. The Company transports theagets directly to a processi
facility. Certain of the Compang’rendering facilities are highly dependent on ona few suppliers. Should any of these supplifi®os:
alternate methods of disposal, cease their opestisave their operations interrupted by casualtptberwise cease using the Company’
collection services, these operating facilities idobe materially and adversely affected. The Camgpprovides the remaining supplie
primarily grocery stores and butcher shops, withtamers in which to deposit the raw material. Tloatainers are picked up by or emp
into Company trucks on a periodic basis. The tgpé frequency of service is determined by individiupplier requirements, the volume
raw material generated by the supplier, supplieation and weather, among other factors.

Used cooking oil from food service establishmestgplaced in various sizes and types of containdriclware supplied by tl
Company. In some instances, these containeroaded directly onto the trucks, while in other amstes the oil is pumped through a vac

hose into the truck. The Company also sells aaioet for used cooking oil collection to food seeviestablishments called CleanStawhich
is a proprietary selfontained collection system that is housed eithside or outside the establishment, with the usskiog oil pumpe
directly into collection vehicles via an outsiddwea The frequency of all forms of raw materiallection is determined by the volume of
generated by the food service establishment.

The raw materials collected by the Company aresparted either directly to a processing plant ca teansfer station where mater
from several collection routes are loaded intoldrai and transported to a processing plant. Cles of animal processing kproduct:
generally are made during the day, and materialslelivered to plants for processing within 24 Isooircollection to deter spoilage. Collec
of used cooking oil can be made at any time oftdae or night, depending on supplier preferencesehmaterials may be held for longer per
of time before processing. Depending on marketlitimms, the Company charges a collection fee fsedfa portion of the expense incurre
collecting raw material.

During the 2007 fiscal year, the Companiargest single supplier accounted for approxiipdio of the total raw material proces
by the Company, and the 10 largest raw materigbplers accounted for approximately 25% of the Itotav material processed by
Company. For a discussion of the Company’s cortipetfor raw materials, see “Competition.” Manytbe Companys suppliers supply re
material under longerm supplier agreements. While the Company doesamticipate problems in the availability or syppf raw material i
the future, a significant decrease in raw mateadime could materially and adversely affect thenpany’s business and results of operations.

RAW MATERIALS PRICING

The Company has two primary pricing arrangementh W raw materials suppliers. Approximately 5ofthe Company's annt
volume of raw materials is acquired on a "formutesis. Under a formula arrangement, the chargeresit for raw materials is tied
published finished product commodity prices aftedutcting a fixed service charge. The Company aeguhe remaining annual volume of
material under "nolermula" arrangements whereby suppliers are eiffaéd a fixed price, are not paid, or are chargedtlie expense
collection, depending on various economic and cditine factors.
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The credit received or amount charged for raw nedtender both formula and ndofmula arrangements is based on various fa
including the type of raw materials, the expectatug of the finished product to be produced, thicgated yields, the volume of mate
generated by the supplier and processing and tatasion costs. Competition among processors ¢oype raw materials also affects the .
paid for raw materials. See "Competition."

Formula prices are generally adjusted on a weeklynthly or quarterly basis while ndarmula prices or charges are adjuste
needed to respond to changes in finished prodiczgor related operating costs.

FINISHED PRODUCTS

The finished products that result from processifigamimal byproducts are oils, primarily BFT and YG; MBM, a pm; anc
hides. Oils are used as ingredients in the préolucif pet food, animal feed, soaps and as a dutestior traditional fuels. Oleohemica
producers use these oils as feedstocks to prochexsadty ingredients used in paint, rubber, papencrete, plastics and a variety of o
consumer and industrial products. MBM is used prilp as a high protein additive in pet food andnaad feed. Hides are sold to leat
distributors and manufacturers for the productibleather goods.

Predominantly all of the Company's finished produate commodities or are priced relative to thesengsodities. While tr
Company's finished products are generally soldriaep prevailing at the time of sale, the Compamgbility to deliver large quantities
finished products from multiple locations and t@inate sales from a central location enableinapany to occasionally receive a prem
over the then-prevailing market price.

MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION OF FINISHED PRODU CTS

The Company sells its finished products worldwi@@@mmodity sales are primarily managed through Gloenpany's commodi
trading department which is headquartered in Irvibgxas. The Company also maintains sales offit&es Moines, lowa and Los Angel
California for the sale and distribution of selecfgoducts. This sales force is in contact withesal hundred customers daily and coordir
the sale and assists in the distribution of massified products produced at the Company's progessamts. The Company sells its finis
products internationally through commodities brek€@ompany agents and directly to customers, ilowarcountries.

The Company has no material foreign operations,elypbrts a portion of its products to customervanous foreign countries
regions including Asia, the Pacific Rim, North Afai, Mexico and South America. Total export salesen$171.6 million, $112.7 million a
$77.6 million for the years ended December 29, 20@¢ember 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respBctiThe level of export sales vai
from year to year depending on the relative sttegidomestic versus overseas markets. The Complatayns payment protection for mos
its foreign sales by requiring payment before skptror by requiring bank letters of credit or guaegs of payment from U.S. governn
agencies. The Company ordinarily is paid for itisducts in U.S. dollars and has not experiencednaaigrial currency translation losses or
material foreign exchange control difficulties. eSdote 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Stategmfor a breakdown of the Compasny’
sales by country.

Following diagnosis of the first U.S. case of bavigpongiform encephalopathy (“BSESn December 23, 2003, many count
banned imports of U.Sroduced beef and beef products, including MBM anitially BFT, though this initial ban on tallow warelaxed t
permit imports of U.Sproduced tallow with less than 0.15% impuritiess & February 18, 2008, most foreign markets therevelosed to U.
beef following the discovery of the first U.S. cadfeBSE had been reopened, although Japan onlyifseimports of U.S. beef from cattle
months of age or younger at slaughter. South Kavb&h previously permitted U.S. boneless beeffreattle 30 months of age or younge
be imported, suspended such imports on Octobel087.2Export markets for MBM containing beef matemproduced in the U.S. he
remained closed with the exception of the Indonesaket, which is now open for MBM and has madéngmact upon MBM prices especie
on the West Coast of the U.S.
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The Companys management monitors market conditions and pfareits finished products on a daily basis. If ketrconditions ¢
prices were to significantly change, the Companylanagement would evaluate and implement any mesagiuat it may deem necessar
respond to the change in market conditions. Fgelaformulabased pricing suppliers, the indexing of finishedduct price to raw mater
cost effectively fixes the gross margin on finishedduct sales at a stable level, providing sonsgéegtion to the Company from price declines.

Finished products produced by the Company areildigéd primarily by truck and rail from the Companyplants shortly followin
production. While there are some temporary invgngzcumulations at various port locations for exghipments, inventories rarely exc
three weeksproduction and, therefore, the Company uses limiterking capital to carry inventories and redudesikposure to fluctuations
commodity prices. Other factors that influence petition, markets and the prices that the Compauwgives for its finished products inch
the quality of the Company's finished products, stoner health consciousness, worldwide credit cmmditand U.S. government fore
aid. From time to time, the Company enters intarsgements with its suppliers of raw materials pans to which these suppliers buy back
Company'’s finished products.

COMPETITION

Management of the Company believes that the maapettive aspect of the business is the procuremkrdaw materials rather th
the sale of finished products. During the lastpérs years, pronounced consolidation within thepacking industry has resulted in bic
and more efficient slaughtering operations, theonitgj of which utilize “captive”processors (rendering operations integrated wighntleat c
poultry packing operation). Simultaneously, thenber of small meat packers, which have historiceéign a dependable source of suppl
non-<captive processors, has decreased significanttthodgh the total amount of slaughtering may bé dlaonly moderately increasing,
availability, quantity and quality of raw materiasailable to the independent processors from thkeseces have all decreased. These fe
have been offset, in part, however, by increasingrenmental consciousness. The need for foodicerestablishments to comply w
environmental regulations concerning the propepasal of used restaurant cooking oil is offeringyrawth area for this raw matel
source. The rendering and restaurant servicessinds are highly fragmented and very competitiVee Company competes with ot
rendering and restaurant services businesses tardatlve methods of disposal of animal processipgroducts and used restaurant coo
oil provided by trash haulers, waste managementpeoies and biaiesel companies, as well as the alternative efjdl disposal. Maji
competitors for the collection of raw material indé: Baker Commodities in the West and Griffindstties in Texas and the Southeast. |
of these businesses competes in both the RendanddRestaurant Services segments. Another majopetitor in the restaurant servi
business is Restaurant Technologies, Inc.

In marketing its finished products domestically aimoad, the Company faces competition from othecgssors and from produc
of other suitable commodities. Tallows and greases in certain instances, substitutes for soyl®band palm stearine, while MBM i
substitute for soybean meal. Consequently, theeprbf tallow, yellow grease and MBM correlate witiese substitute commodities. -
markets for finished products are impacted maiglyhe worldwide supply of and demand for fats, ,giloteins and grains.

SEASONALITY

The amount of raw materials made available to tben@any by its suppliers is relatively stable on eeldy basis except for thc
weeks which include major holidays, during whick #vailability of raw materials declines becaus¢omaeat and poultry processors are
operating. Weather is also a factor. Extremelymvaveather adversely affects the ability of the @any to make higher quality produ
because the raw material deteriorates more rapiidlyg in cooler weather, while extremely cold weatle certain instances, can hinder
collection of raw materials. Weather can vary #igantly from one year to the next and may impaamparability of operating results of
Company between periods.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Company maintains valuable trademarks, semiaeks, copyrights, trade names, trade secretsriptafy technologies ai
similar intellectual property, and considers itsellectual property to be of material value. Thenfpany has registered or applied
registration of certain of its intellectual properincluding the tricolor triangle used in the Camng’s signage and logos and the na
"Darling,” "Darling Restaurant Services" and "Cl8&r." Company policy generally is to pursue ietbal property protection conside
necessary or advisable.

EMPLOYEES AND LABOR RELATIONS

As of December 29, 2007, the Company employed &jrpedely 1,880 persons fulime. Approximately 45.7% of the total numbe
employees are covered by collective bargainingeagents; however, the Company has no national oti-plaht union contracts. Managerm
believes that the Comparsytelations with its employees and their represdmetm are good. There can be no assurance, howiagrnev
agreements will be reached without union actiowitirbe on terms satisfactory to the Company.

REGULATIONS

The Company is subject to the rules and regulatafngarious federal, state and local governmenggnaies. Material rules a
regulations and the applicable agencies include:

« The Food and Drug AdministratiofiFDA”), which regulates food and feed safety. Effectivegédst 1997, the FDA promulgate:
rule prohibiting the use of mammalian proteins,msbme exceptions, in feeds for cattle, sheep #mel ouminant animals (21 Cl
589.2000, referred to herein as the “BSE Feed RulBie intent of this rule is to prevent further spred BSE, commonly referred
as“mad cow diseas” Company management believes the Company is in ¢angg with the provisions of this rul

Interim regulations published by the FDA in 2004l amended in 2006 prohibit: 1) specified risk mater(“SRM”) from human foo

and 2) SRM and materials from non-ambulatory oddesttle from cosmetics. Edible BFT that is eiterived from SRMk¥ee rav

materials or contains less than 0.15% insolubleuiitips are permitted in human food supplementsastnetics. Derivatives of Bl

(glycerin and fatty acids) are exempt from theggilations.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors — The Company’s busimeag be affected by the impact of BSE and other feafégty issues,for more

information regarding certain FDA rules that affded Company’s business, including a proposed amentto the BSE Feed Rule.
« The United States Department of Agricultuf@SDA”), which regulates collection and production methadéthin the USDA, twi

agencies exercise direct regulatory oversight @f@bmpan’s activities:

— Animal and Plant Health Inspection Serv(* APHIS") certifies facilities and claims made for exportedtemials, anc

— Food Safety Inspection Servi(*FSIS") regulates sanitation and food safety progre

On December 30, 2003, the Secretary of Agriculameounced new beef slaughter/meat processing t&mgdo assure consumer

the safety of the meat supply. These regulationsipit nonambulatory animals from entering the food chaimuiee removal ¢

SRM at slaughter and prohibit carcasses from ctatied for BSE from entering the food chain uthi@d animals are shown nega
for BSE.

« The Environmental Protection AgendyEPA”), which regulates air and water discharge requirespesg well as local and st
agencies governing air and water discha

« State Departments of Agriculturevhich regulate animal by-product collection arahsportation procedures and animal feed quality.
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« The United States Department of TransportatidSDOT”"), as well as local and state agencies, which regtitateperation of tt
Compan’s commercial vehicle:

» The Securities and Exchange Commiss(* SEC"), which regulates securities and information requirednnual and quarterly repc
filed by publicly traded companie

These material rules and regulations and othes larhel regulations promulgated by other agenciesinfilagnce the Company’s
operating results at one or more facilities.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Gomwigs required to file annual, quarterly and spleports, proxy stateme
and other information with the SEC, which can badrand/or copies made at the SE@ublic Reference Room at 100 F Street N.E., F
1580, Washington D.C. 20549. Please call the SEG&00-SECA330 for further information about the Public Refezte Room. The SE
maintains a web site at http://www.sec.gbat contains reports, proxy and information staets, and other information regarding issuers
file electronically with the SEC. The Company dilelectronically with the SEC.

The Company makes available, free of charge, thratsgnvestor relations web site, its reports annrs
10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, and amendments to those repastsoon as reasonably practicable after thefjlede
with, or furnished to, the SEC pursuant to Seclid(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.

The Company’'s website is__http://www.darlingii.coand the address for the Companyinvestor relations web site
http://www.darlingii.com/investors/investorgsp.

ITEM RISK FACTORS
1A.

Any investment in the Company will be subject $ksrinherent to the Compasybusiness. Before making an investment decia
the Company, you should carefully consider thesridgéscribed below together with all of the othdoimation included in or incorporated
reference into this report. If any of the evenésdaibed in the following risk factors actually ocs, the Companyg’ business, financi
condition, prospects or results of operations cdaoddmaterially and adversely affected. If anyhafse events occurs, the trading price o
Company'’s securities could decline and you may #biser part of your investment.

The Company’s results of operations and cash flow ay be reduced by decreases in the market price déiproducts.

The Companys finished products are commodities, the pricestoth are quoted on established commodity markatordingly
the Companys results of operations will be affected by fluttols in the prevailing market prices of thesedimdd products. A significe
decrease in the market price of the Company’s prsdwould have a material adverse effect on the gamyis results of operations and ¢
flow.

The most competitive aspect of the Company’s busieg is the procurement of raw materials.

The Company’s management believes that the mospetitive aspect of the Compasybusiness is the procurement of raw mate
rather than the sale of finished products. Pronedrconsolidation within the meat packing industag resulted in bigger and more effic
slaughtering operations, the majority of which inél “captive” processors. Simultaneously, the number of smaltmeackers, which ha
historically been a dependable source of supplynéorcaptive processors, such as the Company, has dedrsignificantly. Although the to
amount of slaughtering may be flat or only moddyatecreasing, the availability, quantity and qtyalof raw materials available to 1
independent processors from these sources hadeakased. In addition, the Company has seencagaie in the use of restaurant grea
the production of bio-diesel. A significant degean available raw materials could materially adgersely affect the Compamsybusiness ai
results of operations.
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The rendering and restaurant services industryighljh fragmented and very competitive. The Compamynpetes with oth
rendering and restaurant services businesses tardaive methods of disposal of animal procesbiygroducts and used restaurant coo
oil provided by trash haulers, waste managementeoies and bialiesel companies, as well as the alternative efdl disposal. Dependi
on market conditions, the Company charges a caledee to offset a portion of the cost incurredcilecting raw material. To the ext
suppliers of raw materials look to alternate method disposal, whether as a result of the Comparyllection fees being deemed
expensive or otherwise, the Company’s raw matstigply will decrease and the Compangbllection fee revenues will decrease, whichd
materially and adversely affect the Company’s bessnand results of operations.

The Company may incur material costs and liabilities in complying with government regulations.

The Company is subject to the rules and regulatafngarious federal, state and local governmenggnaies. Material rules a
regulations and the applicable agencies include:

« The FDA, which regulates food and feed saf
« The USDA, including its agencies APHIS and FSISiclitegulates collection and production methc

« The EPA, which regulates air and water dischargpirements, as well as local and state agenciesrgmg air and wat
discharge

» State Departments of Agriculture, which regulatémeh byproduct collection and transportation procedured animal fee
quality;

« The USDOT, as well as local and state transportatigencies, which regulate the operation of the fzony's commercit
vehicles; ant

« The SEC, which regulates securities and informatémuired in annual and quarterly reports filecpoplicly traded companie

The applicable rules and regulations promulgatedhiege agencies may influence the Compamygerating results at one or
facilities. Furthermore, the loss of or failurediotain necessary federal, state or local permitisragistrations at one or more of the Company’
facilities could halt or curtail operations at ingpad facilities, which could adversely affect then@pany’s operating results. The Company’
failure to comply with applicable rules and regidas could subject it to: 1) administrative peredtiand injunctive relief; 2) civil remedi
including fines, injunctions and product recallega3) adverse publicity. There can be no asserémat the Company will not incur mate
costs and liabilities in connection with these suad regulations.

The Company is highly dependent on natural gas andiesel fuel.

The Companys operations are highly dependent on the use afalagas and diesel fuel. Energy prices for natyaa and diesel fu
are expected to remain relatively high throughdd®® The Company consumes significant volumesatfiml gas to operate boilers in
plants to generate steam to heat raw materialh H@tural gas prices represent a significant cogaaory operation included in cost
sales. The Company also consumes significant vedumf diesel fuel to operate its fleet of tractawsd trucks used to collect r
material. High diesel fuel prices represent a ificant component of cost of collection expensesluded in cost of sales. Though
Company will continue to manage these costs amingtt to minimize these expenses, prices are expéateemain relatively high in fisc
2008 and represent an ongoing challenge to the @oygoperating results for future periods. A matenalease in energy prices for nat
gas and diesel fuel over a sustained period of timdd materially adversely affect the Companusiness, financial condition and result
operations. See Item 7, “Management’s DiscussiohAnalysis,” for a recent history of natural gacing.

Multi-employer defined benefit pension plans to whih the Company contributes may be under-funded.

The Company contributes to several meliployer defined benefit pension plans based oigatibns arising under collecti
bargaining agreements covering union-representqulogiees. The Company does not manage these emftioyer plans. Based upon
most currently available information from plan adisirators, some of which information is more tlzagear old, the Company believes
some of these multi-employer plans are urfdaded due partially to a decline in the valueh® assets supporting these plans, a reduct
the number of actively participating members forowhemployer contributions are required and thelle¥/éenefits provided by the plans.
addition, the Pension Protection Act, enacted igusi 2006, will require unddunded pension plans to improve their funding atigthir
prescribed intervals based on the level of thedtewrfunding beginning as early as 2008. As a tetheé Companys required contributions
these plans may increase in the future. Furthegmonder current law regarding multi-employer deéi benefit plans, any of a plan’
termination, the Company’s voluntary withdrawalnfr@ny underfunded plan, or the mass withdrawal of all conttiilbg employers from ar
under-funded multi-employer defined benefit plamwd require the Company to make payments to the fir the Companyg’ proportionat
share of the multi-employer plan’s unfunded vediadilities. Moreover, if a multemployer defined benefit plan fails to satisfy a@n
minimum funding requirements, the Internal ReveBaevice may impose a nondeductible excise tax ob%he amount of the accumule
funding deficiency for those employers contributiogthe fund. Requirements to pay increased dmutidns, withdrawal liability and exci



taxes could negatively impact the Company’s ligyidind results of operations.
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The Company’s business may be affected by the impaaf BSE and other food safety issues.

Effective August 1997, the FDA promulgated the BRfed Rule in an effort to prevent the spread of H¥#ection of the first case
BSE in the U.S. in December 2003 resulted in aolditi U.S. government regulations, finished prodexport restrictions by forei
governments, market price fluctuations for the Canys finished products and reduced demand for beef la@ef products
consumers. Even though the export markets for be8f have been significantly opened, most of these markets remain closed to
derived from U.S. beef. Continued concern about BSthe U.S. may result in additional regulatondanarket related challenges that |
affect the Company’s operations or increase the g2my's operating costs.

The following are recent developments and recenilatory history with respect to BSE in the U.S.:

« On January 18, 2008, APHIS published a final rt@drification Rule”) that addressed discrepancies in import regulaioaated i
2005 when a final rule allowing the importationazfttle and bovine products derived from countriesimg a minimal risk for BS
(“Minimal Risk Rule”)was implemented. The Minimal Risk Rule classifte@hada as a minimal risk country. The ClarificatiRule
became effective on February 19, 2008 and allowdymts derived from poultry and pork processechéndame facility as Canad
beef to be imported into the U.S. Regulationsdiifg the importation of pork and poultry produetere not harmonized with t
Minimal Risk Rule to recognize countries classifiggl a minimal risk for BSE. As a result, imports@dnadian pork and poul
products processed in the same facility as Canadesf were prohibited until the Clarification Ruleent into effect. Impo
regulations may affect the Compi's access to raw materials for process

« On November 19, 2007, APHIS implemented revisedoimpegulations that allowed Canadian cattle ov@ntnths of age and bc
after March 1, 1999 and bovine products derivedthfsuch cattle to be imported into the US for ang. usiports of Canadian cal
younger than 30 months of age have been allowex $itarch 2005. Canada banned the skull, brairgrtrigal ganglia, eyes, tons
spinal cord and dorsal root ganglia of cattle ageanonths or older and the distal ileum of catflalbages from all animal feed, |
food and fertilizers on July 12, 2007. Canada plehibits the exportation of such materi:

« On May 22, 2007, a report released by the Worlda@ization for Animal Health* OIE”) formally classified the U.S. as"controllec
risk” country for BSE. In the same report, the OIE resmnded tightening feed rules in the U.S. and elatig SRM from the fee
chain as Canada has done. The OIE advised tha¢pimplementation of an SRM ban in the U.S. wdldbkey factor in maintaining
controlled risk status for BSI

« In 2005, the FDA proposed to amend the BSE Feed Bylalso prohibiting from the food or feed of atflimals: (1) brain and spi
cord from cattle 30 months and older that are iosggkand passed for human consumption; (2) thie brad spinal cord from cattle
any age not inspected and passed for human consumphd (3) the entire carcass of cattle not éespd and passed for hur
consumption if the brain and spinal cord has nenbemoved (“Proposed Rule”)n addition, the Proposed Rule provides that te
containing more than 0.15% insoluble impuritiesoalt®e banned from all animal food and feed if tllotv is derived from tt
proposed prohibited materials. In November 206&,RDA submitted a final draft of the Proposed Ruléhe Office of Manageme
and Budget (“OMB")for review. The OMB is an office of the White Heuand is typically allowed up to 90 days to revigmeposec
interim and final rules submitted by regulatory agjes, among its other functions. Once its reviaompleted, the OMB may allc
the FDA to publish the Proposed Rule as a fina nrlrecommend the FDA address economic or otsaessbefore submitting it
the OMB again. Although management will continaemonitor the Proposed Rule and other regulatmyes, it is possible that.
implemented, the Proposed Rule or other FDA regufasction could negatively impact the Compangperations and financ
performance
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The occurrence of BSE in the U.S. may raaudtdditional finished product export restrictidnsforeign governments, market price
fluctuations for the Company’s finished products/an reduced demand for beef and beef product®hgumers. Legislative and regulatory
efforts to address BSE concerns and preempt adtities of feed ingredients, may result in additldn&. government regulations and/or
increase the Company’s operating costs.

The following are recent developments with respe¢tuman food, pet food and animal feed safetydhage during 2007:

« On November 7, 2007, the FDA released its Foodeetion Plan (the “2007 Plan"yhich describes prevention, intervention
response strategies the FDA proposes to use forowimg food and animal feed safety for imported atmmestically produce
ingredients and products. The 2007 Plan also #siditional resources and authorities that, in tBAT opinion, are needed
implement the 2007 Plan. Legislation will be neeeg for the FDA to obtain these additional auttiesi As of February 18, 20(
Congress has not granted these authorities toide

« On September 27, 2007, the Food and Drug AdmitistraAmendments Act of 2007 (the “2007 Actijas signed into law as a re:
of Congressional concern for pet food and livestieed safety, following the discovery of adultechimported pet food and livestc
feed in March 2007. The 2007 Act directs the Sacyeof Health and Human Services and the FDA tmuigate significant ne
requirements for the pet food and animal feed itvthss The impact of the 2007 Act on the Compaiilyvot be clear until the FD
interprets the 2007 Act and issues guidance orgaepnew regulation

The Company’s business may be negatively impacted la significant outbreak of avian influenza (“Bird Flu”) in the U.S.

Avian influenza (“H5N1"),or Bird Flu, a highly contagious disease that @affehickens and other poultry species, is welll#istiaec
in Asia and periodically spreads into Europe. TH&NH strain is highly pathogenic, which has caussttern that a pandemic could occur if
disease migrates from birds to humans. This higidthogenic strain was not detected in North or BdMmnerica during 2007, but Ic
pathogenic strains that are not a threat to huneaaitth were reported in the U.S. and Canada duhiag geriod. The USDA has develo
safeguards to protect the U.S. poultry industryrfrine H5N1 strain of Bird Flu. These safeguards l@sed on import restrictions, dise
surveillance and a response plan for isolatingdepbpulating infected flocks if the disease is deetg. Notwithstanding these safeguards.
significant outbreak of Bird Flu in the U.S. colldve a negative impact on the Company’s businesedycing demand for MBM.

The Company'’s ability to achieve the benefits restihg from the Transaction.

On May 15, 2006, the Company completed the acuisivf substantially all of the assets of NBP witie expectation that t
Transaction would result in mutual benefits inchgliamong other things, revenue growth, diverdificaof raw material supplies and
creation of a larger platform to grow the restatiservices segment. Although the operational amdimidtrative phase of this integration
been substantially completed and many of theseotapens have been realized, any future goodwilpaimment charges that the Comp
might incur with respect to the assets of NBP caififdct the Company’s ability to achieve the fudhiefits of the Transaction.
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Certain of the Company’s 39 operating facilities ae highly dependent upon a few suppliers.

Certain of the Compang’rendering facilities are highly dependent on ona few suppliers. Should any of these supplifizos:
alternate methods of disposal, cease their opestisave their operations interrupted by casualtptberwise cease using the Company’
collection services, these operating facilities nmmy materially and adversely affected, which comnldterially and adversely affect
Company.

The Company'’s success is dependent on the Companisy personnel.

The Companys success depends to a significant extent upon rabewu of key employees, including members of st
management. The loss of the services of one oe mbthese key employees could have a materialraeh\affect on the Comparsytesults ¢
operations and prospects. The Company believestshfuture success will depend in part on itdigbto attract, motivate and retain skil
technical, managerial, marketing and sales persor@@mpetition for these types of skilled persdriséntense and there can be no assul
that the Company will be successful in attractimgtivating and retaining key personnel. The fa&lto hire and retain these personnel ¢
materially adversely affect the Company’s busiress results of operations.

In certain markets the Company is highly dependentipon the continued and uninterrupted operation of asingle operating facility.

Darling’s facilities are subject to various federal, statd local environmental and other permitting regmients, depending on tt
locations. Periodically, these permits may beeeed and subject to amendment or withdrawal. Apgibns for an extension or renewa
various permits may be subject to challenge by canity and environmental activists and others. Ha &vent of a casualty, condemnat
work stoppage, permitting withdrawal or delay dnestunscheduled shutdown involving one of the Comsafacilities, in a majority of tt
Companys markets the Company would utilize a nearby opegdhcility to continue to serve its customerghe affected market. In cert
markets, however, the Company does not have ateeapeerating facilities. In the event of a cagyadbndemnation, work stoppage, permit
withdrawal or delay or other unscheduled shutdowthese markets, the Company may experience amupt®n in its ability to service i
customers and to procure raw materials. This materially and adversely affect the Companpusiness and results of operations in t
markets. In addition, after an operating facitiffected by a casualty, condemnation, work stopppgemitting withdrawal or delay or ott

unscheduled shutdown is restored, there could bassarance that customers who in the interim chtmsese alternative disposal serv
would return to use the Company’s services.

Restrictions imposed by the Companys credit agreement and future debt agreements mayniit its ability to finance future operations
or capital needs or engage in other business actiés that may be in the Company’s interest.

The Company'’s credit agreement currently, and &tlebt agreements may, restrict its ability to:

« incur additional indebtedness;

« pay dividends and make other distributic

« make restricted payments;

« create liens

. merge, consolidate or acquire other businesses;

. sell or otherwise dispose of assets;

« make investments, loans and advan

« guarantee indebtedness or other obligations;

« enter into operating leases or sale-leasebackhsioteases, or similar transactions;
« make changes to its capital structure;

« engage in new lines of business unrelated to thepaay’s current businesses.

These terms may negatively impact the Camgaability to finance future operations, implenhés business strategy, fund its
capital needs or engage in other business actiult@ may be in its interest. In addition, then(Pany's credit agreement requires, and fut



indebtedness may require, the Company to maintaimptiance with specified financial ratios. Althduthe Company is currently in
compliance with the financial ratios and does dahn engaging in transactions that may caus€tmepany not to be in compliance with the
ratios, its ability to comply with these ratios mag affected by events beyond its control, inclgdime risks described in the other risk factors

and elsewhere in this report.
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A breach of any restrictive covenant or the Compsuiyability to comply with any required financiatio could result in a defa
under the credit agreement. In the event of auliefender the credit agreement, the lenders urttectedit agreement may elect to declar
borrowings outstanding, together with accrued amuhid interest and other fees, to be immediate¢yahd payable.

The lenders will also have the right in these aimstances to terminate any commitments they haverdeide further financin
including under the revolving credit facility.

If the Company is unable to repay these borrowingen due, whether as a result of accelerationefigbt or otherwise, the lend
under the credit agreement will have the right tocped against the collateral, which consists distntially all of the Compang’asset
including real property and cash. If the indeb&sinunder the credit agreement were accelerae@dmpanys assets may be insufficien
repay this indebtedness in full under those cirdames. Any future credit agreements or other eagemt relating to the Compansy’
indebtedness to which the Company may become g ey include the covenants described above aref atistrictive covenants.

The Company'’s ability to pay any dividends on its emmon stock may be limited.

The Company has not paid any dividends on its comstock since January 3, 1989. The Compayrrent financing arrangeme
permit the Company to pay cash dividends on itsmomstock within limitations defined in its credigreement. Any future determinatior
pay cash dividends on the Company’'s common stodlkbeiat the discretion of the Compasyoard of directors and will be based upor
Companys financial condition, operating results, capituirements, plans for expansion, restrictions igepldby any financing arrangeme
and any other factors that the board of direct@teminines are relevant. Furthermore, the Compaalyikty to pay any cash or nasast
dividends on its common stock is subject to appliegrovisions of state law and to the terms otitdit agreement.

The market price of the Company’s common stock codlbe volatile.

The market price of the Company’s common stockldees subject to volatility and, in the future, tharket price of the Comparyy’
common stock could fluctuate widely in responsaumerous factors, many of which are beyond the Gmyp control. These factors inclu
among other things, fluctuations in commodities@si actual or anticipated variations in the Comfmpperating results, earnings release
the Company, changes in financial estimates byr#eaianalysts, sales of substantial amounts ef @ompanys common stock, mark
conditions in the industry and the general stat¢hefsecurities markets, governmental legislatiomegulation, currency and exchange
fluctuations, as well as general economic and maxteditions, such as recessions.

The Company may issue additional common stock or pferred stock, which could dilute shareholder inteests.
The Companys certificate of incorporation, as amended, dodslimit the issuance of additional common stocklar issuance

preferred stock. As of February 15, 2008, the Camyphas available for issuance 18,440,534 authblize unissued shares of common s
and 1,000,000 authorized but unissued shares fdrped stock that may be issued in series.
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The Company could incur a material weakness in it;iternal control over financial reporting that requ ires remediation.

The Companys disclosure controls and procedures were deemée &ffective in fiscal 2007. However, any futdadures by th
Company to maintain the effectiveness of its disgte controls and procedures, including its intecoatrol over financial reporting, cot
subject the Company to a loss of public confideinciés internal control over financial reportingdaim the integrity of the Compars/public
filings and financial statements and could harm @mnpanys operating results or cause the Company to faiintely meet its regulato
reporting obligations. Consequences of a materégdkness such as those listed in the foregoingseatcould have a negative effect or
trading price of the Company’s stock.

Terrorist attacks or acts of war may cause damageradisruption to the Company and its employees, fatities, information systems
security systems, suppliers and customers, which @d significantly impact the Company’s net sales, costs and expenses and finan
condition.

Terrorist attacks, such as those that occurredepteghber 11, 2001, have contributed to economialdilgy in the U.S., and further acts
terrorism, bioterrorism, violence or war could affehe markets in which the Company operates, tomganys business operations,

Company’s expectations and other forwérdking statements contained or incorporated is taport. The threat of terrorist attacks in th8
since September 11, 2001 continues to create mzomnyoeic and political uncertainties. The potenfitalfuture terrorist attacks, the U.S. i
international responses to terrorist attacks ahdraicts of war or hostility, including the ongoingr in Irag, may cause greater uncertainty
cause the Comparg/business to suffer in ways that cannot currebélypredicted. Events such as those referred toeabould cause

contribute to a general decline in investment viadna, which in turn could reduce the market vatfieshareholder investments. In addit
terrorist attacks, particularly acts of bioterraristhat directly impact the Company’s facilitiestbose of the Company’suppliers or custome
could have an impact on the Company’s sales, sugipdyn, production capability and costs and the gamy’s ability to deliver its finishe
products.

ITEM UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
1B.

None.

ITEM PROPERTIES
2.

The Company’s corporate headquarters is locate2bhtO'Connor Ridge Boulevard, Suite 300, Irving, Texasan office facility
where the Company leases approximately 27,000 sdeat.

The Companys 39 operating facilities consist of 25 full seesicendering plants, six yellow grease/trap plafugy blending plant
one edible meat plant, one technical tallow plang hides plant and one pet food plant. Excepthicre leased facilities, all of these facili
are owned by the Company. In addition, the Compamys or leases 36 transfer stations in the UdBesof which also process yellow gre
and trap. These transfer stations serve as dolfepbints for routing raw material to the procegsplants set forth below. Some locati
service a single business segment while othersceeboth business segments. The following istafsof the Company operating facilitie
by business segment:
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LOCATION

DESCRIPTION

Combined Rendering and Restaurant Services BusineSgegments

Bellevue, NE
Berlin, WI

Blue Earth, MN
Boise, ID
Clinton, IA
Coldwater, Ml
Collinsville, OK
Dallas, TX
Denver, CC
Des Moines, |A
Detroit, Ml

E. St. Louis, IL
Fresno, CA
Houston, TX
Kansas City, K¢
Los Angeles, C#
Mason City, IL
Newark, NJ
San Francisco, CA
Sioux City, 1A
Tacoma, WA *
Turlock, CA
Wahoo, NE
Wichita, KS

Rendering Business Segment
Denver, CC

Fairfax, MO

Grand Island, NE -

Kansas City, K¢

Kansas City, MC

Lynn Center, IL

Omaha, NE

Omaha, NE

Omaha, NE

Restaurant Services Business Segment

Chicago, IL

Ft. Lauderdale, Fl
Indianapolis, IN
Little Rock, AR
No. Las Vegas, N\
Tampa, FL

Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:

Edible Meat and Tallov
Protein Blending

Pet Fooc

Protein Blending

Hides

Protein Blending
Renderinc

Protein Blending
Technical Tallow

Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra,
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|

* Property is leased. Rent expense for these depisperties was $0.7 million in the aggregatasodl 2007

Substantially all assets of the Company, includigy property, are either pledged or mortgagetbéateral for borrowings under t
Company’s credit agreement.
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ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
3.

The Company is a party to several lawsuits, claimd loss contingencies arising in the ordinary sewf its business, includi
assertions by certain regulatory agencies relatedrt wastewater and storm water discharges fl@Company’s processing facilities.

The Company’s workers compensation, auto and gkliegndity policies contain significant deductitder selfinsured retentions. T
Company estimates and accrues its expected ultiohgita costs related to accidents occurring dugagh fiscal year and carries this accru
a reserve until these claims are paid by the Compan

As a result of the matters discussed above, thep@oynhas established loss reserves for insuramséroamental and litigatic
matters. At December 29, 2007 and December 30,208 reserves for insurance, environmental digétion contingencies reflected on
balance sheet in accrued expenses and othecuroent liabilities for which there are no insuramecoveries were approximately $17.1 mil
and $17.9 million, respectively. Management of @@npany believes these reserves for contingenogeseasonable and sufficient based t
present governmental regulations and informatiametilly available to management; however, therebzano assurance that final costs rel
to these matters will not exceed current estimaldsee Company believes that the likelihood is reatbiat any additional liability from the
lawsuits and claims that may not be covered byrarsze would have a material effect on the finarstialements.

In July 2007, a judgment was entered in a litigatinatter involving a contract dispute in which fiempany was a party. T
judgment required the Company to convey an unuseckepof property recorded on the books for appnately $500,000 to the counterp:
for that amount. In December 2007, a judgment &r@sred in the matter awarding the counterpartyaqmately $2.6 million in attorneys’
fees and costs. The Company filed appeals of jodgments. The Company settled this matter duthiegfirst quarter of fiscal 2008. Purst
to the terms of the settlement, the Company traredethe property to the counterparty for a purehasce of $500,000, paid the counterp
approximately $2.2 million towards attorneyses and costs and agreed to dismiss its pendipgapwith prejudice. In addition, the par
exchanged mutual releases. The Company has recardearge of $2.2 million for the attorneysés and costs in the fourth quarter of 2
which is included in selling, general and admimigtte expenses.

In June 2006, the Company was awarded damagegohamately $7.4 million as a result of a servigevider’s failure to provid
steam under a service agreement to one of the Guorigpplants. At the time the damages were awarddtictbility of such damages w
uncertain; however on October 12, 2006, the Comparigred into an agreement to sell its rights tthslamages to a third party for ¢
million in cash. The agreement was made subjecettain conditions which were satisfied on Mar¢2a07. On March 8, 2007, the Comp
received $2.2 million, completing the transactidrhe Company recorded a gain with the receipt ef$8.2 million in proceeds in the fi
quarter of 2007.

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDER S
4.

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitylexd during the quarter ended December 29, 2007.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Effective October 24, 2007, the Company transfeft@dommon stock listing to the New York Stock Bange (“NYSE")from the
American Stock Exchange (“AMEX”) under the symb&lAR”. The following table sets forth, for the quarterdigated, the high and Ic
closing sales prices per share for the Companytsoon stock as reported on the NYSE and AMEX, as@pjate.

Market Price

Fiscal Quarte High Low
2007:
First Quarte $ 6.6C $ 5.17
Second Quarte $ 9.47 $ 6.2¢
Third Quartel $ 10.1% $ 7.31
Fourth Quarte $ 12.1C $ 9.34
2006:
First Quarte $ 4.8( $ 3.7¢
Second Quarte $ 4.92 $ 3.91
Third Quartel $ 4.5¢ $ 3.9t
Fourth Quarte $ 5.5 $ 3.9¢

On February 15, 2008, the closing sales price efGompanys common stock on the NYSE was $12.91. The Compasybee
notified by its stock transfer agent that as ofriaby 15, 2008, there were 135 holders of recorth@fcommon stock.

The Company has not paid any dividends on its comstock since January 3, 1989 and does not expguayt cash dividends
2008. The Company’ current financing arrangements permit the Compangay cash dividends on its common stock withnithtions
defined in its credit agreement. Any future deteation to pay cash dividends on the Comparggmmon stock will be at the discretion of
Company’s board of directors and will be based utien Companys financial condition, operating results, capitafjuirements, plans 1
expansion, restrictions imposed by any financingregements, and any other factors that the boaddettors determines are relevant.

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the cleaimgthe cumulative total stockholder return on @@npanys common stock wi
the cumulative total return of the Russell 3000eidhe Dow Jones US Waste and Disposal Serviex|rahd the CSFBlelson Agribusines
Index for the period from December 28, 2002 to Daoer 29, 2007, assuming the investment of $100 enebber 28, 2002 and
reinvestment of dividends.

The stock price performance shown on the followgngph only reflects the change in the Comparsgbck price relative to the no
indices and is not necessarily indicative of futpriee performance.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table sets forth certain informatiaa of December 29, 2007 with respect to the Comigagyuity compensation ple
(including individual compensation arrangementsjarnwhich the Compang’equity securities are authorized for issuancgreggted by i) &
compensation plans previously approved by the Caoyipasecurity holders, and ii) all compensation plaos previously approved by t
Company’s security holders. The table includes:

« the number of securities to be issued upon theceseeof outstanding option
« the weighted-average exercise price of the outgstgrmptions; and

« the number of securities that remain availablddture issuance under the pla
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(©)

Number of
securities remainin
(@) available
Number of securitie (b) for future issuance
to be issued upon  Weighted-average under equity
exercise of exercise price of  compensation plar
outstanding outstanding (excluding securitie
options, warrants options, warrants  reflected in column
Plan Categor and rights and rights (@)
Equity compensation plans
approved
by security holder 1,320,70/(1) $ 3.0¢ 3,481,74.
Equity compensation plans
not
approved by security
holders - — —
Tota 1,320,70! $ 3.0¢ 3,481,74.

(1) Includes shares underlying options that have besued pursuant to the Compan004 Omnibus Incenti
Plan (the “2004 Plan”) as approved by the Comparsgockholders. See Note 11 of Notes to Conselt
Financial Statements for information regardingniegerial features of the 2004 PI;
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
6.

SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected consolidatéstorical financial data for the periods indicatethe selected historic
consolidated financial data set forth below shdagdread in conjunction with “ManagemenDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operationshd the Consolidated Financial Statements of thepgamy for the three years ended December 29, ZD8Fmbe
30, 2006, and December 31, 2005, and the relattes tioereto.

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 200¢€  Fiscal 200t  Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 200z
Fifty-two Fifty-two Fifty-two Fifty-two  Fifty-three
Weeks EndedWeeks Ended Weeks Ended Weeks Ende Weeks Ende
December 2¢ December 30, December 31, January 1, January 3,
2007 2006 (g) 2005 2005 2004
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Statement of Operations

Data:
Net sales $645,31:  $406,99C $308,867 $320,22¢ $323,26
Cost of sales an
operating
expenses (i 483,45! 321,41¢ 241,70° 237,92! 245,17!

Selling, general an
administrative

expenses (t 57,99¢ 45,64¢ 35,24( 36,50¢ 35,80¢
Depreciation an
amortization 23,21« 20,68¢ 15,78 15,22¢ 15,12+
Operating incom 80,64" 19,23¢ 16,13 30,57 27,16(
Interest expens 5,04¢ 7,18¢ 6,157 6,75¢ 2,36:
Other (income)/expens
net (c) (d) 57C 4,68 (903) 29¢ (3,919
Income from continuin
operations
before income taxe 75,03: 7,37 10,87¢ 23,51 28,71
29,
Income tax expense 49¢ 2, 26€ 3,184 9, 24F 10,63
Income from continuing
operations 45,53: 5,107 7,69t 14,26¢ 18,07¢

Income/(loss) fron
discontinued
operations, net of tax - - 46 (376€) 112
45, 5,
Net Income $ 53: % 107 $ 7,741 $13,89z $18,191

Basic earnings per
common shar $ 05 $ 007 $ 01z $ 022 $ 0.2¢
Diluted earnings pe
common shar $ 05¢ $ 007 $ 01z $ 02z $ 0.2¢
Weighted averag
shares
outstanding 80,77 74,31( 63,92¢ 63,84( 62,58¢
Diluted weightec
average shares
outstanding 81,89¢ 75,25¢ 64,52¢ 64,46 63,18¢

Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA (e, $103,86: $ 39,92t $ 31,92( $ 45,79¢ $ 42,28¢
Depreciatior 18,33: 16,13« 11,90: 11,34¢ 10,95¢
Amortization 4,88: 4,557 3,884 3,87¢ 4,16¢
Capital expenditures ( 15,55: 11,80( 21,40¢ 13,31: 11,58¢



Balance Sheet Data

Working capital $ 3438 ¢ 17,86 $ 40,407 $ 39,60: $ 31,18¢
Total asset 351,33t 320,80t 190,77: 182,80¢ 174,64¢
Current portion of long-

term debt 6,25( 5,00¢ 5,02¢ 5,03( 7,48¢

Total lon¢-term debt
less current

portion 37,50( 78,00( 44,50: 49,52¢ 48,18t¢
Stockholder’ equity 200,98 151,32! 73,68( 67,23" 55,28:

(a) Included in cost of sales and operating expensaséttlement with certain past insurers of appnaxéely $2.8 millio
recorded in fiscal 2004 as a credit (recovery)laiings expense and previous insurance premil

(b) Included in selling, general and administrative enges is a loss on a legal settlement of approzlyn&2.2 millior
offset by a gain on a separate legal settlemeappfoximately $1.0 million in fiscal 200

(c) Included in other (income)/expense in fiscal 2008& ivriteoff of deferred loan costs of approximately $2.@#lion anc
early retirement fees of approximately $1.9 millfon the early retirement of senior subordinatetee@nd terminatic
of the previous senior credit agreems

(d) Included in other (income)/expense is gain on ealiyement of debt of approximately $1.3 millianfiscal 2004 ar

$4.7 million in fiscal 2003. Also included in othéincome)/expense is loss on redemption of preterstock ¢
approximately $1.7 million in fiscal 200
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(e) Adjusted EBITDA is presented here not as an alter@ao net income, but rather as a measure ofGbmpany:
operating performance and is not intended to beesemtation in accordance with generally acceptambuanting
principles. Since EBITDA is not calculated ideatlg by all companies, the presentation in thisorépnay not b
comparable to those disclosed by other compa

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated below and represefus,any relevant period, net income/(loss) pluprdeiation an
amortization, interest expense, (income)/loss fdiatontinued operations, net of tax, income taxigion and othe
income/(expense). The Company believes adjusted B8 is a useful measure for investors becauss fréquentl
used by securities analysts, investors and otherested parties in the evaluation of companiesun industry. i
addition, management believes that adjusted EBIT®dseful in evaluating our operating performanampared to th
of other companies in our industry because theutstion of adjusted EBITDA generally eliminates thfects o
financing, income taxes and certain reash and other items that may vary for differemhpanies for reasons unrels
to overall operating performance. As a result, @@nmpanys management uses adjusted EBITDA as a meas
evaluate performance and for other discretionarp@ses. However, adjusted EBITDA is not a recogghimeasureme
under U.S. GAAP, should not be considered as amrative to net income as a measure of operatgtseor to cas
flow as a measure of liquidity, and is not intendedbe a presentation in accordance with genesaaitepted accounti
principles. Also, since adjusted EBITDA is notadhted identically by all companies, the presémtain this repol
may not be comparable to those disclosed by otirapanies

In addition to the foregoing, management also wsewill use adjusted EBITDA to measure compliandéhveertair
financial covenants under the Compangtedit agreement. The amounts shown below fiustetl EBITDA differ fron
the amounts calculated under similarly titled digfims in the Companyg’ credit agreement, as those definitions pe
further adjustment to reflect certain other -cash charge:

Reconciliation of Net tmme to Adjusted EBITDA

Decembe
29, December 3( December 3: January 1 January &
(dollars in thousand: 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004
Net income $ 45537 % 5107 $ 7,741 $ 13,89 $ 18,19
Depreciation an
amortization 23,21 20,68¢ 15,783 15,22¢ 15,124
Interest expens 5,04t 7,18¢ 6,157 6,75¢ 2,363
(Income)/loss fron
discontinued
operations, net of
tax - - (46) 37¢€ (112
Income tax expens 29,49¢ 2,26¢€ 3,18¢ 9,24t 10,63:
Other
(income)/expense 57C 4,68 (903) 29¢ (3,919
103,86
Adjusted EBITDA $ 13 39,92 $ 31,92( $ 45,79 $ 42,28¢

(H Excludes the capital assets acquired as part cftantially all of the assets of NBP of approximat$51.9 million ir
fiscal 2006.

(g) Fiscal 2006 includes 33 weeks of contribution friv® acquired NBP asse
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ITEM MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
7.

The following Management’s Discussion and Ami of Financial Condition and Results of Operadi@ontains forwardboking
statements that involve risks and uncertaintidse Tompany’s actual results could differ materidttym those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of certain facioduding those set forth in Item 1A of this reporider the heading “Risk Factors.”

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the historical consolidated financial staents and notes thereto inclu
in Item 8 of this report. The Company is organiaémhg two operating business segments, Rendenddrastaurant Services. See Note
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Overview

The Company is a leading provider of renderingycbieg and recovery solutions to the natifdod industry. The Company colle
and recycles animal byroducts and used cooking oil from food servicald&hments and provides grease trap cleaningcgsrtd many of tt
same establishments. The Compargperations are organized into two segments: Rendand Restaurant Services. With the May 19g
acquisition of substantially all of the assets (thieansaction”) of National By-Products, LLC (“NBR"the Company now processes such
materials at 39 facilities located throughout th& Unto finished products such as protein (prifgameat and bone meal, “MBM"}allow
(primarily bleachable fancy tallow, “BFT"), yellogrease (“YG")and hides. The Company sells these products raditjosnd internationall
primarily to producers of oleo-chemicals, Hiels, soaps, pet foods, leather goods and livested for use as ingredients in their produc
for further processing. The Compasyyear end results for fiscal 2007 include 52 weeksontribution from the assets acquired in
Transaction, as compared to 33 weeks of contributiom these assets in fiscal 2006. For additiam@rmation on the Company’busines
see Item 1, “Business,” and for additional inforioaton the Company’s segments, see Note 15 of Not€®nsolidated Financial Statements.

During fiscal 2007 the Company benefited from digantly higher finished product prices. Highenifhed product prices ¢
indicative of tightening grain and oilseed supplieven by a combination of new demand for hiets, growing consumption from China i
India, and back-tdrack droughts in various grain and oilseed prodycagions of the world. Raw material volumes inyae modestly durir
fiscal 2007, but export markets in most foreign rdoes for U.S. produced finished beef products aadtle byproducts remaine
closed. Fiscal 2007 also reflects the integragiod resulting synergies of the Transaction comgleteMay 15, 2006. The Company contir
to face challenges relating to volatile commoditgrkets, volatile natural gas and diesel prices @amgkttled trade issues in relation to |
production and exports of its finished products.

Operating income increased by $61.4 million indis2007 compared to fiscal 2006. The continuinglleinges faced by the Compi

indicate there can be no assurance that operamdts achieved by the Company in fiscal 2007 radecative of future operating performal
of the Company.

Summary of Critical Issues Faced by the Company diing Fiscal 2007

« Higher finished product prices are indicative ghtiening grain and oilseed supplies driven by alioation of new demand for bio-
fuels, growing consumption from China and Indiad drack-toback droughts in various grain and oilseed prodycagions of th
world. Higher finished product prices were favdeatn the Companyg sales revenue, but this favorable result wasatigroffset by
the negative impact on raw material cost due toaGbmpanys formula pricing arrangements with raw materigd@iers, which inde
raw material cost to the prices of finished prodietived from the raw material. The financial iropaf finished goods prices on s¢
revenue and raw material cost is summarized beldiRésults of Operations.Comparative sales price information from the Jaec
index, an established trading exchange publishent by management, is listed below*Summary of Key Indicator’
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« The Company has the ability to burn alternativdsuimcluding its fats and greases, at a majorititsoplants as a way to help man
the Companys exposure to high natural gas prices. Beginniowlier 1, 2006, the federal government effectecbgram which wil
provide federal tax credits under certain circumsés for commercial use of alternative fuels i lo# fossilbased fuels. Beginnil
in the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company filed¢wmentation with the Internal Revenue Service (“)RB recover these Alternati
Fuel Mixture Credits as a result of its use of fatsl greases to fuel boilers at its plants. Thean@my has received approval from
IRS to apply for these credits. However, the fatergulations relating to the Alternative Fuel Mise Credits are complex and furt
clarification is needed by the Company prior toogrution of certain tax credits received. As ofcBmber 29, 2007, the Company
applied for and received approximately $1.9 milliarAlternative Fuel Mixture Credits from the IR8lating to these credits. Duri
the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company receivathér clarification on a portion of these tax ctedieceived and as a result
recorded approximately $1.2 million to income aseduction of energy costs. The remaining $0.7ionillof received credits &
included in current liabilities on the balance she deferred income while the Company pursuesidurtlarification. The Compa
expects to continue to burn alternative fuelssapiéints in future periods as long as the priceatdiral gas remains hig

« Raw material volumes during fiscal 2007 improveddesily as some of our export oriented supplierggssed additional volumr

and overall consumption of meat products improv@dntributing to this increase was a full fiscal y&d contribution from th
acquired NBP locations as compared to 33 weeksmifibution from these locations in fiscal 201

Summary of Critical Issues and Known Trends Faced pthe Company in Fiscal 2007 and Thereafter

BSE and Other Food Safety Issues

Effective August 1997, the FDA promulgated the Bsted Rule prohibiting the use of mammalian protenith some exceptions,
feeds for cattle, sheep and other ruminant aninTdds. intent of this rule is to prevent the spred®8E, commonly referred to asnad cov
disease.”As previously noted, the FDA has proposed an amentino the BSE Feed Rule. Management has follotiésl propose
amendment throughout its history in order to asaesgsminimize the impact of its implementation be Company. See the risk factor enti
“The Company’s business may be affected by the anp&BSE and other food safety issudsgginning on page 11, for more informa
about BSE, including the proposed amendment tdB®ie Feed Rule, and other food safety issues andpbtential effects on the Compa
including the effects of potential additional gaverent regulations, finished product export restitg by foreign governments, market p
fluctuations for finished goods, reduced demandbfeef and beef products by consumers and incréasgeerating costs resulting from BSE-
related concerns.

Even though the export markets for U.S. beef haantsignificantly reepened, most of these markets remain closed to MBM ec

from U.S. beef. Continued concern about BSE inutf®. may result in additional regulatory and méarkedated challenges that may affect
Company’s operations and/or increase the Compapgsating costs.

Other Critical Issues and Challenges

« Energy prices for natural gas and diesel fuel aqgeeted to remain volatile in fiscal 2008. The Quamy consumes significe
volumes of natural gas to operate boilers in itnfd, which generate steam to heat raw materigh Hatural gas prices represe
significant cost of factory operation included wstof sales. The Company also consumes significdomes of diesel fuel to oper
its fleet of tractors and trucks used to colleok nmaterial. High diesel fuel prices represent gnificant component of cost
collection expenses included in cost of sales. ughahe Company will continue to manage these @stisattempt to minimize the
expenses, prices remained relatively volatile tghmut fiscal 2007 and represent an ongoing chadldnghe Compang’ operatin
results for future period.
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Expenses related to compliance with requirementeation 404 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002 (th¢“Sarbanes A”) are expecte
to continue throughout 2008 and thereafter. Then@any expects recurring compliance costs relatethéorequired updating
documentation and the testing and auditing of tben@anys system of internal control over financial repagti as required by t
Sarbanes Ac

Avian influenza “H5N1"), or Bird Flu, a highly contagious disease that affexhickens and other poultry species, is welll#istaec
in Asia and periodically spreads into Europe. THeNH strain is highly pathogenic, which has causattern that a pandemic co
occur if the disease migrates from birds to hum@hss highly pathogenic strain was not detecte®lanth or South America duri
2007, but low pathogenic strains that are not aathto human health were reported in the U.S. amh@a during that period. 1
USDA has developed safeguards to protect the Wb$trg industry from the H5N1 strain of Bird Flhese safeguards are base
import restrictions, disease surveillance and gaese plan for isolating and depopulating infectemtks if the disease
detected. Notwithstanding these safeguards, agnifisiant outbreak of Bird Flu in the U.S. couldvieaa negative impact on f
Compan'’s business by reducing demand for ME

These challenges indicate there can be no assuttzaicéscal 2007 operating results are indicati’éuture operating performance of

the Company.

Results of Operations

Fifty-two Week Fiscal Year Ended December 29, 2qUriscal 2007”) Compared to Fiftytwo Week Fiscal Year Ended December 30, 2

(“Fiscal

2006”)

Summary of Key Factors Impacting Fiscal 2007 Resust

section,

Principal factors that contributed to a $61.4 roillincrease in operating income, which are disaugsgreater detail in the followil
were:

Higher finished product price
The inclusion of the operations of NBP, and
Increased raw material volume.

These increases to operating income were parbéfitet by:

Higher raw material costs,

Higher payroll and incentive-related benefits,

Higher plant repair and maintenance expenses, and

Higher energy costs, primarily related to natuied gnd diesel fue

Summary of Key Indicators of Fiscal 2007 Performane:

Principal indicators that management routinely rtasiand compares to previous periods as an irdicfproblems or improvemel

in operating results include:

Finished product commodity prices quoted on thebsen index,

Raw material volume,

Production volume and related yield of finishedduret,

Energy prices for natural gas quoted on the NYMEd&ex and diesel fuel,
Collection fees and collection operating expened, a

Factory operating expenst

These indicators and their importance are discusskxv in greater detail.
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Prices for finished product commodities that thenpany produces are quoted each business day dadbbsen index, an establis
trading exchange price publisher. These finishedcts are MBM, BFT and YG. The prices quotedfaralelivery of the finished product
a specified location. These prices are relevacalee they provide an indication of a componeneweénue and achievement of business
benchmarks on a daily basis. The Comparagtual sales prices for its finished products rey significantly from the Jacobsen index bec
the Companys finished products are delivered to multiple lamag in different geographic regions which utilizifferent price
indexes. Average Jacobsen prices (at the spedébeery point) for Fiscal 2007, compared to agerdacobsen prices for Fiscal 2006 follow:

Avg. Price Avg. Price %

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 200¢ Increase Change
MBM (lllinois) $233.51/tor $153.48 /tor $80.03/tor 52.1%
MBM (California) $235.00/tor  $126.27 /tor  $108.73/tor 86.1%
BFT (Chicago] $ 27.89/cwi  $ 16.87 /cw  $11.02/cwl 65.3%
YG (lllinois) $ 21.62/cwt $ 12.64 /cw $8.98/cwt 71.0%

The increase in average prices of the finishedytsdthe Company sells had a favorable impact wermge that was partially offset
a negative impact to the Compasyaw material cost resulting from formula priceagangements, which compute raw material cost bagert
the price of finished product. Additionally, sotdeS. exports of MBM from the West Coast of the Ugsumed in the first quarter of 2007.

a result, the MBM prices for the West Coast hawedased significantly as indicated above.

Raw material volume represents the quantity (pounfisaw material collected from suppliers, inclogibeef, pork, poultry and us
cooking oils. Raw material volumes provide an @adiion of future production of finished productsagable for sale and are a componer

potential future revenue.

Finished product production volumes are the endltre$ the Companys production processes, and directly impact gowdsable fo
sale, and thus become an important component e$ salenue. Yield on production is a ratio of picitbn volume (pounds) divided by r
material volume (pounds) and provides an indicatdneffectiveness of the Compasyproduction process. Factors impacting yielt
production include quality of raw material and wanmather during summer months, which rapidly degsadw material.

Natural gas commodity prices are quoted each dah@MNYMEX exchange for future months of delivefynatural gas. The pric
are important to the Company because natural gasnigjor component of factory operating costs aamdimal gas prices are an indicato
achievement of the Company’s business plan.

The Company charges collection fees which are dfezluin net sales in order to offset a portion &f éixpense incurred in collect
raw material. Each month the Company monitors lbéhcollection fee charged to suppliers, whiclniduded in net sales, and collect
expense, which is included in cost of sales. Thportance of monitoring collection fees and collattexpense is that they provide

indication of achievement of the Company’s busin#as.

The Company incurs factory operating emges which are included in cost of sales. Eachttmthe Company monitors fact
operating expense. The importance of monitorirfofy operating expense is that it provides ancatitbn of achievement of the Compasny’

business plan.

Net Sales . The Company collects and processes animaprbgucts (fat, bones and offal), including hidesd aised restaure
cooking oil to principally produce finished prodsiaif MBM, BFT, YG and hides. Sales are signifitamtffected by finished goods pric
quality and mix of raw material, and volume of ravaterial. Net sales include the sales of produced finishemtigocollection fees, fees

grease trap services, and finished goods purcHasegsale.

During Fiscal 2007, net sales increased by $238llBom (58.6%) to $645.3 million as compared to $4® million during Fisce
2006. The increase in net sales was primarilytduke following increases/(decreases) (in milliofiglollars):
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Restaurar

Renderin Service Corporat Total
Higher finished goods price $ 98.C % 271 % - $ 1251
Net sales due to contribution frc
NBP asset 84.¢ 6.7 - 91t
Purchases of finished product for
resale 8.3 6.C - 14.:
Higher raw material volum 6.8 .7 - 5.1
Other sales increas 1.8 0.5 - 2.3
Product transfers (12.9) 12.¢ - —

$ 1868 § 51.F

©
|

$ 238.:

Cost of Sales and Operating ExpensesCost of sales and operating expenses includedkeof raw material, the cost of proc
purchased for resale and the cost to collect ravemad which includes diesel fuel and processingts including natural gas. The Comg
utilizes both fixed and formula pricing methods the purchase of raw materials. Fixed prices ajastetl where possible for change
competition and significant changes in finisheddpmarket conditions, while raw materials purchaseder formula prices are correlated \
specific finished goods prices. Energy costs, ipaerly diesel fuel and natural gas, are signific@omponents of the Compasytos
structure. The Company has the ability to burerattive fuels at a majority of its plants to hetanage the Compars/price exposure
volatile energy markets.

During Fiscal 2007, cost of sales and operatingeagps increased $162.1 million (50.4%) to $483/amias compared to $32:
million during Fiscal 2006. The increase in cdssales and operating expenses was primarily dtieetéollowing (in millions of dollars):

Restaurar
Renderini Service Corporat Total

Higher raw material cos $ 61z $ 94 $ - $ 70¢€
Cost of sales and operating expenses
related

to NBP assetl 65.€ 3.€ - 69.2
Purchases of finished product"
resale 8.3 6.C - 14.:
Plant repairs and maintenar 3.5 0.t - 4.0
Higher energy costs, primarily natu
gas and

diesel fue 2.6 0.8 - 3.4
Multi-employer pension plan ma
withdrawal

termination liability 1.1 - - 1.1
Higher raw material volum 14 (0.4) - 1.C
Other expense (0.2 0.1 (0.2 (0.3
Sale of judgmen (1.2 - - (1.2
Product transfer (12.9) 12.¢ - —

$ 129. $ 32¢ $ (02 §$ 1621

Selling, General and Administrative Expense3elling, general and administrative expenses wB80Smillion during Fiscal 2007,
$12.4 million increase (27.2%) from $45.6 millioarthg Fiscal 2006. The increase is primarily du¢hie following (in millions of dollars):

Restaurar
Renderin Service Corporati Total
Payroll and related benefits expel $ 0.7 % 0.7 % 15 3% 0.1
Incentive compensatic - 0.2 6.7 6.9
Selling, general and administrative

expenses

related to NBP asse 1.8 0.2 0.9 2.9
Other expense 0.6 0.2 0.5 1.3
Legal settlement — - 1.2 1.2

$ 17 $ (01 $ 10& $ 124
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Depreciation and Amortization.Depreciation and amortization charges increasefl #gllion (12.1%) to $23.2 million durir
Fiscal 2007 as compared to $20.7 million during&i006. The increase is primarily due to the &ition of capital assets from NBP in
Transaction.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $5.0 million during Fisz@207 compared to $7.2 million during Fiscal 200&legrease !
$2.2 million (30.6%), primarily due to a decreasedtes and outstanding balance related to the @oypoutstanding debt.

Other Income/ExpenseDther expense was $0.6 million in Fiscal 200744 $nillion decrease from other expense of $4.Tionilin
Fiscal 2006. The decrease in other expense ialR2807 is primarily due to the following (in mains of dollars):

Restaurar
Renderini Service Corporat Total
Write-off of deferred loan cos $ - 3 - 3 (260 $ (2.6
Subordinated debt prepayment fi - - (1.9 (1.9
Decrease in interest incor - - 0.2 0.3
Increase in other expense — — 0.1 0.1
$ - $ - $ 41 $ (4D

During the second quarter of 2006, the Companyertits subordinated debt and incurred charged &f fillion for prepayment fe
and $1.1 million to write off deferred loan costs.addition, the Company entered into a new remglcredit facility during the second qua
of 2006 which resulted in a charge of $1.5 milltorwrite off deferred loan costs related to thevjgres revolving credit facility.

Income Taxes.The Company recorded income tax expense of $28lion for Fiscal 2007, compared to income tax exge of $2.
million recorded in Fiscal 2006, an increase of.827illion, primarily due to increased ptax earnings of the Company in Fiscal 2007.
effective tax rate of 39.3% for 2007 differed frone statutory rate of 35% primarily due to stateeta The effective tax rate of 30.7% for 2
differed from the statutory rate of 35% primarilyel to federal and state income tax credits as wagllthe release of certain
contingencies. The impact of state income taxe2®6 of $0.3 million was offset by certain stetr credits recorded in 2006 of $0.1 million.

Results of Operations

Fifty-two Week Fiscal Year Ended December 30, 2qUeiscal 2006") Compared to Fiftytwo Week Fiscal Year Ended December 31, Z
(“Fiscal 2005")

Summary of Key Factors Impacting Fiscal 2006 Resusdt

Principal factors that contributed to a $3.1 millil9.3%) increase in operating income, which aseussed in greater detail in
following section, were:

« The inclusion of the operations of NB
« Higher raw material volume, at
« Improved recovery of collection expenses.

These increases to operating income were partéfitet by:

« Lower finished product sales prices,
« Higher plant repair and maintenance expenses, and
« Higher legal fees.
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Summary of Key Indicators of Fiscal 2006 Performane:

Principal indicators that management routinely rtasiand compares to previous periods as an irichfproblems or improvemel
in operating results include:

« Finished product commaodity prices quoted on thelsen index,

« Raw material volume,

« Production volume and related yield of finisheddarct,

« Energy prices for natural gas quoted on the NYMBEd&ex and diesel fuel,
« Collection fees and collection operating expensd,

« Factory operating expenst

These indicators and their importance are disculssxv in greater detail.

Prices for finished product commodities that thenpany produces are quoted each business day dadbbsen index, an establis
trading exchange price publisher. These finishedcts are MBM, BFT and YG. The prices quotedfaralelivery of the finished product
a specified location. These prices are relevacalbee they provide an indication of a componeneeénue and achievement of business
benchmarks on a daily basis. The Compamgttual sales prices for its finished products magy from the Jacobsen index because
Companys finished products are delivered to multiple lemad in different geographic regions which utilidiferent price indexes. Avera
Jacobsen prices (at the specified delivery pootJ-iscal 2006, compared to average Jacobsen fiac€&sscal 2005 follow:

Avg. Price Avg. Price Increase/ %

Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 200¢ (Decrease Change
MBM (lllinois) $153.48/tor  $167.53 /tor  $(14.05/ton; (8.4%)
MBM (California) $126.27/tor  $142.26 /tor  $(15.99/ton; (11.2%)
BFT (Chicago! $ 16.87/cwi $ 17.46 /cw  $(0.59/cwt) (3.4%)
YG (lllinois) $ 12.64/cwi $ 14.44 /cw  $(1.80/cwt) (12.5%)

The decrease in the average prices of the finipheducts the Company sells had an unfavorable itnpacevenue which is partia
offset by a positive impact to the Compasmyaw material cost, due to formula pricing arrangets which compute raw material cost b
upon the price of finished product.

Raw material volume represents the quantity (pountisaw material collected from suppliers, incloglibeef, pork, poultry and us
cooking oils. Raw material volumes provide an @adiion of future production of finished productsagable for sale and are a componer
potential future revenue.

Finished product production volumes are the endltre$ the Companys production processes, and directly impact gowdsable fo
sale, and thus become an important component e$ sallenue. Yield on production is a ratio of piitbn volume (pounds) divided by r
material volume (pounds) and provides an indicatdneffectiveness of the Compasyproduction process. Factors impacting yielt
production include quality of raw material and waweather during summer months, which rapidly degsachw material. Both of the
factors negatively impacted the Company’s yieldmyFiscal 2006.

Natural gas commodity prices are quoted each daph®MNYMEX exchange for future months of delivefynatural gas. The pric
are important to the Company because natural gasnigjor component of factory operating costs aadimal gas prices are an indicato
achievement of the Company’s business plan.

The Company charges collection fees which are dfezluin net sales in order to offset a portion &f éixpense incurred in collect
raw material. Each month the Company monitors hbéhcollection fee charged to suppliers, whicliniduded in net sales, and colleci
expense, which is included in cost of sales. Thportance of monitoring collection fees and collattexpense is that they provide
indication of achievement of the Company’s busin#as.
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The Company incurs factory operating emges which are included in cost of sales. Eachttmthe Company monitors fact
operating expense. The importance of monitoriraofy operating expense is that it provides ancatitbn of achievement of the Compasy’
business plan.

Net Sales. The Company collects and processes animarbgucts (fat, bones and offal), including hides] ased restaurant cook
oil to principally produce finished products of MBMFT, YG and hides. Sales are significantly atddoy finished goods prices, quality .
mix of raw material, and volume of raw materialetfales include the sales of produced finishedigocollection fees, fees for grease
services, and finished goods purchased for resale.

During Fiscal 2006, net sales increased by $98lliomi(31.8%) to $407.0 million as compared to $308&nillion during Fisce
2005. The increase in net sales was primarilytduke following increases/(decreases) (in milliofiglollars):

Restaurar

Renderin Service Corporat Total
Net sales due to acquisition of NI $ 1105 $ 73 $ - $ 118¢(
Higher raw material volum 8.1 (1.7 - 6.4
Improved recovery of collectic
expense: 2.€ 1.8 - 4.5
Higher yields on productio 0.8 (0.7) - 0.1
Lower finished goods price (18.1) (3.2 - (21.9)
Purchases of finished product for
resale (6.0) (2.6 - (8.6)
Other sales decreas (1.9 0.4 - (2.0
Product transfer (10.0 10.C — —

$ 86.7 % 114§ - $ 981

Cost of Sales and Operating Expens€st of sales and operating expenses include deeaf raw material, the cost of prod
purchased for resale and the cost to collect, whicludes diesel fuel and processing costs inclydiatural gas. The Company utilizes t
fixed and formula pricing methods for the purchateaw materials. Fixed prices are adjusted whesible for changes in competition .
significant changes in finished goods market coong, while raw materials purchased under formuieeg are correlated with specific finisl
goods prices. Energy costs, particularly diesel &nd natural gas, are significant componenti®iGompanys cost structure. The Comp:
has the ability to burn alternative fuels at sorhiégsoplants to help manage the Company’s priceosype to volatile energy markets.

During Fiscal 2006, cost of sales and operatingersps increased $79.7 million (33.0%) to $321.4ianilas compared to $24:
million during Fiscal 2005. The increase in cdssales and operating expenses was primarily dtieetéollowing (in millions of dollars):

Restaurar
Renderini Service Corporat Total

Cost of sales and operating exper
of NBP $ 944  $ 32 % 01 $ 97¢
Payroll and related benefi 0.9 1.1 0.1 2.1
Plant repairs and maintenar 2.C - - 2.C
Higher raw material volum 1.8 (0.4) - 14
Sewer and trap dispos 04 0.7 - 1.1
Lower raw material price (13.0 (2.7 - (15.7)
Purchases of finished product for
resale (6.0 (2.6) - (8.6)
Lower energy costs, primarily natural
gas and

diesel fue (0.2 0.2 (0.2 (0.2
Other (1.0 0.¢ - 0.7
Product transfer (10.0) 10.C —

$ 69: $ 106 $ (02 $ 794
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Selling, General and Administrative Expense3elling, general and administrative expenses wédB6bmillion during Fiscal 2006,
$10.4 million increase (29.5%) from $35.2 milliomrohg Fiscal 2005. The increase is primarily dodricreased costs associated with
Transaction, higher legal expense, particularlgtesl to matters in which the Company sought affiiveaelief, as well as higher audit fees
payroll related expenses, as follows (in milliofslollars):

Restaurar

Renderini Service Corporat Total
Selling, general and administrative
expense: of NBP $ 3C % 02 $ 22 $ 5.6
Payroll and related benefits expel 0.1 0.t 1.7 2.3
Higher legal expens - - 2.C 2.C
Higher audit fee: - - 0.7 0.7
Other expenses (0.3 (0.7) 0.2 (0.2

$ 28 § 07 § 6. $ 104

Depreciation and Amortization.Depreciation and amortization charges increase@ $dlion (31.0%) to $20.7 million during Fisc
2006 as compared to $15.8 million during Fiscal 20The increase is primarily due to the acquisitad capital assets from NBP in
Transaction and increased capital expenditures rimaldiscal 2005.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $7.2 million during Fig206 compared to $6.2 million during Fiscal 2005 jrecrease ¢
$1.0 million (16.1%), primarily due to the overaitrease in debt outstanding as a result of thasketion.

Other Income/Expenseélther expense was $4.7 million in Fiscal 20065 $nillion increase from other income of $0.9 foill in
Fiscal 2005. The increase in other expense inF&R06 is primarily due to the following (in mains of dollars):

Restauratr
Renderin Service Corporat Total
Write-off of deferred loan cos $ - % - $ 26 % 2.6
Subordinated debt prepayment fi - - 1.9 1.9
Decrease in gain on disposal of as: - - 0.5 0.5
Decrease in interest incor - - 04 04
Increase in other expen — - 0.2 0.2
$ - $ - $ b€ $ 5.6

The decrease in gain on sale of assets was prymthegl result of the gain on the sale of the MataspPennsylvania property t
occurred during Fiscal 2006, amounting to less tthengain recognized on the sale of two propedmd during Fiscal 2005. In additit
interest income decreased by $0.4 million in Fig4l6 as a result of less cash investment on tlaadasheet.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Companyetits subordinated debt and incurred charged & fillion for prepayment fe
and $1.1 million to write off deferred loan costa.addition, the Company entered into a new remglcredit facility during the second qua
of 2006 which resulted in a charge of $1.5 milltorwrite off deferred loan costs related to thevjires revolving credit facility.

Income Taxes.The Company recorded income tax expense of $al@mfor Fiscal 2006, compared to income tax exge of $3.
million recorded in Fiscal 2005, a decrease of $0iion (28.1%), primarily due to the decreaseé{ax earnings of the Company in fis
2006. The effective tax rate of 30.7% for 2006eti#d from the statutory rate of 35% primarily dogfederal and state income tax credit
well as the release of certain tax contingencidse impact of state income taxes for 2006 of $GilBam was offset by certain state tax cre
recorded in 2006 of $0.1 million.
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Discontinued Operations The Company recorded a profit from discontinapdrations, net of applicable taxes, related ¢o th

closure and sale of certain assets of the Compadmyidon, Ontario, Canadian subsidiary in fiscal 200hich was not significant.

FINANCING, LIQUIDITY, AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

On April 7, 2006, the Company entered into a newS5$tnillion credit agreement (the “Credit Agreemégntith new lenders th
replaced the senior credit agreement executed it 2Q04. The principal components of the Credirédgment consist of the following.

The Credit Agreement provides for a total of $17&ilion in financing facilities, consisting of &$.0 million term loan facilit
and a $125.0 million revolving credit facility, witi includes a $35.0 million letter of credit -facility.

The $125.0 million revolving credit facility hagerm of five years and matures on April 7, 2C

As of December 29, 2007, the Company has borroWekb8.0 million under the term loan facility, whigrovides for schedul
quarterly amortization payments of $1.25 millioreowa sixyear term ending April 7, 2012. The Company hasiced the tern
loan facility by quarterly payments totaling $6.2filion, for an aggregate of $43.75 million prinalputstanding under the te
loan facility at December 29, 20C

Alternative base rate loans under the Credit Agexgrbear interest at a rate per annum based ogrélager of (a) the prime r:
and (b) the federal funds effective rate (as defimethe Credit Agreement) plus ¥z of 1%, plus, &clecase, a margin determi
by reference to a pricing grid and adjusted acogrdd the Companyg’ adjusted leverage ratio. Eurodollar loans be@rést at
rate per annum based on the tlagplicable LIBOR multiplied by the statutory resemate plus a margin determined by refer
to a pricing grid and adjusted according to the Gany s adjusted leverage rat

The Credit Agreement provided sufficient liquidity complete the Transaction and to retire the Camgasenior subordinat
notes in the aggregate amount of $37.6 millionringipal, accrued interest and fees on June 1, 2@@klitionally, the Cred
Agreement has an extended term, lower interess,rdéaver restrictions on investments, and improfleibility for paying
dividends or repurchasing Company stock (all ofalibare subject to the terms of the Credit Agreejrtbain the Compang’priol
credit facility.

The Credit Agreement contains restrictive covenahtst are customary for similar credit arrangemesutsl requires tt
maintenance of certain minimum financial ratioheTCredit Agreement also requires the Company tkentartain mandato
prepayments of outstanding indebtedness using éheash proceeds received from certain dispositadroperty, casualty
condemnation, any sale or issuance of equity istergn a public offering or in a private placemempermitted addition
indebtedness incurred by the Company, and excessfloav under certain circumstanc

The Company'’s Credit Agreement consists of thefeithg elements at December 29, 2007 (in thousands):

Credit Agreement

43,7

Term Loan $ 50
Revolving Credit Facility

Maximum availability $125,00(

Borrowings outstandin -

Letters of credit issued 18,88!

Availability $106,11¢

The obligations under the Credit Agreement are autaed by Darling National LLC, a Delaware limitéability company and
wholly-owned subsidiary of Darling (“Darling Natialf), and are secured by substantially all of the prgpeftthe Company, including
pledge of all equity interests in Darling Nation&s of December 29, 2007, the Company was in ciamgé with all of the covenants contai
in the Credit Agreement.
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The classification of long-term debt in the Companyecember 29, 2007 consolidated balance sheaisisdbon the contract
repayment terms of the debt issued under the CAggléement.

On December 29, 2007, the Company had working &lapft$34.4 million and its working capital raticas 1.43 to 1 compared
working capital of $17.9 million and a working cegiratio of 1.31 to 1 on December 30, 2006. Tteeaase in working capital is primarily ¢
to the increase in commodity prices. At DecemtserZD07, the Company had unrestricted cash of &hdllidn and funds available under-
revolving credit facility of $106.1 million, compad to unrestricted cash of $5.3 million and fungsilable under the revolving credit facility
$71.1 million at December 30, 2006.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $a&illion and $28.8 million for the fiscal years extiDecember 29, 2007 ¢
December 30, 2006, respectively, an increase of9$@#llion, primarily due to an increase in netonge of approximately $40.4 million a
changes in operating assets and liabilities, wimciudes a reduction in accounts receivable of axprately $14.2 million, a reduction
inventory of approximately $7.1 million and an iease in accounts payable and accrued expensegproikapately $20.3 million. Cash us
by investing activities was $15.6 million duringsEal 2007, compared to $91.2 million in Fiscal 200@ecrease in cash used of $75.6 mil
primarily due to $80.2 million in cash used for fhi@nsaction in Fiscal 2006. Net cash used bynfimay activities was $39.1 million in t
year ended December 29, 2007 compared to cashdpbviy financing activities of $31.7 million in tlyear ended December 30, 200
decrease of cash provided of $70.8 million, priatlipdue to borrowing related to the acquisitionNBP in the second quarter of Fiscal 2
and the repayment of a majority of that debt irc&i2007.

Capital expenditures of $15.6 million were madeimyiFiscal 2007 as compared to $11.8 million incki2006, an increase of $
million (32.2%). Capital expenditures related tangdiance with environmental regulations were $1i8ion in Fiscal 2007, $0.8 million i
Fiscal 2006 and $1.9 million in Fiscal 2005.

Based upon the underlying terms of the Credit Agrext, approximately $6.25 million in current delvhich is included in curre
liabilities on the Companyg’ balance sheet at December 29, 2007, will be dwiglthe next twelve months, which includes a dcitex
payment of $1.25 million due December 31, 2007, soiteduled quarterly installment payments of $imibon.

Based upon the annual actuarial estimate, cureamtials, and claims paid during Fiscal 2007, then@any has accrued approxima
$5.2 million it expects will become due during thext twelve months in order to meet obligationsited to the Company’self insuranc
reserves and accrued insurance obligations, whielnaluded in current accrued expenses at Dece@het007. The self insurance resen
composed of estimated liability for claims arisifay workers’ compensation and for auto liability and generabiligy claims. The se
insurance reserve liability is determined annudibsed upon a third party actuarial estimate. adtearial estimate may vary from year to y
due to changes in costs of health care, the permdingper of claims and other factors beyond therobof management of the Company.
assurance can be given that the Company’s funditigations under its self insurance reserve willinorease in the future.

Based upon current actuarial estimates, the Comgaay not expect to make any payments in orderett minimum pension fundi
requirements during fiscal 2008. The minimum pensiunding requirements are determined annuallgetbaupon a third party actua
estimate. The actuarial estimate may vary front y@gear, due to fluctuations in return on investits or other factors beyond the contrc
management of the Company or the administratohefGompanys pension funds. No assurance can be given teamthimum pensic
funding requirements will not increase in the fetuAdditionally, the Company has made required #ad deductible discretione
contributions to its pension plans in fiscal 20@approximately $6.2 million.

The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (“PPA¥as signed into law in August 2006 and went infeafin January 2008. The stated ¢
of the PPA is to improve the funding of pensionnglaPlans in an undéunded status will be required to increase emplaystributions t
improve the funding level within PPA timelines. &iCompany participates in several mehiployer pension plans that provide def
benefits to certain employees covered by laborracts. These plans are not administered by thep@ogynand contributions are determine
accordance with provisions of negotiated labor i@nts. Current information with respect to the @amy’s proportionate share of the over-
and under-funded status of all actuarially compwi@de of vested benefits over these pension plagisassets is not available as the Com
relies on third parties outside its control to pdavsuch information. The Company knows that tlulednese multi-employer plans were under-
funded as of the latest available information, sarhavhich is over a year old. The Company has bitita to compel the plan trustees
provide more current information. One of the unflerded multiemployer plans in which the Company participates dgigen notification of
mass withdrawal termination for the plan year endiete 30, 2007. Therefore, at December 29, 20@7Cbmpany has a recorded liability
approximately $1.1 million related to the termioati which represents the net present value ofittmlity as determined by the termina
plan. While we have no ability to calculate a ploigscurrent liability for under-funded mulémployer plans that could terminate or c
require additional funding under the PPA, the ant®gould be material.
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The Company has the ability to burn alternativdsuiecluding its fats and greases, at a majorititsoplants as a way to help man
the Companys exposure to high natural gas prices. Beginniolier 1, 2006, the federal government effectedogram which will provid
federal tax credits under certain circumstancesctonmercial use of alternative fuels in lieu ofdibbased fuels. Beginning in the fou
guarter of 2006, the Company filed documentatiotiwhe IRS to recover these Alternative Fuel Migt@redits as a result of its use of fats
greases to fuel boilers at its plants. The Comphaay received approval from the IRS to apply fagsth credits. However, the fed:
regulations relating to the Alternative Fuel Mix¢uCredits are complex and further clarificatioméeded by the Company prior to recogni
of certain tax credits received. As of DecemberZt¥®7, the Company has applied for and receivedoagmately $1.9 million in Alternati
Fuel Mixture Credits from the IRS relating to thesedits. During the fourth quarter of 2007, thentpany received further clarification o
portion of these tax credits received and as altrésis recorded approximately $1.2 million to ine@es a reduction of energy costs.
remaining $0.7 million of received credits are ud#d in current liabilities on the balance shealeferred income while the Company pur:
further clarification. The Company expects to amnt to burn alternative fuels at its plants irufet periods as long as the price of natura
remains high. Depending on the natural gas paogsmarket price of fats, the amount of Alternatfuel Mixture Credits the Company app
for and receives could be material.

In July 2007, a judgment was entered in a litigatinatter involving a contract dispute in which fiempany was a party. T
judgment required the Company to convey an unuseckpof property recorded on the books for appnately $500,000 to the counterpi
for that amount. In December 2007, a judgment &r@sred in the matter awarding the counterpartyaqmately $2.6 million in attorneys’
fees and costs. The Company filed appeals of joddments. The Company settled this matter duthiefirst quarter of fiscal 2008. Purst
to the terms of the settlement, the Company traredfehe property to the counterparty for a purehasce of $500,000, paid the counterp
approximately $2.2 million towards attorneyses and costs and agreed to dismiss its pendipgaspwith prejudice. In addition, the par
exchanged mutual releases. The Company has recardearge of $2.2 million for the attorneysés and costs in the fourth quarter of 2
which is included in selling, general and admirmiStre expenses.

The Companys management believes that cash flows from operatotivities consistent with the level generatedriscal 2007
unrestricted cash and funds available under theliCAgreement will be sufficient to meet the Companworking capital needs a
maintenance and complianoglated capital expenditures through the next tev@honths. Numerous factors could have adverseeqoesice
to the Company that cannot be estimated at this,tsuch as: a reduction in finished product priqaesssible product recall resulting fr
developments relating to the discovery of unautteatiadulterations to food additives; the occureencBird Flu in the U.S.; any additiol
occurrence of BSE in the U.S. or elsewhere; rednstin raw material volumes available to the Comypdue to weak margins in the m
processing industry or otherwise; unforeseen neS: br foreign regulations affecting the rendeiimdustry (including new or modified anin
feed, Bird Flu or BSE regulations); increased dbntions to the Company’s mukimployer defined benefit pension plans as requisethe
PPA; loss of or failure to obtain necessary pesnaihd registrations; and/or unfavorable exportketar These factors, coupled with t
prices for natural gas and diesel fuel, among sthewuld either positively or negatively impact tiempanys results of operations in fisi
2008 and thereafter. The Company cannot provideraace that the cash flows from operating actisitienerated in fiscal 2008 are indice
of the future cash flows from operating activitibat will be generated by the Compasipperations. The Company reviews the appropuise
of unrestricted cash periodically. Although no dem has been made as to rmdinary course cash usages at this time, poteigiges cou
include: opportunistic capital expenditures andfguisitions; investments relating to growingeiest in bicfuels; investments in responst
governmental regulations relating to BSE or otlegufations; unexpected funding resulting from PHRA requirements; and paying divide
or repurchasing stock, subject to limitations unither Credit Agreement, as well as suitable caslseamation to withstand adverse comma
cycles.
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The current economic environment in the Companyarkets has the potential to adversely impadiqgtsdity in a variety of way:
including through reduced sales, potential inventarildup and/or higher operating costs.

The principal products that the Company sells armamodities, the prices of which are based on dstedll commodity markets &
are subject to volatile changes. Any decline iesthprices has the potential to adversely impactGbmpanys liquidity. Any of a furthe
disruption in international sales, a decline in cowmdities prices, further increases in energy priessilting from increased world demand
the impact of the PPA has the potential to adverisepact the Company’liquidity. A decline in commodities prices, aqiin energy prices
slowdown in the U.S. or international economy, tireo factors, could cause the Company to fail t@etnmeanagemerd’expectations or cot
cause liquidity concerns.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMERCIAL COMMIT  MENTS

The following table summarizes the Company’s expe:chaterial contractual payment obligations, intlgdoth on- and offalanc
sheet arrangements at December 29, 2007 (in thdsisan

More
Less thal 1-3 3-5 than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Contractual
obligations(a)
Long-term debt
obligations (b} $ 43,75 $ 6,25C $ 10,00 $ 27,50C % -
Operating leas
obligations (c] 41,82: 9,94: 14,61¢ 7,50z 9,76(
Estimated interest
payable (d 11,01« 2,781 4,57¢ 3,17¢ 47¢
Purchast¢
commitments (e 10,43: 10,43: - - -
Derivative
obligations (f) 1,867 547 1,057 263 -
Other long-term
liabilities (g) 1,332 191 137 74 93C
Pension funding
obligation (h) - — — - —

Total $110,22: $ 30,14¢ $ 30,38t $ 38,51¢ $ 11,16¢

(a) The above table does not reflect uncertain taxtiposi of approximately $0.5 million because theitignof the cas
settlement can not be reasonably estime

(b) See Note 8 to the consolidated financial statem

(c) See Note 7 to the consolidated financial statem

(d) Interest payable was calculated using the cureetfor term debt and current rates on other liadsl

(e) Purchase commitments were determined based orfisgemdntracts for natural gas and finish productpases

() Represents liabilities for interest rate swap @it that were valued at December 29, 2007. Tireatk settleme
amounts of these swap contracts are unknown bethegere subject to continuing market risk urité tderivative
are settled

(9) Includes other contractual liabilities and a pengian termination withdrawal liability from the tiuemployer pla
that terminated during Fiscal 20(

(h) Pension funding requirements are determined annbabed upon a third party actuarial estimate. Cboepany doe
not expect to make contributions to its pensiomgtlafiscal 2008. The Company is not able to estenpensic
funding requirements beyond the next twelve monftie accrued pension benefit liability was appradaty $9..
million at the end of Fiscal 2007. The Companywadhat two of the multemployer pension plans that have
terminated to which it contributes and which aré aministered by the Company were unfierded as of the late
available information, and while the Company hasabdity to calculate a possible current liabilityr the under-
funded mult-employer plans to which the Company contributes,amounts could be materi

The Compan’s off-balance sheet contractual obligations and comniezoiamitments as of December 29, 2007 relate toatipe



lease obligations, letters of credit, forward pash agreements, and employment agreements. ThpaDgrhas excluded these items frorr
balance sheet in accordance with accounting pliexigenerally accepted in the U.S.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s ottenmercial commitments, including both on- andldfance sheet arrangeme
at December 29, 2007 (in thousands):

Other commercial commitment

Standby letters of credit $ 18,88’
Total other commercial
commitments: $ 18,88

OFF BALANCE SHEET OBLIGATIONS

Based upon underlying purchase agreements, the &onmas commitments to purchase $10.4 millionragkied products and natu
gas during fiscal 2008, which are not includediabilities on the Compang’balance sheet at December 29, 2007. These perelgacemer
are entered into in the normal course of the Compijzaousiness and are not subject to derivative attmunThe commitments will be recorc
on the balance sheet of the Company when delivetlgese commodities occurs and ownership passtet@€ompany during fiscal 2008,
accordance with accounting principles generallyeptad in the U.S.

Based upon underlying lease agreements, the Congaquects to pay approximately $9.9 million in opiexg lease obligations duri
fiscal 2008 which are not included in liabilities the Company balance sheet at December 29, 2007. This anmtlatles amounts relatec
the obligations assumed in connections with then3aation. These lease obligations are includedost of sales or selling, general
administrative expense as the underlying leasgatitin comes due, in accordance with accountintgciplies generally accepted in the U.S.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company follows certain significant accountipglicies when preparing its consolidated finanggtements. A comple
summary of these policies is included in Note thiwConsolidated Financial Statements includedlimireport.

Certain of the policies require management to nsgeificant and subjective estimates or assumpttbas may deviate from act
results. In particular, management makes estimagarding valuation of inventories, estimates séful life of longlived assets related
depreciation and amortization expense, estimagardeng fair value of the Comparsyteporting units and future cash flows with respe
assessing potential impairment of both long-livedesas and goodwill, seifisurance, environmental and litigation reservesispn liability
estimates of income tax expense, and estimatesodbpma expense related to stock options granteath B& these estimates is discusse
greater detail in the following discussion.

Inventories

The Company’s inventories are valued at the lowenst or market. Finished product manufacturiogtds calculated using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method, based upon the Compansaw material costs, collection and factory prdiunc operating expenses, ¢
depreciation expense on collection and factorytasddarket values of inventory are estimated ahgadant location, based upon either: 1)
backlog of unfilled sales orders at the balancetstiate; or 2) unsold inventory, calculated usigjonal finished product prices quoted in
Jacobsen index at the balance sheet date. Essimiatearket value, based upon the backlog of wafi$ales orders or upon the Jacobsen i
assume that the inventory held by the Company etbtilance sheet date will be sold at the estimatadket finished product sales pr
subsequent to the balance sheet date. Actual gates received on future sales of inventory falthe end of a period may vary from ei
the backlog unfilled sales order price or the Jaeahindex quotation at the balance sheet dateselvariances could cause actual sales |
realized on future sales of inventory to be différthan the estimate of market value of inventdryha end of the period. Inventories w
approximately $22.5 million and $14.6 million atd@enber 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, respectively
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Long-Lived Assets Depreciation and Amortization Expe and Valuation

The Companys property, plant and equipment are recorded dtwbsn acquired. Depreciation expense is compategroperty
plant and equipment based upon a straight line odetiver the estimated useful life of the assetschwvis based upon a standard classific:
of the asset group. Buildings and improvementsdageciated over a useful life of 15 to 30 yearachinery and equipment are depreci
over a useful life of 3 to 10 years and vehiclesdgpreciated over a life of 2 to 6 years. Thessdul life estimates have been developed
upon the Compang’ historical experience of asset life utility, anbether the asset is new or used when placed ¥iceerThe actual life ar
utility of the asset may vary from this estimatidd.| Useful lives of the assets may be modifiemhfrtime to time when the future utility or |
of the asset is deemed to change from that origieastimated when the asset was placed in serBapreciation expense was approxime
$18.3 million, $16.1 million and $11.9 million iristal years ending December 29, 2007, December2@06 and December 31, 20
respectively. The increase in depreciation expasssompared to historical amounts is primarily thuthe Transaction.

The Company’s intangible assets, including permitsjtes and nogempete agreements are recorded at fair value
acquired. Amortization expense is computed onethetangible assets based upon a straight line odetier the estimated useful life of
assets, which is based upon a standard classgificafithe asset group. Collection routes are ameattover a useful life of 8 to 20 years; non-
compete agreements are amortized over a usefubflife to 10 years; and permits are amortized ovaseful life of 20 years. The act
economic life and utility of the asset may varynfrehis estimated life. Useful lives of the assatsy be modified from time to time when
future utility or life of the asset is deemed tcanbe from that originally estimated when the asg®t placed in service. Intangible a
amortization expense was approximately $4.9 milli¢6 million and $3.9 million in fiscal years éng December 29, 2007, December
2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively. Thee@sa in intangible amortization expense as comgarhatorical amounts is primarily d
to the Transaction.

The Company reviews the carrying value of Idingd assets for impairment when events or chaihgescumstances indicate that
carrying amount of an asset, or related asset gmay not be recoverable from estimated future soalinted cash flows. Recoverability
assets to be held and used is measured by a camparf the carrying amount of an asset or asseipgim estimated undiscounted future «
flows expected to be generated by the asset ot gssap. If the carrying amount of the asset esseiés estimated future cash flows,
impairment charge is recognized by the amount bighvthe carrying amount of the asset exceeds thedhie of the asset.

The net book value of property, plant and equipmeset approximately $128.7 million and $132.1 miliat December 29, 2007 ¢
December 30, 2006, respectively. The net bookevafuintangible assets was approximately $29.0ioniland $33.7 million at December
2007 and December 30, 2006, respectively.

Goodwill Valuation

The Company reviews the carrying value of goodwill a regular basis, including at the end of easbafiyear, for indications
impairment at each reporting unit that has recogtesbwill as an asset. Impairment is indicated wever the carrying value of reporting t
assets exceeds the estimated fair value of regautiit assets. For purposes of evaluating impaitroégoodwill, the Company estimates
value of reporting unit assets at each reportingy based upon future discounted net cash flowsifuse of those assets. In calculating t
estimates, actual historical operating results amtitipated future economic factors, such as fuhusiness volume, future finished proc
prices, and future operating costs and expensesvateated and estimated as a component of thalaatn of future discounted cash flows
each reporting unit with recorded goodwill. Théiraates of fair value of assets at these repouimi¢gs and of future discounted net cash fl
from operation of these assets could change ifahatalumes, prices, costs or expenses vary frorsethestimates. A future reduction
earnings in the reporting units with recorded goitideould result in an impairment charge because #éstimate of fair value would
negatively impacted by a reduction of earningshasé reporting units. Goodwill was approximateRL® million at December 29, 2007
December 30, 2006.
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Self Insurance, Environmental and Legal Reserves

The Companys workers compensation, auto and general lialplitycies contain significant deductibles or selured retentions. T
Company estimates and accrues for its expectechatki claim costs related to accidents occurringndueach fiscal year and carries
accrual as a reserve until these claims are paitidompany. In developing estimates for selflieddosses, the Company utilizes its ste
third party actuary and outside counsel as sowt&sormation and judgment as to the expected scalinted future costs of the claims.
Company accrues reserves related to environmenthliggation matters based on estimated undisexlfiiture costs. With respect to
Companys self insurance, environmental and litigation resg, estimates of reserve liability could charfgiiture events are different tt
those included in the estimates of the actuarysalbants and management of the Company. The refemgelf insurance, environmental :
litigation contingencies included in accrued exgsnsind other noodrrent liabilities for which there are no insuranmecoveries wi
approximately $17.1 million and $17.9 million atd@enber 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, respectively

Pension Liability

The Company provides retirement benefits to emm@eyender separate finp&y noncontributory pension plans for salaried laoirly
employees (excluding those employees covered byiangponsored plan), who meet service and age requitsm8enefits are bas
principally on length of service and earnings patteduring the five years preceding retirementsiRn expense and pension liability recol
by the Company is based upon an annual actuatiaiage provided by a third party administrator.cteas included in estimates of current \
pension expense and pension liability at the balasieet date include estimated future service gparicemployees, estimated future pa
employees, estimated future retirement ages of @ympbk, and the projected time period of pensiorefitepayments. Two of the me
significant assumptions used to calculate futunesm obligations are the discount rate appliegidnsion liability and the expected rate
return on pension plan assets. These assumptimhsstimates are subject to the risk of change &wer, and each factor has inhe
uncertainties which neither the actuary nor the gamy is able to control or to predict with certginSee Note 12 of Notes to Consolid:
Financial Statements for summaries of pension plans

The discount rate applied to the Companyension liability is the interest rate used tcuate the present value of the pension be
obligation. The discount rate is based on thedya#llongterm corporate fixed income securities at the measeant date of October 1 in-
year of calculation. The Company considered thed§'s Index (6.03% as of October 1, 2007) as well ad#hman AA Index (6.06% as
October 1, 2007), which combined to average 6.088%f October 1, 2007. With estimated liabilityypeent streams under the plans bein
to 40 years out and no bonds available with mataidgttes that far into the future, but with the gielrve historically flat, the Company belie
it is appropriate to reference from the Citigroungld.ehman bond rates. The weighted average discatenwas 6.00% and 5.75% at Oct
1, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The net perioditefit cost for fiscal 2008 would increase by apprately $0.7 million if the discount re
was 0.5% lower at 5.50%. The net periodic berwaf#t for fiscal 2008 would decrease by approxinya$@.5 million if the discount rate w
0.5% higher at 6.50%.

The expected rate of return on the Comparpgnsion plan assets is the interest rate usedl¢alate future returns on investmen
the plan assets. The expected return on plansaiset longierm assumption whose accuracy can only be assesszda long period
time. The weighted average expected return onipepdan assets was 8.25% and 8.38% for Fiscal 20@7iscal 2006, respectively.

The Company has recorded a pension liability ofrexmately $9.2 million and $18.7 million at Deceent?9, 2007 and Decem|
30, 2006, respectively. The Compasyiet pension cost was approximately $3.0 mill®8.7 million and $3.2 million for the fiscal ye
ending December 29, 2007, December 30, 2006 andrblger 31, 2005, respectively.

Income Taxes

In calculating net income, the Company includegeses in the calculation of income tax expense,résulting tax liability and
future realization of deferred tax assets thateafiem temporary differences between financialestent presentation and tax recognitio
revenue and expense. The Company’s deferred &otsasiclude a net operating loss cdogward which is limited to approximately $!
million per year in future utilization due to théange in control resulting from the May 2002 retaation of the Company. Valuati
allowances for deferred tax assets are recordedh ithis more likely than not that deferred tax asseill not be realized. Based upon
Company’s evaluation of these matters, a signifiqaortion of the Company’s net operating loss cdoryvards will expire unused. T
valuation allowance established to provide a resegainst these deferred tax assets was approkm#te8 million and $9.4 million |
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, resplyctiVae decrease in the Compamyaluation allowance is primarily due to the eapiar
of certain net operating losses.
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Stock Option Expense

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptegtheisions of Statement of Financial Accountingrig@rd No. 123 (revised 200
Share-Based Payme(iSFAS 123(R)")and related interpretations, using the modifiedspeative method. The calculation of expense afk
options issued utilizes the Bla@choles mathematical model which estimates the Vaiue of the option award to the holder and
compensation expense to the Company, based upomatsst of volatility, riskfree rates of return at the date of issue and giegevesting ¢
the option grants. The Company recorded compemsatipense related to stock options expense foyehe ended December 29, 2007
December 30, 2006 of approximately $0.4 million &b million, respectively. Prior to adopting SFA33(R) the Company accounted fo
stock options under APB Opinion No. 25 and relateerpretations, which utilized the intrinsic valoeethod. Under the intrinsicalue metho
compensation expense is recorded only to the eittahthe grant price is less than market on thasmement date. Accordingly, the Comg
would have recorded additional compensation expeh&®.6 million for the year ended December 310%26ad the Company accounted
stock options using the fair value-based method.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff AccourBinketin No. 108,Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatememler
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Finan@thtement§'SAB 108”), to address diversity in practice in quantifyingdfirtial stateme
misstatements. SAB 108 requires that registraméstify uncorrected misstatements using both tblidver” and “iron curtain’methods, wit
adjustment required if either method results iniastatement that is material. The Company hastifiegh a $2.8 million overstatement
income tax liabilities. The Company has not belle &0 determine how these excess liabilities grbewvever, the Company has determ
that these liabilities were recorded prior to 200he Company had previously concluded that th8 $#llion misstatement was immate
using the rollover method for evaluating misstatetse As a result of adopting SAB 108, the Comphag corrected the misstatemen
recording a cumulative effect adjustment to retaiearnings at the beginning of Fiscal 2006.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢‘FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48;counting for Uncertainty
Income Taxe—an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. IRIN 48”), which prescribes accounting for and disclosure méentain ta
positions (“UTP”). FIN 48 requires application afmore likely than not threshold to the recognitaomd derecognition of UTP. FIN 4
permits recognition of the amount of tax benefatthas a greater than 50 percent likelihood of deealized upon settlement. It furt
requires that a change in judgment related to tkeeaed ultimate resolution of UTP be recognizedesrnings in the quarter
change. Effective December 31, 2006 the Compamptad the provisions of FIN 48 resulting in a rethrc in the Compang existing
reserves for uncertain state and federal incom@adaitions of approximately $0.1 million. This weion was recorded as a cumulative e
adjustment to retained earnings. At the adoptiate dbf December 31, 2006, the Company had $0.7omilbf gross unrecognized 1
benefits. If the Company recognized such tax benehe net impact on the Compasgffective tax rate would be $0.6 million, whicttlude:
the effect of the reversal of the $0.1 million dedel tax asset. At December 29, 2007, the Compady$0.5 million of gross unrecognized
benefits; if recognized, the net impact on the Canys effective tax rate would be $0.4 million, whigitiudes the effect of the reversa
$0.1 million in deferred tax asset. Additionallyt December 31, 2006, the Company had an accruainferest and penalties of $
million. The Company recognizes accrued interest @enalties, as appropriate, related to unrecedriax benefits as a component of inc
tax expense.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement adn€ial Accounting Standards No. 15+7air Value Measurementsyhich
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value and expands disclosures aboutviue measurements. This stateme
effective for the Company on December 30, 2007 ianabt expected to have a significant impact on Geenpanys consolidated financi
statements.

Page 3¢




In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of r€iiah Accounting Standards No. 15Bhe Fair Value Option for Financi
Assets and Financial Liabilitie("SFAS 159”), which allows entities to choose to measure findringruments and certain other items at
value. This statement is effective for the CompanyDecember 30, 2007 and is not expected to haigniicant impact on the Compamy’
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofn€iahAccounting Standards No. 141(RBtisiness Combinationg“SFAS 141
(R)"), which is a revision of SFAS 141,Business Combination§ SFAS 141(R) applies to all transactions and otlvents in which on
entity obtains control over one or more other besses. SFAS 141(R) requires an acquirer, upaalipibbtaining control of another entity
recognize the assets, liabilities and any nontrolling interest in the acquiree at fair vahsof the acquisition date. Contingent considen
is required to be recognized and measured at &irevon the date of acquisition rather than atex ldate when the amount of that consider:
may be determinable beyond a reasonable doubt fEiri value approach replaces the aikieation process required under SFAS
whereby the cost of an acquisition was allocatedh® individual assets acquired and liabilitiesuassd based on their estimated
value. SFAS 141(R) requires acquirers to expengaisition related costs as incurred rather théotating these costs to assets acquiret
liabilities assumed, as was done under SFAS 14ik pFovisions of SFAS 141(R) are effective for disgears beginning after December
2008. Early adoption is not permitted. The Conyparcurrently evaluating the impact of adoptingASF141(R) on the consolidated finan
statements.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes “forwambking” statements that involve risks and uncettasn The words “believe,”
“anticipate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,” andmsilar expressions identify forwartoking statements. All statements other tharestant
of historical facts included in the Annual Report Borm 10K, including, without limitation, the statementsdam the sections entitl
“Business,” “Management’s Discussion and Analydis-imancial Condition and Results of Operationsti &hegal Proceedingsand locate
elsewhere herein regarding industry prospects laadCbmpany’s financial position are forwdabking statements. Actual results could d
materially from those discussed in the forwérdking statements as a result of certain facioduding many that are beyond the control ot
Company. Although the Company believes that theeetations reflected in these forwdomking statements are reasonable, it can gi
assurance that these expectations will prove wobect.

In addition to those factors discussed under tlaeling “Risk Factorsin Item 1A of this report and elsewhere in thisagpand in th
Company’s other public filings with the SEC, impot factors that could cause actual results tcediffiaterially from the Comparg’
expectations include: the Compasiyontinued ability to obtain sources of supplyiferrendering operations; general economic cowutiir
the American, European and Asian markets; pricethencompeting commodity markets which are volagitel are beyond the Compasy’
control; the implementation of an amendment toBi$%& Feed Rule; BSE and its impact on finishedipeb prices, export markets, ene
prices and government regulations, which are stiblving and are beyond the Companyontrol; the occurrence of Bird Flu in
U.S.; possible product recall resulting from depehents relating to the discovery of unauthorizedlterations to food additives; &
increased contributions to the Company’s meitiployer defined benefit pension plans as requiedhe PPA. Among other things, fut
profitability may be affected by the Compaswbility to grow its business, which faces contpmtifrom companies that may have substani
greater resources than the Company. The Comparipeaueaders that all forwatdeking statements speak only as of the date ek th
Company undertakes no obligation to update any doiwooking statements, whether as a result of chaimgegcumstances, new events
otherwise.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAR KET RISKS
ITEM 7A.

Market risks affecting the Company are exposureshanges in prices of the finished products the gamy sells, interest rates
debt, availability of raw material supply and théce of natural gas used in the Companglants. Raw materials available to the Compae
impacted by seasonal factors, including holidaylsenvraw material volume declines; warm weatheickviban adversely affect the quality
raw material processed and finished products prediuand cold weather, which can impact the cabbecbf raw material. Predominantly
of the Company’s finished products are commodities are generally sold at prices prevailing attiime of sale.

The Company makes limited use of derivative instota to manage cash flow risks related to inteaedtnatural gas expense.
Company uses interest rate swaps with the intemafaging overall borrowing costs by reducing theeptial impact of increases in intel
rates on floating-rate longrm debt. The interest rate swaps are subjebetoequirements of Statement of Financial AccagnStandards N
133,Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities (“SFAS 133”). The Compang’natural gas instruments are not subject t
requirements of SFAS 133, because the naturaingasiments qualify as normal purchases as defimétei SFAS 133. The Company does
use derivative instruments for trading purposes.

On May 19, 2006, the Company entered into two @derate swap agreements that are consideredloashddges according to SF.
133. Under the terms of these swap agreementsrbeg June 30, 2006, the cash flows from the Camgja$50.0 million floatingrate tern
loan facility under the Credit Agreement have beenhanged for fixed rate contracts that bear isteqgayable quarterly. The first sv
agreement for $25.0 million matures April 7, 2011 dears interest at 5.42%, which does not incthéeborrowing spread per the Cri
Agreement, with amortizing payments that mirror teiam loan facility. The second swap agreement$2s.0 million matures April 7, 20.
and bears interest at 5.415%, which does not irctbd borrowing spread per the Credit Agreemerth) ainortizing payments that mirror
term loan facility. The Company’s receive rateeacth swap agreement is based on thmeath LIBOR. At December 29, 2007, the fair vi
of these interest swap agreements was $1.9 mifliwhis included in noourrent liabilities on the balance sheet, with &fised recorded f
accumulated other comprehensive income .

As of December 29, 2007, the Company had forwamth@ase agreements in place for purchases of appatefy $5.3 million ¢
natural gas for the months of January 2008 thrddghch 2008. As of December 29, 2007, the Compatyfhrward purchase agreement
place for purchases of approximately $5.1 milliéfimished product in the month of January 2007.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Company’s obligations subject to variable iasérates include (in thousands, except interéssya

More
Less tha 1-3 3-5 than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Long-term debt:
Variable ratt  $ 43,75( $ 6,25( $ 10,00( $ 27,50( $ -

Average
interest rate 5.88% 5.88% 5.88% 5.88% -

Total $ 43,75( $6,250 $ 10,00( $ 27,500 $ -

The Company has $43.75 million in variable ratetdetnich is made up of the Compasyterm debt whose interest risk is hedge
interest rate swaps discussed above and reprabentmlance outstanding at December 29, 2007 uhdeCredit Agreement. The Compi
estimates that if the debt was not hedged undeintieeest rate swap a 1% increase in interest natedd increase the Compasyinteres
expense by approximately $0.4 million in fiscal 800At December 29, 2007, the Company had no fiaéel debt.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pag
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimg on Consolidate
Financial Statement 43
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiiimgn on Internal Contrc
Over Financial Reportiny 44
Consolidated Balance She-

December 29, 2007 and December 30, . 45
Consolidated Statements of Operati-

Three years ended December 29, . 46
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity -

Three years ended December 29, . 47
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢-

Three years ended December 29, . 49
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 50
Financial Statement Schedu

II- Valuation and Qualifying Accoun-

Three years ended December 29, 77

All other schedules are omitted since the requirddrmation is not present or is not present in
amounts sufficient to require submission of theesktle, or because the information required is
included in the consolidated financial statements rotes thereto.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Re port of Independent Registered Public Accounting Fim

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darling International Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statésnehDarling International Inc. and subsidiarieslisted in the accompanying index
connection with our audits of the consolidated fiitial statements, we have also have audited tla@dial statement schedule as listed ir
accompanying index. These consolidatdohancial statements are the responsibility of @@mpanys management. Our responsibility i
express an opinion on these consolidated finastadments and financial statement schedule basedrcaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlaUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obt@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tiliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenemtekhas evaluating the overall finan:
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteaeferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, the financial position of Darl
International Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decen®29er2007 and December 30, 2006, and the resuttsedfoperations and their cash flows
each of the years in the thrgear period ended December 29, 2007, in conformitly U.S. generally accepted accounting principfdso in
our opinion, the related financial statement scheedwhen considered in relation to basic consaiddtnancial statements taken as a wi
present fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findnsiatements, effective January 1, 2006, the Commaiopted Statement of Finan
Accounting Standards No. 123 (Bhare-Based PaymenAs discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated fifdrstatements, effective Januar
2006, the Company adopted the provision of Seesritind Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bullkd. 108,Considering the Effec
of Prior Year Misstatements When Quantifying Migstents in the Current Year Financial Statementss discussed in Note 12 to
consolidated financial statements, effective Decan8®, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of EigaAccounting Standards No. 1
Employer’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and OtRestretirement Plans.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BodUnited States), Darlir
International Inc.’s internal control over finanicieeporting as of December 29, 2007, based onritestablished irnternal Control -

Integrated Frameworlissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatomhthe Treadway Commission (COSQO), and our repate(
February 27, 2008.

KPMG LLP
Dallas, TX

February 27, 2008
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darling International Inc.:

We have audited Darling International Irscinternal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 29, 2007, based on criteria establist
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSORarling
International Inc.'s management is responsiblenfaintaining effective internal control over finaakreporting and for its assessment ol
effectiveness of internal control over financigbogting, included in the accompanyidanagemens Annual Report on Internal Control o
Financial Reportin¢. Our responsibility is to express an opinion om @ompany’s internal control over financial repogtbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8a&@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corar@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aatl&ing the design and operating effectivenedsatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestatée believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repagtiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdaor external purposes in accordance with gelyeedcepted accounting principles.
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ffppeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assut
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@gamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dcompany are being made only in accordance withogéizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaskurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Darling International Inc. maintadh in all material respects, effective internattcol over financial reporting as of Decem
29, 2007, based on criteria establishethternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrihe
Treadway Commission (COSO)

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the consolida

financial statements of Darling International laad subsidiaries as listed in the accompanyingxingied our report dated February 27, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion on those congeliiinancial statements.

KPMG LLP
Dallas, TX

February 27, 2008
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 2¢

December 30,

ASSETS 2007 2006
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 16,33t % 5,281
Restricted cas 4332 48C
Accounts receivable, less allowance for theldts of
$1,466
at December 29, 2007 and $1,639 atDber
30, 200€ 59,40! 42,38
Inventorie: 22,48! 14,56
Other current asse 8,411 5,03¢
Deferred income taxi 8,02¢ 6,921
Total current ass 115,09 74,66
Property, plant and equipment, | 128,68t 132,14¢
Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of
$42,481
at December 29, 2007 and $37,599 at DeceBthe
2006 29,037 33,657
Goodwill 71,85¢ 71,85¢
Other asset 6,667 6,68:
Deferred income taxe — 1,80(
$ 351,33t $ 320,80t
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lor-term debt $ 6,25C $ 5,00¢
Accounts payable, principally tra 24,87¢ 17,47
Accrued expensi 49,57¢ 34,31¢
Total current liabilitie 80,70¢ 56,79¢
Long-term debt, ne 37,50( 78,00(
Other noncurrent liabilitie 27,22 34,68¢
Deferred income taxes 4,921 —
Total liabilitie 150,35¢ 169,48:
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,0@0es
authorized
81,544,466 and 80,875,453 shares is:
at December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006,
respectively 81E 80¢
Additional pai-in capital 152,26« 150,04!
Treasury stock, at cost; 182,366 and 21,000 slzres
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006,
respectively (1,547 a72)
Accumulated other comprehensive | (8,59¢) (12,739
Accumulated earning 58,05( 12,37¢
Total stockholders’ equity 200,98« 151,32!
$ 351,33t $ 320,80t

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Three years ended December 29, 2007
(in thousands, except per share data)

Decembe Decembe Decembe
29, 30, 31,
2007 2006 2005
Net sales $ 645,31 $ 406,99( $ 308,86
Costs and expense
Cost of sales and operating expel 483,45! 321,41t 241,70°
Selling, general and administrat
expense! 57,99¢ 45,64¢ 35,24(
Depreciation and amortizati 23,214 20,68¢ 15,78"
Total costs and expenses 564,66t 387,75:. 292,73¢
Operating income 80,64" 19,23¢ 16,13:
Other income/(expense
Interest expens (5,045 (7,189 (6,157)
Other, ne (570) (4,682) 903
Total other income/(expens (5,615 (11,86¢) (5,254
Income from continuing operations befc
income taxe: 75,03 7,37 10,87¢
Income taxes 29,49¢ 2,26¢€ 3,184
Income from continuing operatio 45,53 5,107 7,69¢
Income from discontinued operatioinet
of tax - - 46
Net income $ 45537 @ 5107 $ 7,741
Basic and diluted earnings per shs
Continuing operation $ 056 % 0.07 $ 0.12
Discontinued operatior — — —
Total $ 0.5¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.1Z

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Three years ended December 29, 2007
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Accumulate Retained Total
Number of $.01 Additional Other Earnings Stockholdel
Outstandin par Paid-In Treasury Compre- (Accumulate Unearned Equity/
Shares Value Capital Stock hensive Los Deficit) Compensatic (Deficit)

Balances ¢ 63,897, 77, (3,
January 1,2005 346 %639 $ 39¢ $(177) $(7,33N $ 299§ - $67,23C
Net income - - - - - 7,741 - 7,741
Minimum pension
liability

adjustment, net ¢
tax - - -
Natural gas hedg

derivative
adjustment - - - - 197 - - 197
Total
comprehensive

income - - - - - -
Issuance of non-
vested

stock 489,15( 5 1,92: - -
Amortization of
unearned

compensatio -
Issuance ( 50,91
common stock 4 - 54 - - - - 54

|
—
N
[EEN
SN
Ras)

|

|

(2,149

|
o
~
(e}
—~

[

~—

=

©

N

N
[

Balances ¢
December 31, 64,4374 79,
2005 10 $644 $ 37C $ (172) $(9,282) $4,447 $(1,327) $73, 68C

Net income - - - - - 5,10 - 5,107
Minimum pensior
liability

adjustment, net
of tax - - - - 2,41¢ - - 2,41¢
Interest rate swap

derivative
adjustment,

net of tax - - -
Total
comprehensive

income - - - - - - - 7,114
Adjustment to
initially

apply FASB
Statement

No. 158, net of
tax

(revised - - -
Adjustment tc
opening

stockholders’
equity - - - - - 2,82
Adjustment to
initially

apply FASB
Statemen

(40¢) - - (409)

(4,45%) - (4,45¢)

2,82z



No. 123F -
Stock-based
compensatiol -
Tax benefits
associated
with stockbasec
compensatio - - 50 - - - - 50
Issuance (
common stock 16,417,044  16E 70,46¢ - - - - 70,62¢

1,32% -

(1,327)

1,48¢ 1,48¢

Balances ¢
December 30,
2006 80,854,45 $ 80¢ $150,04! $ (172) $(11,73) $12,37¢ $ - $151,32!




DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Qutinued)
Three years ended December 29, 2007
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Accumulate Retained Total

Number of $.01 Additional Other Earnings Stockholdel
Outstandin par Paid-In Treasury Compre- (Accumulate Unearned Equity/
Shares Value Capital Stock hensive Los Deficit) Compensatic (Deficit)

Net income - -
Unrecognized ne
actuarial

loss of defined
benefit

plans:

Pensiol
liability
adjustments,

net of tax - -
Interest rate swa
derivative

adjustment, net of
tax - -
Total
comprehensive
income - -
Adjustment to
initially apply

FIN 48 - -
Stocl-basec
compensation -
Tax benefits
associated with

stock-based
compensation - -
Treasury stock (161,36¢)
Issuance (
common stock 669,01: 6

- - ~ 4553 - 4553

- - 38 - - 3,87(

- - (739 - - (739)

- - - 141 - 141

36& - - - - 36¢

1.22: - - - - 1,22
(1,375 - - - (1,379

631 - - — — 637

Balances ¢
December 29,
2007 81,362,10 $ 81t

$152,26¢ $(1,547) $(8,59¢) $58,05( $ - $200,98

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Three years ended December 29, 2007

(in thousands)

December 29,

December 30,

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 45,53: 5107 $ 7,741
Adjustments to reconcile net income to neh
provided by
operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizat 23,21 20,68¢ 15,787
Deferred income tax 5,61¢ (3,929 (3,850
Gain on sale of ass (5) (42 (555)
Increase/(decrease) in |-term pensior
liability (5,669 1,33¢ 71F
Stoc-based compensation expel 1,23t 1,58¢ 601
Writ-off of deferred loan cos - 2,56¢ -
Changes in operating assets anditiab, net
of effects from acquisitic
Restricted ce 47 1,86¢ 30
Accounts receiva (17,020 (2,787 798
Inventories and prepaigense: (7,728 867 (3,079
Accounts payable and aedrexpense 18,91¢ (1,33¢) 1,27¢
Othe 1,56: 2,904 5,074
Net cash provided by discontinued operat — — 46
Net cash provided by operating atitis 65,701 28,83 24,58¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure (15,557 (11,800 (21,406
Acquisition of NBP, net of cash acquit - (80,16¢€) -
Gross proceeds from sale of property, pladt an
equipment
and other ass¢ 217 73¢ 1,11¢
Payments related to routes and other intagg (262) — (347)
Net cash used in investing actigitie (15,59) (91,22) (20,63¢)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from lo-term debi 42,50( 126,50( -
Payments on loi-term debt (81,759 (93,029 (5,030
Contract paymen (167) (24%) (a7¢)
Deferred loan cos - (1,639 (47)
Issuance of common sta 517 29 54
Minimum withholding taxes paid on stock awa (1,37%) - -
Excess tax benefits from st-based compensatic 1,22 50 -
Net cash provided/(used) in finagcattivities (39,056 31,67¢ (5,195
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. 11,05« (30,719 (1,249
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,281 36,00( 37,24¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 16,33¢ 5,281 $ 36,00(
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year fi
Interest $ 5,151 6,34t $ 5, 76t
Income taxes, net of refunds $ 26,30% 2,68/ $ 3, 85¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. GENERAL
(@) NATURE OF OPERATION(S

Darling International Inc., a Delaware corparvati(“Darling”), is a recycler of food and animal-pyoducts and provides gre.

trap services to food service establishments. imrartollects and recycles animal pyeducts and used cooking oil from f
service establishments. Darling processes rawrialtat 39 facilities located throughout the Uditetates into finished produ
such as protein (primarily meat and bone meal, “MBNallow (primarily bleachable fancy tallow, “BFY; yellow grease (“YG)
and hides. Darling sells these products natioreatlgt internationally, primarily to producers of @lehemicals, soaps, pet foc
leather goods, livestock feed and limls for use as ingredients in their productsoorf@irther processing. As further discusse
Note 3, on May 15, 2006, Darling, through its wi-owned subsidiary Darling National LLC, a Delawamailed liability
company (“Darling National”), completed the acqtisi of substantially all of the assets (the “Tracteon”) of National By-
Products, LLC, an lowa limited liability company NBP”). Darling and its subsidiaries, including Darling Matl, ar
collectively referred to herein as (the “CompanyThe Companys year end results include 52 weeks of contribufiom the
assets acquired in the Transaction, as compar@3 tweeks of contributions from these assets irafig006. The Company’
operations are currently organized into two segmseRendering and Restaurant Services. For addltiorformation on th
Compan’s segments, see Note !

(b) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tleeoants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Aginificant
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidatior

(2) Fiscal Year

The Company has a 52/53 week fiscal year endinthersaturday nearest December 31. Fiscal yeatbdoronsolidate
financial statements included herein are for theng2ks ended December 29, 2007, the 52 weeks dbeesimber 3!
2006, and the 52 weeks ended December 31, :

(3) Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acots

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®dor estimated losses resulting from customeosipayment ¢
trade accounts receivable owed to the Companysdtrade receivables arise in the ordinary courdeisiness from sal
of raw material, finished product or services te @ompanys customers. The estimate of allowance for doubtfaount
is based upon the Compasmybad debt experience, prevailing market condifiamsl aging of trade accounts receive
among other factors. If the financial conditiontleé Company’s customers deteriorates, resultitgarcustomershability
to pay the Compar’'s receivables as they come due, additional alloemfar doubtful accounts may be requir

(4) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mitarkCost is determined using the +in, first-out (FIFO) method

(5) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at ddspreciation is computed by the straitihe method over the estima
useful lives of assets: 1) Buildings and improvategl5 to 30 years2) Machinery and equipment, 3 to 10 years; ar
Vehicles, 2 to 6 years.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expensecagdad and expenditures for major renewals anddrgments al
capitalized.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asse

Goodwill and other intangible assets not subjecartmrtization are tested for impairment annuallynmre frequently
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleahsset might be impaired. Statement of Finakaiabunting Standari
No. 142,Goodwill and Other Intangible AssefsSFAS 142") requires a twetep process for testing impairment. First
fair value of each reporting unit is compared ® darrying value to determine whether an indicatiddnimpairmen
exists. If impairment is indicated, then the feadue of the reporting unit’'s goodwill is determéhby allocating the uni¢’
fair value of its assets and liabilities (includiagy unrecognized intangible assets) as if thertieygounit had been acquir
in a business combination. The amount of impaitni@ngoodwill is measured as the excess of itsyirag value over it
fair value.

The fair values of the Comparsyteporting units containing goodwill exceed thiatesl carrying values; consequently, tl
has been no impairment of goodwill for the peripdssented. Goodwill was approximately $71.9 millat December 2
2007 and December 30, 2006.

Intangible assets subject to amortization condistld collection routes which are made up of g®wb suppliers of ra
materials in similar geographic areas from whice @ompany derives collection fees and a dependailece of ra
materials for processing into finished product};p2rmits that represent licensing of operatingniglathat have be
acquired, giving those plants the ability to oper&) noneompete agreements that represent contractualgemaents wit
former competitors whose businesses were acquaedi;4) royalty and consulting agreements. Amatitim expense
calculated using the straight-line method overdstimated useful lives of the assets ranging fr@20 years for collectic
routes; 20 years for permits; and 3-10 years forcmmpete covenants.

The gross carrying amount of intangible assetsestitp amortization include (in thousanc

December 29,

December 30,

2007 2006
Intangible Assets
Routes $ 48,23¢ $ 47,987
Permits 20,50( 20,50(
Non-compete agreemer 2,36¢€ 2,35¢€
Royalty and consulting agreeme 413 413
71,51¢ 71,25¢
Accumulated Amortizatior
Routes (38,43)) (34,779
Permits (1,676 (650C)
Non-compete agreemer (2,059 (1,880
Royalty and consulting agreements (309) 290)
(42,487) (37,599
Intangible assets, le. accumulater
amortization $ 29,03" $ 33,65"

Amortization expense for the three years ended Dbee 29, 2007, December 30, 2006 and December (815, 2va
approximately $4,882,000, $4,552,000 and $3,884 @3pectively. Amortization expense for the nfive fiscal years |

estimated to be $4,905,000, $2,072,000, $1,817%06,70,000 and $1,469,0(
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Environmental Expenditure

Environmental expenditures incurred to mitigatgm@vent environmental impacts that have yet to paad that otherwit
may result from future operations are capitalizEBapenditures that relate to an existing conditansed by past operatic
and that do not contribute to current or futureeraies are expensed or charged against establishérenente
reserves. Reserves are established when envirdaimempacts have been identified which are probailerequire
mitigation and/or remediation and the costs areaeably estimable

Income Taxe:!

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method. Under the asset and liigbinethod, deferre
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for tteiré tax consequences attributable to differefedaeen the financi
statement carrying amounts of existing assetsiabdities and their respective tax bases. Detktex assets and liabiliti
are measured using enacted tax rates expecteglptapaxable income in the years in which thasmporary difference
are expected to be recovered or settled. Thetaffedeferred tax assets and liabilities of a clkangax rates is recogniz
in income in the period that includes the enactndeité.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.42@&counting for Income taxesquires the Company to periodici
assess whether it is more likely than not thatiit generate sufficient taxable income to realit® deferred income t
assets. In making this determination, the Compammgiders all available positive and negative ewigeand makes cert:
assumptions. The Company considers, among othegsthits deferred tax liabilities, the overall mess environment,

historical earnings and losses, current indusepds and its outlook for future years. Althougl @ompany is unable
carryback any of its net operating losses, baseuh upcent favorable operating results and futuogeptions, certain n
operating losses can be carried forward and utilize

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardar8q“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48ccounting fo
Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation ofSBAStatement No. 1q%IN 48"), which prescribes accounting
and disclosure of uncertain tax positions (“UTPFIN 48 requires application of a more likely thamt threshold to tt
recognition and deecognition of UTP. FIN 48 permits recognitiontbé amount of tax benefit that has a greater ti
percent likelihood of being realized upon settleménfurther requires that a change in judgmestated to the expect
ultimate resolution of UTP be recognized in earsiingthe quarter of change. Effective December2806 the Compai
adopted the provisions of FIN 48 resulting in aucttn in the Companyg’ existing reserves for uncertain state and fe
income tax positions of approximately $0.1 milliofhis reduction was recorded as a cumulative effefustment t
retained earnings. At the adoption date of Decendtie 2006, the Company had $0.7 million of groeseaognized te
benefits. If the Company recognized such tax btndhe net impact on the Compasyéffective tax rate would be $
million, which includes the effect of the reverséthe $0.1 million deferred tax asset. At Decen2fs 2007, the Compa
had $0.5 million of gross unrecognized tax bengifitecognized, the net impact on the Comparsffective tax rate wou
be $0.4 million, which includes the effect of tlewersal of $0.1 million in deferred tax asset. #ddally, at December 3
2006, the Company had an accrual for interest @méles of $0.1 million. The Company recognizesraed interest ai
penalties, as appropriate, related to unrecogrieetienefits as a component of income tax expe
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

The following table shows a reconciliation of thenge in the unrecognized tax benefit balancecfderal, state ar
foreign taxes for the period ended December 297 Zb0thousands

2007
Balance December 31, 20 $ 68¢
Additions for tax positions related to the currgear -
Reductions for tax positions related to the curyeyar -
Additions for tax positions related to prior ye 41
Reductions for tax positions related to prior ye (73)
Settlement: (68)
Lapses in statutes of limitatio (46)
Balance December 29, 2007 $ 54z

The Company major taxing jurisdictions include the U.S. (fedleand state). The Company is no longer subgetdera
examinations on years prior to fiscal 2005. Thenber of years open for state tax audits variesending on the te
jurisdiction, but are generally from three to fiyears. Currently, several state examinations &herein progress i
scheduled to begin. The Company does not anteifhett any state or federal audits will have aifigant impact on th
Companys results of operations or financial position.afidition, the Company does not reasonably expactimifican
changes to the estimated amount of liability asgedi with the Compar's UTP in fiscal 200€

(9) Net Income per Common She

Basic income per common share is computed\agidg net income by the weighted average numbeoaimon shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted income pencwn share is computed by dividing net income lemieighted
average number of common shares outstanding dtivégear increased by dilutive common equivaleateh determined
using the treasury stock methe

Net Income per Common Share (in thousal

December 2! December 3( December 3:
2007 2006 2005
Per- Per- Per-
Income Share Share Income Share Share Income Share Share
Basic:
Income from continuin
operation: $45,53. 80,772  $0.5¢ $5,107 74,310 $0.07 $7,69¢ 63,929 $0.12
Income from discontinue
operations, net of te - 80,772 — — 74,310 — 46 63,929 -
Net income 45,53 80,772 0.5¢ 5,107 74,310 0.07 7,741 63,929 0.12
Diluted:
Effect of dilutive securitie
Add: Option shares in the
money anc
dilutive effect o - 1,772 - - 1,264 - - 1,053 -
restricted stocl
Less: Pro-forma treasury - (648 - - (315) - — (457, -
shares

Income from continuiny
operation: $45,53 81,896 $0.5¢ $5,107 75,259 $0.07 $7,69¢ 64,525 $0.1Z



Income from discontinue
operations, net of tax — 81,896 — — 75,259 — 46 64,525 —
Net income $45,53. 81,896 $0.5¢ $5,107 75,259 $0.07 $7,741 64,525 $0.12

Page 5:




(10)

DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

For fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, 5,187,950 and 726,092 outstanding stock options veecluded frot
diluted income per common share as the effect wéigiftive. For fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, redpely, 117,17¢
248,848 and 286,168 shares of n@sted stock and restricted stock were excludad fitduted income per common sh
as the effect was antidilutive. For fiscal 20000& and 2005, respectively, 60,713, 99,821 and gkaves of continge
issuable stock were excluded from diluted incomecpenmon share as the effect was antidilut

Stock Based Compensati

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting 8#ads Board (“FASB”)ssued Statement of Financial Accounting Stan
No. 123 (revised 2004)Share-Based Paymer(tSFAS 123(R)"). SFAS 123(R) requires all entities to recog
compensation expense in an amount equal to thedhie of the share-based payments (e.g., stodenspand nonveste:
and restricted stock) granted to employees or byriimg liabilities to an employee or other supplia) in amounts base
at least in part, on the price of the enstghares or other equity instruments, or (b) thatire or may require settlement
issuing the entity’s equity shares or other equisgruments.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptedptiozisions of SFAS 123(R) and related interpretegjousing th
modified prospective method. Using the modifiedgmective method of SFAS 123(R), the Company begeognizin
compensation expense for the remaining unvestetloper of stockbased compensation granted prior to Janua
2006. As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R), forykar ended December 30, 2006, the Company recadigitional stoc
option expense of approximately $0.5 million, whielduced income from continuing operations andrme®efore incornr
taxes by approximately $0.5 million, reduced nebme by $0.4 million, and reduced basic and dileachings per she
by $0.01 per share. Total stobksed compensation recognized under SFAS 123(Rgistatements of operations for
years ended December 29, 2007, December 30, 2@DBerember 31, 2005 was approximately $1.4 milli&hg millior
and $0.6 million, respectively, which is included selling, general and administrative costs, ardrtlated income ti
benefit recognized was approximately $0.4 milli#0,6 million and $0.2 million, respectively. Seetdl 11 for furthe
information on the Company’s stock-based compenisatians.

SFAS 123(R) requires the benefits of tax deductiorexcess of recognized compensation cost to fherted as a financii
cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flowegsired under the Accounting Principles BoardRBX) Opinion No
25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employemsd related interpretations. For the year endece®éer 29, 2007 a
December 30, 2006, the Company recognized $1.2omidnd $50,000, respectively in such tax dedustiavhich wer
recorded as an increase in financing cash flowsaaredluction in operating cash flows.

Prior to adopting SFAS 123(R), the Company accalfaeits stock options under the Compang2004 Omnibus Incenti
Plan (the “2004 Plan”) in accordance with the ps@ns of APB Opinion No. 25. Under the intrinsighue methoc
compensation expense is recorded only to the e#tantthe grant price is less than market on thasmmement date. /
options granted under the 2004 Plan were issued above market price, and therefore no stbaked compensation v
recorded due to option grants.

The following table illustrates the effect on netéme and income per share if the fair value basettiod, net of applicak
taxes, had been applied to all outstanding ancedemivards in fiscal 2005 (in thousands, excepspare amounts
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Decembel
31,
2005
Reported net incom $ 7,741
Add: Stock-based employeempensation expense inclut
in reported net
income, net of ta 391
Deduct: Total stoc-based employee compensation expe
determined under

fair-value-based method for all rewards, netbaf (979
Pro forma net incom $ 7,159
Earnings per shan

Basic — as reported $ 0.12

Basic- pro forma $ 0.11

Diluted — as reported $ 0.12

Diluted — pro forma $ 0.11

The fair value of each stock option grant urttierCompanys stock option plan was estimated on the dateanftgrsing th
Black Scholes optiopricing model with the following weighted averagssamptions and results for fiscal 2007
2005. No options were granted during fiscal 2(

Weighted Averag 2007 2005
Expected dividend yiel 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rat 4.57% 3.94%
Expected tern 5.75 years 5.9 years
Expected volatility 52.1% 55.0%
Fair value of options grante $4.30 $2.04

The expected lives for options granted during 280@ 2005 were computed using the simplified metogrescribed t
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107.

At December 29, 2007, $1.1 million of total futwguity-based compensation expense (determined trenBlackSchole
option pricing model) related to outstanding n@sted options and stock awards is expected tedmgnized ratably ovel
weighted average period of 1.7 ye:

Statements of Cash Floy

The Company considers all shéetm highly liquid instruments, with an original togty of three months or less, to be ¢
equivalents

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedoamting principle
requires management to make estimates and assmsighiat affect the reported amounts of assets iabdities ant
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiehatdate of the consolidated financial statememdstae reported amounts
revenues and expenses during the reporting peAatlal results could differ from those estima
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

If it is at least reasonably possible that theneste of the effect on the financial statements odradition, situation, or set
circumstances that exist at the date of the firdmstiatements will change in the near term duerte or more futui
confirming events and the effect of the change @dnd material to the financial statements, the Gomgpwill disclose th
nature of the uncertainty and include an indicatioat it is at least reasonably possible that angban the estimate w
occur in the near term. If the estimate involvdess contingency covered by FASB Statement Nah& disclosure wi
also include an estimate of the possible lossmgeaf loss or state that an estimate cannot ber

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets and Lor-Lived Assets to Be Disposed

The Company follows Statement of Financial AccoumtStandards No. 14#ccounting for the Impairment of Disposa
Long-Lived Asset§'SFAS 144”). The Company reviews the carryingueabf longhved assets for impairment when ev¢
or changes in circumstances indicate that the icaygmount of an asset, or related asset group,noglye recoverable frc
estimated future undiscounted cash flows. Recdiéaof assets to be held and used is measurea tgmparison of tt
carrying amount of an asset or asset group to astinundiscounted future cash flows expected temerated by the as
or asset group. If the carrying amount of the agseeeds its estimated future cash flows, an impait charge
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amad the asset exceeds the fair value of the as¥EAS 144 requir
discontinued operations to be carried at the logfecost or fair value less costs to sell and rexpuithe classification
operating results of discontinued operations tedparately presented, net of tax, within the stategrof operations

Financial Instrument

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalentspumts receivable, accounts payable and accrugeneg
approximates fair value due to the short maturftyhese instruments. In addition, the carryingoant of the Company’
outstanding borrowings under the Credit Agreemezgicdbed in Notes 2 and 8 approximates the fainevalue to th
floating interest rates on the borrowin

Derivative Instrument

The Company makes limited use of derivative insgnta to manage cash flow risks related to intenggense. Interest r:
swaps are entered into with the intent of managiwerall borrowing costs by reducing the potentimpact of increases
interest rates on floating-rate long-term debt. Toenpany does not use derivative instruments &atiig purposes.

Under Financial Accounting Standards No. 13%¢counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgingtivities
(“SFAS 133"),entities are required to report all derivative instents in the statement of financial positionaat ¥alue. Th
accounting for changes in the fair value (i.e.ngabr losses) of a derivative instrument dependsvbether it has be:
designated and qualifies as part of a hedgingioelstip and, if so, on the reason for holding thstrument. If certa
conditions are met, entities may elect to desigaatierivative instrument as a hedge of exposurehaoges in fair valu
cash flows or foreign currencies. If the hedgeplosxire is a cash flow exposure, the effective portif the gain or loss
the derivative instrument is reported initially @component of other comprehensive income (outsfdearnings) and
subsequently reclassified into earnings when thmectsted transaction affects earnings. Any amoexdttuded from th
assessment of hedge effectiveness as well asdffedtive portion of the gain or loss are repoitegarnings immediatel
If the derivative instrument is not designated agdge, the gain or loss is recognized in earrimgfse period of chang
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On May 19, 2006, the Company entered into two @gkerate swap agreements that are considered loasihdédges according
SFAS 133. Under the terms of these swap agreemmgsining June 30, 2006, the cash flows fromQhmpanys $50.0 milliot
floating-rate term loan facility under the Comparedit agreement have been exchanged for fiatg-contracts that be
interest, payable quarterly. The first swap agranfor $25.0 million matures April 7, 2012 and fzemterest at 5.42%, whi
does not include the borrowing spread per the Caoyipacredit agreement, with amortizing payments thatomthe term loa
facility. The second swap agreement for $25.0iomlimatures April 7, 2012 and bears interest at ®4, which does not inclu
the borrowing spread per the Companyredit agreement, with amortizing payments thatomthe term loan facility. Tt
Company'’s receive rate on each swap agreemensedban threeaonth LIBOR. At December 29, 2007, the fair vabiethes:
interest swap agreements was $1.9 million and daided in noreurrent other liabilities on the balance sheethviite offse
recorded to accumulated other comprehensive loss.

A summary of the derivative adjustment recordeddoumulated other comprehensive income, the neigeharising from hedgil
transactions, and the amounts recognized in eardogng the years ended December 29, 2007 andnibere30, 2006 are
follows (in thousands

2007 2006

Derivative adjustment included in accumulated other

comprehensive loss at December 30, 2006 and
December 31, 200 $ 40¢ 3 -
Net change arising from current perihedging transactior 68¢ 404
Reclassifications into earnin 46 4
Accumulated other comprehensive loss at

December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 (a) $ 1,142 $ 40¢

(a) Reported as accumulated other comprehensive loapmbximately $1.9 million and $0.7 million recerinet ¢
taxes of approximately
$0.7 millionand $0.3 million at December 29, 2007 and DecerBbeR006, respectivel

The Company estimates the amount that will be ssdiad from accumulated other comprehensive lo§&eaember 29, 2007 ir
earnings in fiscal 2008 will be approximately $én8lion.

At December 29, 2007, the Company has forward msehagreements in place for purchases of appraxiyn®5.3 million o
natural gas for the months of January through Mastt2008. These forward purchase agreements haveeh settleme
provisions and the Company intends to take physielivery. Accordingly, the forward purchase agreets are not subject to -
requirements of SFAS 133 because they qualify analogpurchases as defined in the stanc

(16) Comprehensive Incon
The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 1Reporting Comprehensive Incor(*SFAS 13("). SFAS 13|
establishes standards for reporting and presentatiocomprehensive income and its components. cboraance wit

SFAS 130, the Company has presented the compomént®mprehensive income in its consolidated statgme
stockholder’ equity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

(17) Revenue Recognitic

The Company recognizes revenue on sales when peodieeshipped and the customer takes ownershipssuines risk
loss. Collection fees are recognized in the mémehservice is provide:

FINANCING
Credit Agreemen

The Company entered into a $175 million credit agrent (the“Credit Agreemer”) with lenders on April 7, 2006 whi
replaced the former senior credit agreement exddatépril 2004. The Credit Agreement provides éototal of $175.0 millio
in financing facilities, consisting of a $50.0 rioh term loan facility and a $125.0 million revoiviacility, which includes
$35.0 million letter of credit sufacility. As of December 29, 2007, the Company bagowed all $50.0 million under the te
loan facility which provides for quarterly scheddilemortization payments of $1.25 million over theyear term ending April
2012; at that point, the remaining balance of $2filtion will be payable in full. The revolving edit facility has a fivereal
term ending April 7, 2011. The proceeds of theohemg credit facility may be used for: (i) theymaent of fees and expen
payable in connection with the Credit Agreementjuggitions and the repayment of indebtedness;fi(igncing the workin
capital needs of the Company and its subsidiades; (iii) other general corporate purposes. Thecgrds of the term lo
facility and a portion of the revolving credit fityi were used to pay a portion of the considerafiar the Transaction. See N
3 for further discussion regarding the Transaction.

The Credit Agreement allows for borrowings at penam rates based on the following loan types. rAlite base rate loe
under the Credit Agreement will bear interest aate per annum based on the greater of (a) theeprate and (b) the Fede
Funds Effective Rate plus 1/2 of 1% plus, in eaatec a margin determined by reference to a prigiithand adjusted accordi
to the Company adjusted leverage ratio. Eurodollar loans wélabinterest at a rate per annum based on theatmglicabl
London InterBank Offer Rate ("LIBOR") multiplied by the statuyoreserve rate plus a margin determined by referdn
pricing grid and adjusted according to the Compaiagljusted leverage ratio. At December 29, 20@&uthe Credit Agreeme
the interest rate for $42.5 million of the termridhat was outstanding was based on LIBOR plusrgimaf 1.0% per annum f
a total of 5.875% per annum and the interest @t&1.25 million of the term loan was based on priptus a margin of 0.0% {
a total of 7.25% per annum. At December 29, 20t8tet were no outstanding borrowings under the Caogiparevolving
facility.

The Credit Agreement contains certain restrictisgenants that are customary for similar credit regeanents and requires
maintenance of certain minimum financial ratioheTCredit Agreement also requires the Company tkencartain mandato
prepayments of outstanding indebtedness usingeheash proceeds received from certain dispositidrnmoperty, casualty
condemnation, any sale or issuance of equity isteran a public offering or in a private placemeambpermitted addition
indebtedness incurred by the Company, and excessfloav under certain circumstances.

On April 7, 2006, the Company repaid the balancahenterm facility under its former senior credifreement and incurrec
write-off of deferred loan costs of approximately $1.%liom.
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The Company’s Credit Agreement consisted of thiefdhg elements at December 29, 2007 and Decenthez(®6,
respectively (in thousands

December December
29, 30,
2007 2006
Credit Agreement
43 7
Term Loan $ 50 $ 47,50(
Revolving Credit Facility
Maximum availability $  125,00( $ 125,00
Borrowings outstandin - 35,50(
Letters of credit issue 18,881 18,391
Availability $ 106,11¢ $ 71,10¢

The obligations under the Credit Agreement are @jueed by Darling National and are secured by aubatly all of the
property of the Company, including a pledge ofegility interests in Darling National. As of Deceanl29, 2007, the Compa
was in compliance with all the covenants contaiinettie Credit Agreemen

Senior Subordinated Not:

On December 31, 2003, the Company issued seniordinated notes in the principal amount of $35.0iom. On June 1, 200
the Company retired the senior subordinated nasgggumoney available under the Credit Agreementiandrred charges
$1.925 million for prepayment fees and approximea$d.1 million to write off deferred loan cos

ACQUISITION

On May 15, 2006, Darling, through its whc-owned subsidiary Darling National, completed theuasition of substantially all «
the assets of NBP (the “TransactionThe purchase was accounted for as an asset purpbesent to the terms of the a
purchase agreement, by and among Darling, DarlisipNal and NBP, whereby Darling National acquisetistantially all of th
assets and liabilities of NBP. The assets acquirtdtie Transaction has increased Darkngapabilities by growing revenu
diversifying the raw material supplies and creatirigrger platform to grow Darling’s restaurantsegs business.

As a result of the Transaction, effective May 180&, the Company began including the operatiorSB#® into the Company’
consolidated financial statements. The followiradplé presents selected pro forrmdormation, for comparative purpos
assuming the Transaction had occurred on Janu&@Q0h for the periods presented (unaudited) (inshads, except per sh
data):

The selected unaudited pro forma information is metessarily indicative of the consolidated resaoft®perations for futu
periods or the results of operations that wouldehizeen realized had the Transaction actually oedwn January 2, 200

December December

30, 31,
2006 2005
Net sale: $ 480,34 $ 497,03¢
Income from continuing operatiol 9,19« 18,04(
Net income 9,19« 18,08t
Earnings per shal
Basic and dilute $ 011 $ 0.2z
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The Transaction was accounted for using the puechasthod of accounting for business combinatiords ancordingly, th

results of operations related to the Transactiorelzeen included in the Compasyconsolidated financial statements since
date of acquisition.

The purchase price for the Transaction totaled ¥18@llion, which included the issuance of approately 16.3 million shar
of Darling common stock valued at $70.5 million.

The following table summarizes the fair value &f #ssets acquired and liabilities assumed as of 18ag006 (in thousands):

Accounts receivable, n $ 13,70¢
Inventory, nei 7,18¢
Other current asse 13t
Deferred tax asst 42~
Identifiable intangible: 25,74(
Property and equipme 51,89:
Goodwill 68,34
Accounts payabl (7,83%)
Accrued expense (7,650
Other liabilities (1,279

Purchase pric $ 150,66t

As a result of the acquisition of NBP, the Compaegiuced its valuation allowance for -acquisition deferred tax asset:
approximately $0.9 million, resulting in a reductiof the $68.3 million of goodwill to $67.4 million

The $67.4 million of goodwill was assigned to tkadering and restaurant services segments in tbargmof $53.0 million ar
$14.4 million, respectively. Of the total amou$62.0 million is expected to be deductible for faxrposes. Identifiab
intangibles include $5.1 million in routes with &ighted average useful life of 20 years, $20.5iomlln permits with a weightt
average useful life of 20 years, and $0.1 milliomor-compete agreements with a useful life of 5 ye

NOTE 4. INVENTORIES
A summary of inventories follows (in thousanc

December December

29, 30,
2007 2006
Finished produc $ 1967¢ $  11,90¢
Supplies and othe 2,801 2,65:
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NOTE 5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN"
A summary of property, plant and equipment folldimsthousands)
Decembe  Decembe
29, 30,
2007 2006
Land $ 1750 $ 17,97
Buildings and improvemen 45,68« 44,45(
Machinery and equipme 205,37t 195,70:
Vehicles 54,48: 54,96(
Construction in proces 4,79¢ 3,12
327,84: 316,21(
Accumulated depreciatic (199,15) (184,067
$ 128,68' $ 132,14¢
NOTE 6. ACCRUED EXPENSE!
Accrued expenses consist of the following (in trangs):
Decembe  Decembe
29, 30,
2007 2006
Compensation and benef $ 1641 $ 7,17
Utilities and sewag 5,23( 4,59¢
Accrued income, ad valorem, and franchise t 2,27 4,47¢
Reserve for self insurance, litigation, environna¢rand tax
matters (Note 14 5,75( 6,41¢
Medical claims liability 3,29¢ 3,494
Other accrued expense 16, 613 8, 15¢
$ 4957¢ $§  34,31¢
NOTE 7. LEASES

The Company leases four plants and storage lostibree office locations and a portion of its gartation equipment und
operating leases. Leases are noncancellable giret ex various times through the year 2028. Minimmental commitments
under noncancellable leases as of December 29, 20®as follows (in thousand:

Period Endin Operating
Fiscal Leases
2008 $ 9,94:
2009 8,42¢
2010 6,192
2011 4,72¢
2012 2,77
Thereafte 9,76(
Total $ 41,82:

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended Decemhe2@¥, December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005&&smillion, $6..
million and $5.5 million, respectivel
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NOTE 8. DEBT

Debt consists of the following (in thousanc

Decembe!

29, December 3(

2007 2006

Credit Agreement (Note 2

Revolving Credit Facilit $ - $ 35,50(
Term Loar 43,75( 47,50(
Other Notes - 4
43,75( 83,00¢
Less Current Maturities 6,25( 5,004

§ 3750 3 78,00

Maturities of loni-term debt at December 29, 2007 follow (in thousgr

Contractua
Debt Paymen
2008 $ 6,25(
2009 5,00(
2010 5,00(
2011 5,00(
2012 22,50(
$43,75(

As of December 29, 2007, current maturities of dgl#i6.25 million will be due during fiscal 2008high include a schedule
payment of $1.25 million due December 31, 2007 saitbduled installment payments of $1.25 million daeh quarte

NOTE 9. OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Other noncurrent liabilities consist of the followgi (in thousands

Decembel
29, December 3(
2007 2006
Accrued pension liabilit $ 9,16 $ 18,69¢
Reserve for self insurance, litigation, environna¢éand tax
matters (Note 14 15,05 15,081
Other 3,00¢ 90C

NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense/(benefit) attributable to medrom continuing operations before income taxessists of the following (in

thousands)

Decembe Decembe

29, 30, December 3:
2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal $ 2241t $ 429, $ 4,82¢
State 3,301 52¢ 17€
Deferred:

Federal and Sta 3,78C (2,557 (1,81




$ 29,49¢ ¢ 2,26¢ $ 3,18¢
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Income tax expense for the years ended Decemb@0R9, December 30, 2006 and December 31, 200Bretif from the
amount computed by applying the statutory U.S. f@ldacome tax rate to income from continuing ogierss before income

taxes as a result of the following (in thousan

December December December
29, 30, 31,
2007 2006 2005

Computec”expecte” tax expens: $ 2626. $ 2,581 $ 3,75
State income taxe 2,821 27% 39:¢
Section 199 deductic (832) (143 -
Non-deductible employee compensat 50C - -
Tax credits (49) (20¢) (257)
Reversal of reserve for tax (52) (272) (700)
Other, ne 843 35 (5)
$ 29,49¢ § 2,26¢ $ 3,18¢

The tax effects of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilit

at December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 aremessbelow (in thousand:

Decembe!
29,
2007

Decembe!
30,
2006

Deferred tax asset

$ 12,16
6,93¢
2,74¢
7,30¢€
2,27¢

31,43:
(9,416)

22,01¢

(2,035)
(10,119
(1,145)

(13,295

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 7,262
Loss contingency reserv 6,94¢
Employee benefit 2,84:
Pension liability 4,53¢
Other 2,38
Total gross deferred tax ass 23,96%

Less valuation allowance (4,799

Net deferred tax asse 19,17

Deferred tax liabilities

Intangible assets amortizati (3,01¢)
Property, plant and equipment deprecia (11,159
Other (1,899
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (16,069

$ 3,10¢

$ 8,721

At December 29, 2007, the Company had net operatisg carryforwards for federal income tax purposkspproximatel
$19,475,000 expiring through 2020. The availabitif the net operating loss carryforwards to rediutare taxable income
subject to various limitations. As a result of tfeange in ownership which occurred pursuant taMag 2002 recapitalizatio
utilization of the net operating loss carryforwaisgldimited to approximately $687,000 per year ttoe remaining life of the n

operating losses.

The net change in the total valuation allowance wacrease of $4,623,000 for the year ended Demre?h 2007 due to t

expected expiration of net operating loss carryéods in future period:
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NOTE 11. STOCKHOLDERY¢ EQUITY AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 11, 2005, the shareholders approved the Z0@d4. The 2004 Plan replaced both the 1994 Enepldylexible Stoc
Option Plan and the NoBmployee Directors Stock Option Plan and thus beaadhe array of equity alternatives availablehg
Company. Under the 2004 Plan, the Company is allbwo grant stock options, stock appreciation sghmonvested an
restricted stock (including performance stock)trieted stock units (including performance unitgher stock-based awards, non-
employee director awards, dividend equivalents eamshbased awards. There are up to 6,074,969 commaesshaailabl
under the 2004 Plan which may be granted to antjcnt in any plan year as defined in the 20GnPISome of those sha
are subject to outstanding awards as detaileddrtahles below. To the extent these outstandiraydsvare forfeited or exp
without exercise, the shares will be returned o available for future grants under the 2004 Plahe 2004 Plars purpose is -
attract, retain and motivate employees, directadsthird party service providers of the Company mencourage them to hav
financial interest in the Company. The 2004 Plaradministered by the Compensation Committee (@enimittee”)of the
Board of Directors. The Committee has the authadit select plan participants, grant awards, angrdene the terms a
conditions of such awards as defined in the 20@h.PThe Companyg’ stock options granted under the 2004 Plan gdn
terminate 10 years after date of grant. At Deceam@Be 2007, the number of equity awards availabteégsuance under the 2(
Plan was 3,481,742.

The following is a summary of stoddased compensation granted during the years endeeniiber 29, 2007, December 30, 2
and December 31, 2005.

Nongualified Stock Option. On March 17, 2005, under the previous NEmployee Director Stock Option Plan, the Comy
granted 20,000 nonqualified n@mployee director stock options, in the aggredatéiye directors. The exercise price for tk
options was $4.04 per share (fair market valugattglate). Under the 2004 Plan, on May 11, 2@@Company granted 4,C
nonqualified stock options to the nemployee director newly elected to the board bystoekholders. The exercise price for
May 11, 2005 stock options was $3.95 per share iffarket value at grant date). On May 8, 2007o%ahg their election to tt
board by the stockholders, the Company granted08p@hqualified stock options in the aggregate ®ttho most recent non-
employee directors. The exercise price for the Nay2007 stock options was $8.03 per share (fairketavalue at gra
date). All of the noremployee director stock options vest 25 percentnsiaths after the grant date and 25 percent on
anniversary date thereafter.

On November 19, 2004, subject to the approval ef2004 Plan, the Company issued 276,600 nonquhsfieck options to fol
of the executive officers of the Company, thathie Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Viaedtdents of Finance a
Administration, Operations, and Commodities (cdliezdly with the Executive Vice President of Salesl &ervices these office
are referred to in this note as “Named ExecutivBc®fs”). The nonqualified stock options at November 19, 2@@4e issued
an exercise price of $4.16. This exercise priggagents a 10% premium to the fair market valuéhefCompanys commo
stock at the issue date. On May 11, 2005, thesedsstock options were authorized by the shareholhd made effective a
result of the approval of the 2004 Plan. Additihynaon June 16, 2005, the Company granted an gateel 94,350 nonqualifi
stock options under the 2004 Plan to the Named Wkex Officers at an exercise price of $3.94, whielpresented a 1(
premium to the fair market value of the Compangbmmon stock at the grant date. The nonqual#ftedk options vest ovel
three-year period at 33-1/3 percent per year.

Incentive Stock Options On June 16, 2005, the Company granted 82,500ntivee stock options to various additio
employees. The exercise price was equal to thenfarket value at the grant date of $3.58 per shahese incentive sto
options vest 20 percent at grant date and 20 peoceeach anniversary date thereafter.

A summary of stock option activity as of Decemb@y 2007 and changes during the year ended is gessbalow.
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Weighted-avg. Weighted-avg.
Number of  exercise price remaining

shares per share contractual life

Options outstanding at December
2006 1,673,98! 2.71

Grantec 8,00( 8.03

Exercisec (352,280) 1.47

Forfeited (9,000 4.02

Expired — N/A
Options outstanding at December 29, 1, 320,
2007 70E 3.06 6.1 years
Options exercisable at December 29, 1,183,
2007 427 2.95 6.0 years

For the year ended December 29, 2007, the amouw#stf received from the exercise of options wascqpately $0.5 milliol
and the related tax benefits were approximatel? $tillion. For the years ended December 30, 20@bRecember 31, 2005,
amount of cash received from the exercise of optimmd the related tax benefits were insignificartte total intrinsic value
options exercised for the years ended Decembe2@®7, December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 pm@exmately $2.
million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million, respectiyel The fair value of shares vested for the yeaded December 29, 201
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 was appetedy $0.6 million, $0.7 million and $0.6 milliomespectively. A2
December 29, 2007, the aggregate intrinsic valuepifons outstanding was approximately $11.4 millend the aggreg:
intrinsic value of options exercisable was appratesty $10.3 million.

Non-Vested Stock Awards On November 19, 2004, subject to the approvahef2004 Plan, the Company issued 477,200
vested stock awards to the Chief Executive Offared the Executive Vice Presidents of Finance anehiAtration, Operation
and Commodities. On May 11, 2005, upon approvahef2004 Plan these awards were authorized bgttheeholders and me
effective. Additionally, on June 16, 2005, the Qmany granted 11,950 norested stock awards to the Executive Vice Pres

nor

of Sales and Services. These non-vested stockdawantain vesting periods of four to six yearsrfrdate of issuance. The six-

year awards contain accelerated vesting provisimased upon specified increases in the Con’s stock price. During tl
second quarter of 2005, the Company recorded $ill®mof unearned compensation for the market gabfi the shares on {
date of grant. The unearned compensation is baingrtized to expense over the estimated lapse smiagons of 1.3 -4
years. During fiscal 2007 the accelerated vegtiogisions on the s-year awards were met and those shares vested.

On March 9, 2006, the Compasyboard of directors approved the contingent isseiaf 296,500 shares of common stoc
certain members of management upon completioneofitnsaction. These contingent shares had adhie of approximate
$0.6 million at date of grant. These shares wssadd in the third quarter of fiscal 2007 as altedfuthe Companys averag
stock price for the 90-day period ending on June2B07 exceeded $4.31 per share.

A summary of the Compa’s nor-vested stock awards as of December 29, 2007, aanthek during the year ended is as foll

Weighted

Average
Non-Vestec Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Stock awards outstanding December 30, Z 779,67 $ 3.4¢
Shares grante - N/A
Shares veste (529,67 2.8¢
Shares forfeitel — —
Stock awards outstanding December 29, 2007 250,000 $ 3.9
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Restricted Stock Awards.On March 9, 2006, the Company's Board of Directgpproved a NoEmployee Director Restrict
Stock Award Plan (the "Director Restricted Stoc&rP) pursuant to and in accordance with the 20@4 ii order to attract a
retain highly qualified persons to serve as eomployee directors and to more closely align suicactbrs' interests with tl
interests of the stockholders of the Company byigiog a portion of their compensation in the fooffCompany common stoc

Under the Director Restricted Stock Plan, $20,00festricted Company common stock (the "Restri&exutk") will be awarde
to each noremployee director on the third business day afterGompany releases its earnings for its prior detag fiscal yee
(the "Date of Award"). The Restricted Stock will bebject to a right of repurchase at $0.01 pereshipon termination of fl
holder as a member of the Company's board of diredbr cause and will not be transferable. Thesgrictions will lapse wit
respect to 100% of the Restricted Stock upon thigestito occur of (i) ten years after the Datedefard, (i) a Change of Contr
(as defined in the 2004 Plan), and (iii) terminatiof the nonemployee director's service with the Company, othan fo
"cause" (as defined in the Director Restricted Bt®lan). On March 20, 2007 and March 21, 2006,Gbepany issued 20,2
and 21,925 shares of restricted stock in the aggeegespectively, to its nagmployee directors under the Director Restri
Stock Plan.

A summary of the Company’s directorgstricted stock awards as of December 29, 20@¥changes during the year ended
follows:

Weighted Average

Restrictec Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Stock awards outstanding December 30, Z 17,54C % 4.5¢€
Restricted shares grant 20,23: 5.9¢
Restricted shares where the restriction laj (7,75%) 5.1¢
Restricted shares forfeitt — N/A
Stock awards outstanding December 29, Z 30,01 % 5.3¢

Long-Term Incentive Opportunity Award. The Committee has adopted a L-Term Incentive Plan (th“LTIP”) for the
Companys key employees, as a subplan under the term®&@84 Plan. The principal purpose of the LTIRigncourage tt
Company’s executives to enhance the value of thegaoy and, hence, the price of the Company’s sémckthe stockholders’
return. In addition, the LTIP is designed to ceeattention incentives for the individual and teyde an opportunity fc
increased equity ownership by executives. The Cittmenawarded dollar value performance based ogstristock opportuniti
under the LTIP for fiscal 2007 to certain of then@any’s officers, including each of the Named ExireuOfficers (the 2007
Restricted Stock Awards”)The restricted stock underlying the 2007 Restri@éack Awards is issued only if a predeterm
financial objective is met by the Company. The @amy met the financial objective for fiscal 200&ccordingly, in accordant
with the terms of the 2007 Restricted Stock Awart$s anticipated that the restricted stock wil granted and issued to
executives on the third business day after the @ompeleases its annual financial results for fi207. The amount
restricted stock to be issued will be calculateidgighe closing price of the Compasyommon stock on the second busines:
after the Company releases its annual financiallte$or fiscal 2007. These awards vest in fouradnstallments, with the fir
installment vesting immediately upon the grant date the remaining three installments vesting @nrtext three annivers
dates of the granThe award is treated as a liability until the grdate when the number of shares to be issued isrkrend the
it becomes equitglassified. At December 29, 2007 the Company dmabra liability of approximately $0.9 million one
balance sheet for the lc-term incentive opportunitie
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NOTE 12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has retirement and pension plans eaystibstantially all of its employees. As a cowditio the Transaction, t
Company was required to provide the nagmnien employees of NBP with benefits that were caraple to those in effect for thc
employees on the closing date of the Transactiwrtordingly, the Company continued to maintain @ertof the NBP bene
plans following the closing of the Transaction, liming the Darling National LLC Retirement Savingtan, a define
contribution plan, and the Darling National LLC Bem Retirement Plan, a defined benefit plan.

Under the transition rules of Code Section 410éffected plans in an acquisition are allowed totisated separately 1
discrimination coverage testing purposes until ¢émg of the plan year following the acquisition.r Rbhe Transaction, tl
transition period lasted through December 31, 2007erefore, following the completion of the Tractsan, the Compar
initiated a project to review its employee retirerneenefit programs in the context of comparabtggpms in the manufacturi
industry sector. As a result of this review, effex January 1, 2008, the Company announced assefriehanges to the bene
provided by its 401(k) defined contribution plamglats defined benefit plans.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Darling National LB@nsion Retirement Plan was merged into the Dptliternational In
Hourly EmployeesRetirement Plan, which plan was then amended astdtesl. Employees from both plans are entitletthéa
accrued benefit as of December 31, 2007 under fingr plan design, plus benefit accruals afteruday 1, 2008 using the ni
benefit of $20 for each year of service with no oapservice years. Previously, these hourly emgdeyhad been accruing $20-
$30 per year of service, depending on locatiomgbleyment.

Also effective January 1, 2008, the Darling Inteimr@al Inc. Salaried EmployeeRetirement Plan, a defined benefit plan,
amended. Effective January 1, 2008, all of the gamy’s eligible salaried employees participate in thépincluding all forme
Darling National salaried employees who did notehavdefined benefit plan prior to January 1, 208B.eligible salarie
employees are entitled to their accrued benefifddecember 31, 2007, which accrued benefit isranumt equal to 1.8% tim
years of service (up to 25 years) times final agernpay plus 0.5% for each additional service yegohd 25 years, with a to
service year cap of 40 years. Effective JanuaB008, for service years earned going forward bieefit accrual will be 0.25
times years of service times final average |

Also effective January 1, 2008, the Darling NatiobC Retirement Savings Plan was amended andtessta, among oth
things, update the plan for the Economic Growth @ad Relief Reconciliation Act and change the nashehe plan to th
Darling International Inc. Hourly 401(k) SavingsaRl Effective January 1, 2008, all of the Companydurly employees ¢
eligible to participate in this plan, which alloviar elective deferrals, an employer match equdl@6% of the first $10 per p
period deferred by a participant, with a maximum $520 per year, and an employer contribution edoa$520 pe
year. Previously, certain of the Comp’s hourly employees were only given the opportutitymake deferrals. The $E
employer contribution will be a new contributiorr fall participating hourly employees. This plarcegted the transfer of ass
and liabilities of the hourly employees that hadamt balances in the Darling International Inc1@&) Savings Plan whic
existed prior to January 1, 2008.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Darling Internatiolme. 401(k) Savings Plan, a defined contributigan, was amended &
restated and became the Darling International Balaried 401(k) Savings Plan and now includes Bdjibde salarie
employees. This plan received the assets anditiiedbiof participating salaried employees undez tharling National LL(
Retirement Savings Plan. Effective January 1, 2008 Darling International Inc. Salaried 401(k)vibgs Plan includes i
employer contribution based on age (ranging frosP@-0f compensation per year), and will continuealiow for employe
deferrals. Previously, only the Darling Nationaipoyees received an employer match, which wasleéqu®0% of the first $1
per pay period deferred by a participant, with aimam of $520 per yea
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS Employer’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Othest-Retiremer
Plans — an Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, A06132(R)(“SFAS 158"), which requires that the Compe
recognize the over-funded or under-funded statubefCompany’s defined benefit pastirement plans as an asset or liabilit
the Companys balance sheet, with changes in the funded stateginized through comprehensive income in the yearhict
they occur. Based on the funded status of the @ogip pension plans as of December 30, 2006, the aopfi SFAS 15
increased the Comparsytotal assets, as a result of deferred tax assetgproximately $2.2 million, increased totablldies by
approximately $6.7 million and reduced total stadkler's equity by approximately $4.5 million, net of taxeThe adoption
the funded status portion of SFAS 158 did not dffiee Company’s results of operations.

In addition, SFAS 158 requires that companies uaingeasurement date other than the fiscal yeaclesuge to a fiscal year ¢
measurement date effective for years ending afemehber 15, 2008. The Company will adopt the nreasent date provisic
in 2008.

The following table sets forth the plans’ fundedtss and amounts recognized in the Compamepnsolidated balance she
based on the measurement date (October 1, 200Z08&] (in thousands

December 29, December 30,

2007 2006
Change in projected benefit obligatic
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of pel $ 88,71¢ $ 82,65(
Acquisition - 6,30¢
Service cos 2,32¢ 2,42¢
Interest cos 5,011 4,67
Actuarial (gain) (1,829 (4,160
Benefits paic (3,570 (3,179
Other 76 —
Projected benefit obligation at efigp@riod 90,74 88,71¢
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of pe 69,89¢ 60,08:
Post measurement date contributi 123 -
Acquisition - 5,141
Actual return on plan asse 8,941 5,15¢
Employer contributiot 6,18¢ 2,69¢
Benefits paid (3,570 (3,17¢)
Fair value of plan assets at endeoigal 81,57¢ 69,89¢
Funded statu (9,164 (18,82
Post-measurement date contributions — 12:
Net amount recognize $ (9,169 $ (18,699
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets consist c
Non-current liability $ (9,169 $ (18,699
Net amount recognized $ (9,169 $ (18,69¢)
Amounts recognized in accumulated ot
comprehensive loss consist
Net actuarial los $ 11,107 $ 17,38t
Prior service cos 49¢ 541
Net amount recognized (a) $ 11,60¢ $ 17,92¢

(&) Amounts do not include deferred taxes of $4.2iamlland $6.6 million at December 29, 2007 and Ddwamn80, 200t
respectively
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The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirneehefit pension plans was $84.0 million and $82illian at December 2!
2007 and December 30, 2006, respectiv

Decembe Decembe

29, 30,
2007 2006
Projected benefit obligatic $ 90,74. $ 88,71¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic 83,95! 82,02t
Fair value of plan asse 81,57¢ 69,89¢

Net pension cost includes the following componémtshousands)

December December December

29, 30, 31,

2007 2006 2005
Service cos $ 2,32¢ $ 2,42¢ $ 1,99¢
Interest cos 5,011 4,67: 4,20¢
Expected return on plan ass (5,63€) (5,192 (4,379
Net amortization and deferr 1,26¢ 1,79: 1,40¢
Net pension cos $ 2,97 $ 3,70: $ 3,231

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprelieristome (loss) for the year ended (in thousar

2007
Actuarial gains recognize:
Reclassification adjustmer $ 70%
Actuarial gain recognized during the per 3,13¢
Prior service (cost) credit recogniz¢
Reclassification adjustmer 72
Prior service cost arising during the period (46)
$ 3,87(

The estimated amount that will be amortized frorouaculated other comprehensive loss into net peripdinsion cost in fisc
2008 is as follows (in thousand

2008
Net actuarial los $ 34¢
Prior service cos 123
$ 472

Weighted average assumptions used to determindibelniéggations were:

December December

29, 30, December 3
2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 6.00% 5.75% 5.50%
Rate of compensation incree 4.10% 4.08% 4.32%
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Weighted average assumptions used to determingeniedic benefit cost for the employee benefit pemplans were:

December December December

29, 30, 31,
2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 5.75% 5.50% 6.00%
Rate of increase in future compensation
levels 4.08% 4.32% 4.66%
Expected long-term rate of return on
asset: 8.25% 8.38% 8.75%

Consideration was made to the I-term time horizon for the pla’ benefit obligations as well as the related assetschix ii
determining the expected long-term rate of retutistorical returns are also considered, over tirggterm time horizon, i
determining the expected return. Considering therall asset mix of approximately 60% equity an@odfixed income, sevet
years in the last ten years having strong doulgé diturns along with several years of single tigéses, the Company belie
it is reasonable to expect a long-term rate ofrretd 8.25% for the plans’ investments as a whole.

Plan Assets

The Company’s pension plan weightaderage asset allocations at December 29, 2007Daegémber 30, 2006, by as
category, are as follow

Plan Assets ¢

Decembe
29, December 3(
Asset Categor 2007 2006
Equity
Securities 60.9% 65.2%
Debt Securities 39.1% 34.8%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

The investment objectives have been establishedoimjunction with a comprehensive review of the entrand projecte
financial requirements. The primary investmentechiyes are: 1) to have the ability to pay all é&fénand expense obligatic
when due; 2) to maximize investment returns witleiasonable and prudent levels of risk in order imimize contributions; ar
3) to maintain flexibility in determining the futeitevel of contributions.

Investment results are the most critical elemeradhieving funding objectives, while reliance omiibutions is a seconde
element.

The investment guidelines are based upon an inesgtimorizon of greater than ten years; therefaorerim fluctuations a
viewed with this perspective. The strategic asdktcation is based on this longrm perspective. However, because
participants’ average age is somewhat older thanythical average plan age, consideration is gieeretaining some shotéerrr
liquidity. Analysis of the cash flow projection§tbe plans indicates that benefit payments wilitowue to exceed contributions.

Based upon the plantime horizon, risk tolerances, performance expémiatand asset class constraints, target assettdc
ranges are as follow

Fixed Incom:

35%- 45%
Domestic 45%- 55
Equities %
Internationa
Equities 7% - 13%

The fixed income asset allocation may be investedorporate and government bonds denominated in ddl&rs, private ar
publicly traded mortgages, private placement dabti cash equivalents. The average maturity ob#iset class will not exce



ten years. The portfolio is expected to be weledsified.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

The domestic equity allocation is invested in sttiaded on one of the U.S. stock exchanges. fesutonvertible into suc
stocks, convertible bonds and preferred stock, atsy be purchased. The majority of the domestiitieg are invested in larg
mid, and small cap index accounts that are wekmiied. By definition, small cap investmentsrgagreater risk, but also ¢
expected to create greater returns over time. pldues target approximately 7.5% of the total ags@tto small cap. Americ
Depository Receipts (“ADR’s"jnay not account for more than 3% of the holdin§mall company stocks may not exceed
of the plans’assets. Small company definitions fluctuate withrket levels, but generally will be considered camnips witl
market capitalizations less than $500 million. Tgaetfolio will be diversified in terms of individd company securities a
industries.

The international equity allocation is investeccompanies whose stock is traded outside the Ud@oanompanies that cond
the major portion of their business outside of th&. The portfolio may invest in ADR’ The emerging market portion of
international equity investment is held below 20%e do greater volatility in the asset class. Thefplio is expected to |
diversified in terms of companies, industries aadrtries.

All investment objectives are expected to be aadewver a market cycle anticipated to be a perfdile years. Reallocatio
are performed at a minimum of twice a year to retaiget asset allocation rang

Contributions

The Company's funding policy for employee beneéihgion plans is to contribute annually not less ttiee minimum amou
required nor more than the maximum amount thatbeadeducted for federal income tax purposes. @uaniwns are intended
provide not only for benefits attributed to servioadate but also for those expected to be eamé#tkifuture.

Based on current actuarial estimates, the Compang dot expect to make any payments to meet fundiqgirements for i
pension plans in fiscal 2008.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée twaid (in thousands

Year Endinc Pension Benefit
2008 $ 3,970
2009 4,110
2010 4,480
2011 4,860
2012 5,190
Years 201~ 2017 33,450

The Company participates in several n-employer pension plans which provide defined bésédi certain employees cove
by labor contracts. These plans are not admimidtdny the Company and contributions are determinedccordance wi
provisions of negotiated labor contracts. Curiafdarmation with respect to the Company's propowie share of the ovanc
under-funded status of all actuarially computedigadf vested benefits over these pension plaesassets is not available. -
Company’s portion of contributions to thegkans amounted to $2.6 million, $2.0 million and8inillion for the years end
December 29, 2007, December 30, 2006 and Decemb@085, respectivel
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NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

In August 2006 the Pension Protection Act of 2(“PPA") was signed into law and went into effect in Jan2098. The statt
goal of the PPA is to improve the funding of pengitans. Plans in an undimded status will be required to increase emp
contributions to improve the funding level withifPR timelines. Should a mulémployer plan elect to terminate rather 1
increase contributions, the Company will recordiadility for its cost of the plan termination whesuch liability become
probable and estimable. One mutiiployer plan in which the Company participatesdiasn notification of a mass withdrav
termination for the plan year ended June 30, 200 refore, at December 29, 2007 the Company hawded a liability ¢
approximately $1.1 million related to this termioat which represents the net present value ofisidity as determined by tl
terminated plan

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISk

Concentration of credit risk is limited due to t@®mpan’s diversified customer base and the fact that tbenfiany sell
commodities. No single customer accounted for ntlome 10% of the Compa’s net sales in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2

CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to several lawsuits, cleamd loss contingencies arising in the ordinary sewf its business, includi
assertions by certain regulatory agencies relateairf wastewater, and storm water discharges ftenCompanys processir
facilities.

The Company’s workers’ compensation, auto andeggnliability policies contain significant dedudits or selfinsurec
retentions. The Company estimates and accruesscted ultimate claim costs related to accideatsirring during each fisc
year and carries this accrual as a reserve umtil slaims are paid by the Compa

As a result of the matters discussed above, thep@oynhas established loss reserves for insurang@pamental and litigatic
matters. At December 29, 2007 and December 306,20@ reserves for insurance, environmental aightion contingencie
reflected on the balance sheet in accrued exparskother norcurrent liabilities for which there are no insuranecoverie
were approximately $17.1 million and $17.9 millioespectively. Management of the Company belighese reserves 1
contingencies are reasonable and sufficient baped present governmental regulations and informatiarrently available -
management; however, there can be no assurancBnidlatosts related to these matters will not exteurrent estimates. 1
Company believes that the likelihood is remote #rat additional liability from such lawsuits anaichs that may not be cove
by insurance would have a material effect on tharfcial statement

In July 2007, a judgment was entered in a litigatioatter involving a contract dispute in which tbempany was a party. T
judgment required the Company to convey an unuaeckepof property recorded on the books for appnakely $500,000 to fl
counterparty for that amount. In December 200jadgment was entered in the matter awarding th@teoparty approximate
$2.6 million in attorneysfees and costs. The Company filed appeals of jodiments. The Company settled this matter di
the first quarter of fiscal 2008. Pursuant to tdwens of the settlement, the Company transferredotbperty to the counterpa
for a purchase price of $500,000, paid the couatty@mpproximately $2.2 million towards attornefe®2s and costs and agree
dismiss its pending appeals with prejudice. Initald the parties exchanged mutual releases. Gtimpany has recordec
charge of $2.2 million for the attorneyfges and costs in the fourth quarter of 2007, widcincluded in selling, general ¢
administrative expense
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

In June 2006, the Company was awarded damagespodxamately $7.4 million as a result of a servigevpder's failure tc
provide steam under a service agreement to orfeed€dmpanys plants. At the time the damages were awardéigctibility of
such damages was uncertain; however on Octobe2d, the Company entered into an agreement tatselights to suc
damages to a third party for $2.2 million in cadthe agreement was made subject to certain conditihich were satisfied
March 1, 2007. On March 8, 2007, the Company weck$2.2 million, completing the transaction. T@empany recorded
gain with the receipt of the $2.2 million in prodsan the first quarter of 200

BUSINESS SEGMENT!

The Company sells its products domestically andrirationally and operates within two industry segtee Rendering at
Restaurant Services. The measure of segment pflofs) includes all revenues, operating expensslyding certai
amortization of intangibles), and selling, geneaatl administrative expenses incurred at all opsgalbcations and excluc
general corporate expens

Included in corporate activities are general cagpmexpenses and the amortization of intangiblaeses of corporate activit
include cash, unallocated prepaid expenses, ddfeareassets, prepaid pension, and miscellanetes assets. The acquisit
of substantially all of the assets of NBP are téd primarily in the Rendering segme

Rendering
Rendering consists of the collection and processingnimal byproducts, including hides, from butcher shops, grpctores

food service industry and meat and poultry proosssmnverting these principally into useable aif&l proteins utilized by tl
agricultural, leather and ol-chemical industries

Restaurant Services

Restaurant Services consists of the collection sefducooking oils from food service establishmemtd eecycling them int
similar products such as higimergy animal feed ingredients and industrial oif@staurant Services also provides greast
servicing. Included in restaurant services isNagional Service Center (‘“NSC”JThe NSC schedules services such as fa
bone and used cooking oil collection as well ap gkeaning for contracted customers using the Coyigaresources or thi
party providers

Included in corporate activities are general caapmexpenses and the amortization of intangiblasackto” Fresh Star
Reporting.”

Business Segment Net Reven(in thousands)

Year Endec

December

29, December 30, December 31

2007 2006 2005
Rendering
Trade $ 464,46¢ $ 279,01 $ 192,34
Intersegmen 42,09t 29,19/ 19,20¢

506,56: 308,20! 211,54¢
Restaurant Service
Trade 180,84! 127,97¢ 116,52
Intersegmen 5,311 3,111 4,80¢

186,15¢ 131,09( 121,33!
Eliminations (47,400 (32,309 (24,019
Total $ 645,31 $ 406,99( $ 308,86
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Business Segment Profit/(Lokgin thousands):

Year Endec
December

29, December 30, December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Rendering $ 85,65¢ $ 33,171 $ 21,66¢
Restaurant Service 34,95: 14,78¢ 15,38¢
Corporate Activities (70,029 (35,67%) (23,20)
Interest expense (5,049 (7,189 (6,159
Income from continuing operatiol $ 45,53 $ 5,107 $ 7,69F

Certain assets are not attributable to a singleadipg segment but instead relate to multiple ojiegesegments operating out
individual locations. These assets are utilizedbth the Rendering and Restaurant Services bissgsggnents and are identil
in the category Combined Rendering/Restaurant &ssviDepreciation of Combined Rendering/RestauBamvices assets
allocated based upon an estimate of the percewtagerresponding activity attributed to each segimédditionally, althoug
intangible assets are allocated to operating setgyigre amortization related to the adoption o4 Start Reportingt 1993 i
not considered in the measure of operating segprefit/(loss) and is included in Corporate Actiegi

As discussed in Note 14 Contingencies, the Compergived proceeds of $2.2 million during the fagstrter of fiscal 2007 as
result of a service provider’s failure to provideam under a service agreement to one of the Coripatants. The Compa
recorded approximately $1.2 million of the proceedsa reduction of cost of sales in the Compmmghdering segment &
approximately $1.0 million as a reduction of sgjlemd general and administrative costs in the catpsegment.

Business Segment Ass(in thousands)

December
29, December 3(
2007 2006
Rendering $ 162,090 $  153,79¢
Restaurant Service 40,51¢ 36,35¢
Combined Rendering/Restaurant Servi 106,95¢ 105,40:
Corporate Activities 41,77 25,24%
Total $ 351,33t $ 320,80t
Business Segment Property, Plant and Equipm@nthousands):
December December
29, December 3( 31,
2007 2006 2005

Depreciation and amortizatio
Rendering $ 13,50¢ $ 11,38¢ $ 7,92¢
Restaurant Service 3,881 3,84« 3,28¢
Corporate Activities 5,824 5,454 4,57C
Continuing operation $ 2321 $ 20,68¢ $ 15,78

Capital expenditure:

Rendering $ 2,880 $ 1421 $ 4,74¢
Restaurant Service 53¢ 254 2,20¢
Combined Rendering/Restaurant Servi 10,60¢ 8,64 12,62:
Corporate Activities 1,52¢ 1,481 1,83C
Continuing operations (i $ 1555. $ 11,80C $  21,40¢

(a) Excludes the capital assets acquired as part aidfuisition of substantially all of the assetdN&P of approximatel
$51.9 million in fiscal 200€
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

The Company has no material foreign operationsekports a portion of its products to customergarious foreign countrie:

Geographic Area Net Trade Reven (in thousands

December December

29, 30, December 3:

2007 2006 2005
Domestic $ 473,69 $ 294,30. $ 231,28:
Foreign 171,61¢ 112,68! 77,58¢
Total $ 64531 $ 406,99 $ 308,86°

The Company attributes revenues from external custs to individual foreign countries based on thestidation of th
Company’s shipments. For fiscal 2007, 2006 ancb2006 individual foreign country comprised morertl#6 of the Company’
consolidated revenue, with the exception of salédéxico during fiscal 2005, which totaled $17.9lion in revenue or 5.7%
consolidated fiscal 2005 revent

NOTE 16. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED AND IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Year Ended December 29, 20

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 138,61 $ 159,42! $ 171,83: $ 175,44
Operating incomi 17,04: 17,41( 21,01( 25,18¢
Income from continuing operatiol 9,58( 9,48 12,10( 14,37
Net income 9,58( 9,48: 12,10( 14,37
Basic earnings per she 0.1z 0.1z 0.1t 0.1¢
Diluted earnings per sha 0.1z 0.1z2 0.1t 0.1¢

Year Ended December 30, 20

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter(a) Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 76400 $ 87,237 $ 11522¢ $ 128,13(
Operating incom 1,89¢ 1,53¢ 4,362 11,44
Income/(loss) from continuing

Operation: 36€ (3,149 1,801 6,08¢

Net income/(loss 36¢€ (3,149 1,801 6,08¢
Basic earnings/(loss) per shi 0.01 (0.09 0.0z 0.0¢
Diluted earnings/(loss) per she 0.01 (0.09 0.0z 0.07

(a) Included in net income/(loss) and income/(lossifrontinuing operations in the second quartersufdi 2006 is a wri-off
of deferred loan cost of approximateB2.6 million and fees of approximately $1.9 for tharly retirement of seni
subordinated notes and termination of the prevémumsor credit agreemet
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT:

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff AccourBurtetin No. 108,Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatem
when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Riial Statement§'SAB 108"), to address diversity in practice
guantifying financial statement misstatements. SIB requires that registrants quantify uncorrectésstatements usi
both the “rollover” and “iron curtaintnethods, with adjustment required if either methesllts in a misstatement tha
material. The Company has identified a $2.8 millmverstatement of income tax liabilities. The Qamy has not be
able to determine how these excess liabilities earb®wever, the Company has determined that thHabditles wert
recorded prior to 2002. The Company had previogsiycluded that the $2.8 million misstatement wamaterial usin
the rollover method for evaluating misstatememts. a result of adopting SAB 108, the Company hasected th
misstatement by recording a cumulative effect ddjest to retained earnings at the beginning o&fi2006.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement ainial Accounting Standards No. 13+air Value Measuremen
which defines fair value, establishes a framewark heasuring fair value and expands disclosuresutafar value
measurements. This statement is effective foCiipany on December 30, 2007 and is not expecthdue a significal
impact on the Company'’s consolidated financialestents.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of réilah Accounting Standards No. 158he Fair Value Option fc
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitig8SFAS 159"), which allows entities to choose to measure findringtrument
and certain other items at fair value. This statenis effective for the Company on December 30@,728nd is not expect
to have a significant impact on the Company’s ctidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofnginhAccounting Standards No. 141(R)Blsiness Combinations
(“SFAS 141(R)"), which is a revision of SFAS 141Blisiness Combinations SFAS 141(R) applies to all transactions
other events in which one entity obtains contra@droane or more other businesses. SFAS 141(R) esjair acquirer, up
initially obtaining control of another entity toaegnize the assets, liabilities and any monirolling interest in the acquir
at fair value as of the acquisition date. Contirigonsideration is required to be recognized apdsured at fair value
the date of acquisition rather than at a later d#ten the amount of that consideration may be detable beyond
reasonable doubt. This fair value approach repldive costllocation process required under SFAS 141 whetkeéycos
of an acquisition was allocated to the individuakets acquired and liabilities assumed based dn d¢lsgémated fa
value. SFAS 141(R) requires acquirers to expengaisition related costs as incurred rather théocating these costs
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as was doder SFAS 141. The provisions of SFAS 141(R)effective fo
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008&lyEadoption is not permitted. The Company is eatly evaluating tt
impact of adopting SFAS 141(R) on the consolidditeahcial statements.
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SCHEDULE I
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(In thousands)
Balance at  Additions Charged tc Balance at
Beginning  Costs and Deductions End
Description of Period Expense: Other (a) (b) of Period
Reserve for bad debi
Year ended December 29, 2( $ 1,63¢ $ 407 $ - $ 58C $ 1,46¢
Year ended December 30, 2006 $ 726 $ 874 $ 59€ $ 55¢ $ 1,63¢
Year ended December 31, 2005 $ 757 $ 484 $ - $ 51z $ 72€
Deferred tax valuation allowanc
Year ended December 29, 2007 $ 9,41€¢ $ - $ - $ 4627 $ 4.79%
Year ended December 30, 2006 $ 19,08 $ - $ - $ 9,67C $ 9,41¢
Year ended December 31, 2005 $ 2025 $ - $ - $ 1,171 $ 19,08¢

(a) Includes amounts acquired as part of the NBP aitiquis
(b) Deductions consist of wri-offs of uncollectible accounts receivable and réidns of the deferred tax valuation allowance

2006, the reductions in the deferred tax valuagibowance were offset against deferred tax assetooragoodwill, resulting i
no deferred tax benefi
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PART Il

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON A CCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
9A.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedss.

As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b), the Gamy’s management, including the Chief Executive Off@ed Chief Financi
Officer, conducted an evaluation, as of the endhef period covered by this report, of the effeate®s of the design and operation of
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures. éfmed in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢k) under the Exchange Act, disclo:
controls and procedures are controls and othereprges of the Company that are designed to enkaténformation required to be disclo:
by the Company in the reports it files or submitgler the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, sumedaand reported, within the tii
periods specified in the SE€tules and forms. Disclosure controls and proeedinclude, without limitation, controls and prdoees designe
to ensure that information required to be discldsgdhe Company in the reports it files or submitsler the Exchange Act is accumulated
communicated to the Compasymanagement, including the Chief Executive Offeed Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate towaltimely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Based on management’s evaluation, the Chief Exex@ificer and Chief Financial Officer concludedthhe Companyg disclosur
controls and procedures were effective as of tlieoéthe period covered by this report.

Internal Control over Financial Reportin.

(a) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Contrelen Financial Reporting .Management of the Company is responsibl
establishing and maintaining adequate internalrobotver financial reporting as defined in Rulesad1h(f) and 15dt5(f) promulgated und
the Exchange Act. Those rules define internal rmbrtver financial reporting as a process desigoegrovide reasonable assurance rega
the reliability of financial reporting and the pesgtion of financial statements for external pugsogh accordance with generally acce
accounting principles and includes those policie$ grocedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that, inomesle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thensactions and dispositions of
assets of the Compar

» Provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiadstatements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, a&ndt receipts and expenditures of the Company a&iagbmade only i
accordance with authorizations of management arttdirs of the Company; al

« Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiagimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use disposition of th
Compan'’s assets that could have a material effect onitla@dial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehdss Company’s internal control over financiaporting as of December 29

200 7 . In making this assessment, the Companyfsagement used the criteria established in InteCoaltrolintegrated Framework issued
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ivay Commission (COSO).
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Based on their assessment, management has conthaleéle Company’internal control over financial reporting waseetive as ¢
December 29, 2007.

KPMG LLP, the registered public accounting firm ttfeudited the Company’financial statements, has issued an audit regmn
management’s assessment of the Company’s intesnédot over financial reporting, which report isinded herein.

(b) Attestation Report of the Registered Public AcdognEirm. The attestation report called for by Item 308tbRegulation K
is incorporated herein by reference to Report dependent Registered Public Accounting Firm onrirgieControl Over Financial Reportit
included in Part Il, Item 8, “Financial Statemeatsl Supplementary Data” of this report.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(d), ©@empanys
management, including the Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer, also conducted an eatibn of the Companyg'internal contrc
over financial reporting to determine whether ahgr@ge occurred during the last fiscal quarter efghriod covered by this report that
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the Compang’ internal control over financial reporting. Based tha
evaluation, there has been no change in the Companternal control over financial reporting duritfie last fiscal quarter of the per
covered by this report that has materially affectadis reasonably likely to materially affect, tG@mpany$ internal control over financ
reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI

ITEM DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERN ANCE
10.

The information required by this Item witsspect to Items 401, 405 and 407 of Regulatish\v@H appear in the sections entitl
“Election of Directors,” “Executive Officers and i@ctors,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repay Compliance” and Corporat
Governance-Committees of the Board-Audit Committeeluded in the Company’definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2008nAa
Meeting of Stockholders, which information is inporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted the Darling Internatiomal Code of Business Conduct (“Code of BusinessdGcti), which is applicabl
to all of the Companyg employees, including its senior financial offisethe Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial ©#r, Controllel
Treasurer and General Counsel. The Company hagraioted any waivers to the Code of Business Cdridutate. A copy of the Compamy’
Code of Business Conduct has been posted on thestor” portion of our web site, at www.darlingora . Shareholders may request a
copy of our Code of Business Conduct from:

Brad Phillips

Darling International Inc.

251 O’Connor Ridge Blvd, Suite 300
Irving, Texas 75038

Phone: 972-717-0300

Fax: 972-717-1588

Email: bphillips@darlingii.com

ITEM EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
11.

The information required by this Item will appear the sections entitled “Executive Compensationd &G8orporate Governance-
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Epgtion” included in the Comparg/'definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which informatiegnmcorporated herein by reference.

ITEM SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AN D MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
12. STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item with respecttem 201(d) of Regulation S-K appears in Itef Fhis report.
The information required by this Item witkspect to Item 403 of Regulation S-K will app@athe section entitledSecurity

Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managgmiacluded in the Compang’definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 200&Aa
Meeting of Stockholders, which information is ingorated herein by reference.

ITEM CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AN D DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
13.

The information required by this Item will appearthe sections entitledTfansactions with Related Persons, Promoters amhi

Control Persons” and “Corporate Goverance-Independeectors” included in the Comparsytlefinitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which informatignincorporated herein by reference.

ITEM PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
14.

The information required by this Item wédppear in the section entitled “Independent Auditdncluded in the Company’
definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2008 AahMeeting of Stockholders, which informationngdrporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM  EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
15.

(@) Documents filed as part of this repc
(1) The following consolidated financial statementsiacduded in Item 8

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimm on Consolidated Financi
Statemen

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg on Internal Control Ove
Financial Reportin

Consolidated Balance She
December 29, 2007 and December 30, .

Consolidated Statements of Operat-
Three years ended December 29, :

Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity -
Three years ended December 29, :

Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢-
Three years ended December 29, :

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems

(2) The following financial statement schedule is irigd in Item 8
Schedule I- Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

Three years ended December 29, :

All other schedules are omitted since the requiméatmation is not present or is not preser
amounts sufficient to require submission of theesitie, or because the information required is
included in the consolidated financial statement$ @otes theretc
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Exhibits.

Exhibit No.Document

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb&0@8, among Darling International Inc., Darli
National LLC, and National E-Products LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Compan€urrent Report on For
8-K filed December 19, 2005 and incorporated hergineference)

Claim Purchase Agreement, dated as of October(5,2y and between Darling International Inc. and
Trust Company of the West as trustee of the trsistolished pursuant to an Individual Trust Agreeimen
between the Boilermaker-Blacksmith National Pendiarst and itself (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Caang’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed October 18, 2006 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Amendment No. 1 to Claim Purchase Agreement, dadeaf December 31, 2006, by and between Darling
International Inc. and Trust Company of the Westastee of the trust established pursuant to divitiual
Trust Agreement between the Boilermaker-Blacksmiigional Pension Trust and itself (filed as Exhibit
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 3, 2007 and incorporated hereimdfgrence)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Compas amended (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Compsny’
Registration Statement on Forr-1 filed May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein byirefice)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (fileBExhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K filed August 13, 2007 and incorporated hereirrdfgrence)

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (filed as Exhbit to the Company’s Registration Statement omnFor
S-1 filed May 27, 1994 and incorporated herein byrefice)

Certificate of Designation, Preference and RiglitSaries A Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit 4.2He
Compan’s Registration Statement on Fort-1 filed May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein bgrefice)

Recapitalization Agreement, dated as of March 0822among Darling International Inc., each oflthaks
or other lending institutions which is a signattmgreto or any successor or assignee thereof, ssitC
Lyonnais New York Branch, individually as a banklas agent (filed as Annex C to the Company’s
Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April 29, 20G#hd incorporated herein by referenc

First Amendment to Recapitalization Agreement, da® of April 1, 2002, among Darling Internatiofrad.,
each of the banks party to the Recapitalizatione&grent, and Credit Lyonnais New York Branch,
individually as a bank and as agent (filed as AnDear the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statementdilen
April 29, 2002, and incorporated herein by refegr

Second Amendment to Recapitalization Agreemengddas of April 29, 2002, among Darling Internationa
Inc., each of the banks party to the Recapitalimafigreement, and Credit Lyonnais New York Branch,
individually as a bank and as agent (filed as ExHi0.3 to the Company’s Registration StatemenfFomm
S-1 filed on May 23, 2002, and incorporated hereimdfgrence)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Dece®®et993, between Darling International Inc., éms
signatory holders identified therein (filed as EbthiL0.3 to the Company’s Registration StatemernfEomm
S-1 filed on May 27, 1994, and incorporated hereimdfgrence)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2002, between Darling International Inc., and tbklérs

identified therein (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to ther@pany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filedviaty
23, 2002, and incorporated herein by referer

Page 8-




10.6 *

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11 *

10.12 *

10.13 *

10.14 *

10.15*

10.16 *

10.17 *

10.18 *
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Form of Indemnification Agreement (filed as Exhib@.7 to the Compar’'s Registration Statement on Fo
S-1 filed on May 27, 1994, and incorporated hereimdfgrence)

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2006, ambmgling International Inc., various lending instians
party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (flgdExhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K filed April 13, 2006 and incorporated herein Bfarence)

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement, deted April 7, 2006, among Darling International Inc
and the securities purchasers party thereto (fileBxhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current ReporForm 8-
K filed April 13, 2006 and incorporated herein lefarence)

Leases, dated July 1, 1996, between the Companthar@ity and County of San Francisco (filed purdgua
temporary hardship exemption under cover of Form

Lease, dated November 24, 2003, between Darlirgriational Inc. and the Port of Tacoma (filed akiBix
10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10#&dfiMarch 29, 2004, and incorporated herein by
reference)

1994 Employee Flexible Stock Option Plan (filedexhibit 2 to the Company’s Revised Definitive Proxy
Statement filed on April 20, 2001, and incorporatedein by reference

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (filed as 5k 0.13 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form &1/A filed on June 5, 2002, and incorporated hebgimeference)

Darling International Inc. 2004 Omnibus IncentiMarP(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compé's Current
Report on Form-K filed May 11, 2005, and incorporated herein bigrence)

Amendment to Darling International Inc. 2004 Ommithncentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to 1
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 22, 2007 and incorporated hereindégrence)

Darling International Inc. Compensation Committemt-Term Incentive Program Policy Statement (filec
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrr&-K filed June 22, 2005, and incorporated hebgin
reference)

Integration Success Incentive Award Plan (filedEakibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrfr &
K filed March 15, 2006 and incorporated herein éfgrence)

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Plareffias Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form K filed March 15, 2006 and incorporated herein éference)

Notice of Amendment to Grants and Awards, datedf &ctober 10, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed October 10, 2006 and incorporated hereimdfgrence)

Employment Agreement, dated as of February 3, 2088yeen Darling International Inc. and Randall C.
Stuewe (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s €ntrReport on Form 8-K filed February 3, 2003, and
incorporated herein by referenc

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, datedf dslg 1, 2003, between Darling International |

and Randall C. Stuewe (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to@mmpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed Asigu
12, 2003, and incorporated herein by referer
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Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated &ctober 13, 2006, by and between Darling
International Inc. and Randall C. Stuewe (filedeahibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onnfr &K
filed October 18, 2006 and incorporated hereindignence)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiebruary 28, 2006, by and among Dar
International Inc., Darling National LLC and Mark Myers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s f&umnt
Report on Form -K filed May 17, 2006 and incorporated herein byerefice)

Form of Senior Executive Termination Benefits Agneat (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Cutren
Report on Form-K filed November 29, 2007 and incorporated hergimeierence)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Darlingelnational Inc. and its directors and executive

officers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sréant Report on Form 8-K filed February 25, 200&] a
incorporated herein by referenc

Darling International Inc. Code of Business Condamlicable to all employees, including senior exize
officers (filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Gant Report on Form 8-K filed February 25, 2008, and
incorporated herein by referenc

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit12tb the Compar's Registration Statement on Fori-4
filed on February 2, 2006, and incorporated hebgineference)

Consent of KPMG LLP (filed herewith

Certification pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) or Rule 1E5-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, afidrdl
C. Stuewe, the Chief Executive Officer of the Compéiled herewith).

Certification pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) or Rule 1£-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ¢inJO.
Muse, the Chief Financial Officer of the Comparnie(f herewith).

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer ande&lrinancial Officer furnished pursuant to Sectifié
of the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350) (filegkéwith).

The Exhibits are available upon request from the Cmpany.
Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Act of 1934, the Registrant thaly caused this report to be sigr

on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duthaized.

DARLING
INC.

INTERNATIONAL

By: /s Randall C. Stuew
Randall C. Stuew
Chairman of the Board a
Chief Executive Office

Date: February 27, 200

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed béipwhe following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Randall C Chairman of the Board ar February 27
Stuewe 200¢
Randall C. Stuewe Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officel
/sl John O. Muse Executive Vice President - February 27
200¢
John O. Muse Finance and Administration
(Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
/sl O. Thoma Director February 27
Albrecht 200¢
O. Thomas Albrect
/sl C. Dean Carlsc Director February 2%
200¢
C. Dean Carlso
/sl Marlyn Director February 2%
Jorgensel 200¢
Marlyn Jorgense
/s Charles Director February 23
Macalusc 200¢
Charles Macalus
/sl Michael Urbut Director February 23
200¢

Michael Urbut
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Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@0@8, among Darling International Inc., Darlingtdnal LLC, and
National By-Products LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Compan@urrent Report on Form 8-K filed December 19,580d
incorporated herein by referenc

Claim Purchase Agreement, dated as of October(5,2y and between Darling International Inc. @nast Company of th
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institutions which is a signatory thereto or angaassor or assignee thereof, and Credit Lyonnaig Yk Branch,
individually as a bank and as agent (filed as An@er the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statementdilen April 29, 2002,
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Notice of Amendment to Grants and Awards, datedf&ctober 10, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to then@hbany's Current
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Form of Senior Executive Termination Benefits Agneat (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compi’s Current Report on Forn-
K filed November 29, 2007 and incorporated hergimdference)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Darlingernational Inc. and its directors and executiffieers (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporated helsimeference)
Darling International Inc. Code of Business Cartchpplicable to all employees, including senice@xive officers (filed as

Exhibit 14 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporated helgimeference)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit2tb the Company’s Registration Statement on Fé+nfiled on February 2,
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Exhibit 22

Consent of Independent Registered Public AccountinEirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darling International Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statements on Form S-3 (No. 33-794#&)m S-4 (No. 333-131484) and Form
S-8 (Nos. 333-125875, 33-99868 and 33-99866) ofipmternational Inc. of our reports dated Feloyua7, 2008, with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of Darling Internatibra and subsidiaries as of December 29, 200 7Ceaember 30, 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgusty, and cash flows for each of the yearh@nthree-year period ended December 29,
2007, and the related financial statement scheahidethe effectiveness of internal control overfiicial reporting as of December 29, 2007,
which reports appear in the December 29, 2007,ameport on Form 10-K of Darling International Inc

Our audit report dated February 27, 2008, with eesfo the consolidated balance sheets of Dartiteythational Inc. as of December 29, 2007
and December 30, 2006, and the related consolidddé¢eiments of operations, stockholders’ equitd, @ash flows for each of the three-years
ended December 29, 2007 and the related finanai@ment schedule refers to the adoption of Stateofd-inancial Accounting Standards
No. 123(R),Share-Based PaymenSecurities and Exchange Commission Staff Accagrulletin No. 108Considering the Effects of Prior
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatementsei Current Year Financial Statementnd Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 15&mployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod ather Post-Retirement Plans

KPMG

Dallas, TX
February 27, 2008










EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Randall C. Stuewe, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Darling International Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtites defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduies tlesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with generally accepted accounting princijj

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslassire controls and procedures and presentedsimethort our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintbprocedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsdanternal control over financial reporting tlwacurred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahecgporting; anc

5.  The registrant's other certifying officer(s) antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiamernal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataximinmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the equiva
functions):

@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refimaincial information; ani

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 27, 20(

/s/ Randall C. Stuew

Randall C. Stuew
Chief Executive Office







EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

[, Johm O. Muse, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Darling International Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsitéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operetand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this ref

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifig preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atarece with generally accepted accounting princj

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslassire controls and procedures and presentedsimethort our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintbprocedures, as of the end of the period covgydhis report based on
such evaluation; ai

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regidsdanternal control over financial reporting tloacurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig'’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; an

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) antalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions)

@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which a

reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidteaability to record, process, summarize and refreincial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisantifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 27, 20

/s/ John O. Mus

John O. Mus
Chief Financial Office









EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of &y International Inc. (the “Company”) on Form kOfor the period ending December 29,
2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), the usgred, Randall C. Stuewe, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and John O. M@&ef Financial Officer of the Company, each hereéstifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
81350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarb@rkey-Act of 2002 (the “Act”), that:

1. The Report fully congdiwith the requirements of Section 13(a) or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contdhin the Report fairly presents, in all materedpects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

This certification is being furnished sglér purposes of compliance with the Act.

/s/ Randall C. Stuew /s/ John O. Mus
Randall C. Stuew John O. Must
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office!

Date: February 27, 20( Date: February 27, 20(







